
  

 

 

 
 

                        MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

DATE & TIME:  Friday, January 24, 2020:  8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
 

LOCATION:   City of El Cerrito, Council Chambers 
10890 San Pablo Avenue (at Manila Ave) 
El Cerrito, California (Accessible by AC Transit #72, #72M & #72R) 
 

 
1. Call to Order and Self-Introductions. (Chris Kelley – Chair) 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.  Please fill out a speaker card and hand it to staff. 
 

3.    Election of Officers:  
a. CCTA Representative (even-year term),  

        c.  WCCTAC Chair,  
      d.  WCCTAC Vice-Chair.   
     (Attachment; Recommended Action: Elect board members to positions). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
4. Minutes of December 13, 2019 Board Meeting. (Attachment; Recommended 

Action: Approve).  
 

5. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities. (Attachment; Information Only). 
 

6. Financial Reports. The reports show the Agency’s revenues and expenses for 
November and December 2020. (Attachment; Information Only). 
 

7. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. $11,452 to MarkOne Visual Communications   
for WestCAT JX/JPX promotion mailer design and printing. (No Attachment; 
Information Only). 

 
8. Memorandum of Understanding with Metropia.  Metropia is an app developer 

conducting a Federal Highway Administration study in the I-80 corridor that’s 
focused on shifting trips to green modes. With encouragement from CCTA, 
WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa is proposing to partner with Metropia to use Air 
District grant funds (TFCA) to incentivize these shifts and would receive data and 
detailed results from the study. (Attachment; Recommended Action: Approve).        

 

 
El Cerrito 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

A-1



  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

9. West Contra Costa Express Bus Implementation Plan: Draft Plan Review.  
WCCTAC is leading an effort, with partners AC Transit and WestCAT, to develop a 
plan for implementing new express bus service between West County and 
Berkeley, Emeryville, Oakland and San Francisco.  Previously, the Board reviewed 
the plan’s background, process, results from the first two round of public 
outreach, initial bus route opportunities, and funding availability.  At the 
December 2019 meeting, the WCCTAC Board provided guidance on bus route 
prioritization.  The draft plan summarizes all this information and includes cost 
estimates for operations and potential capital improvements. WCCTAC’s 
consultant will provide a review of the Draft Plan for Board feedback in 
anticipation of final Plan approval at the February Board meeting. (Leah 
Greenblat, WCCTAC Staff and Adam Dankberg, Kimley-Horn and Associates; 
Attachments; Recommended Action: Provide feedback on Draft Plan). 
 

10. Richmond Ferry Update and Weekend Service in 2020.  WETA staff will provide 
a status report on the Richmond Ferry.  The Board is also being asked to make a 
recommendation to CCTA and WETA regarding weekend ferry service. In 2019, 
WETA provided weekend service on the Richmond Ferry route from August to 
October as part of a pilot effort, using Measure J 22b funds. This weekend 
service could be provided again in 2020.  A decision needs to be made about 
whether to run this service again in 2020 and, if so, whether to run it for the 
summer only or a longer April-October period. (WETA Staff, WCCTAC Staff; 
Attachments; Recommended Actions: Receive presentation and provide a 
recommendation to the CCTA and WETA Boards). 
 

11. STMP Fees and Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).  Senate Bill 13, which went 
into effect on January 1 of this year, prohibits development fees on ADUs under 
750 sq. feet and requires a proportional methodology for calculating fees on 
those over 750 sq. feet. This method of calculating fees is different than the 
current STMP process which utilizes a flat rate per unit fee.  Given the fact that 
there may be relatively few ADUs over 750 sq. feet and that calculating the STMP 
fee for ADU’s could be tedious for local jurisdictions, WCCTAC staff proposed 
changing the Administrative Guidelines to exempt ADUs. The TAC concurred with 
this recommendation. However the Hercules City Manager expressed a 
preference to change the Guidelines to adhere to state law but not to fully 
exempt ADUs.  Staff is seeking the Board’s direction on whether to 1) exempt 
ADU’s fully or 2) exempt ADU’s under 750 sq. ft. (per state law) and apply the 
proportional methodology for those over 750 sq. ft. (Attachment; Recommended 
Action: Provide direction to staff). 

 
12. Zipcar Overview. In January 2019, CCTA released an RFP for a program called 

CarShare4All, which is funded through MTC, using OBAG2 funds. Zipcar was 
awarded $504,125 to develop a carshare program for West County. The program 

A-2



launched on-demand car rental locations in El Cerrito and San Pablo last October 
and in Richmond last November. CCTA and Zipcar will provide a presentation on 
this program. (Peter Engel, CCTA; Jeffrey Hoover and Brian Lothamer, Zipcar; No 
Attachments; Information Only).   
 

             STANDING ITEMS 
 

13. Board and Staff Comments. 
a. Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234 

Requirement), and Announcements 
b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Abelson & Butt) 
c. Executive Director’s Report 

 
14. General Information Items. 

a. Letter to CCTA Executive Director with January 24, 2020 Summary of Board 
Actions 

b. Acronym List 
 

15.    Adjourn.  Next regular meeting is: February 28, 2020 @ 8:00 a.m.  
                     in the El Cerrito City Hall Council Chambers, located   
                   at 10890 San Pablo Avenue, El Cerrito  
 

 

• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the 
agenda and/or agenda packet materials in an alternative format, please contact 
Valerie Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior to the meeting. 

• If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, 
please call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make 
arrangements. 

• Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed 
at WCCTAC’s offices. 

• Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be 
attendees susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on 
silent mode during the meeting. 

• A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 
 

A-3





TO: WCCTAC Board DATE: January 24, 2020 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Election of Officers  

REQUESTED ACTION 
Elect members to the following positions:  a. CCTA Representative (even-year term), 
b. WCCTAC Chair, and c. WCCTAC Vice-Chair.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

CCTA Even-Year Representative  
Janet Abelson was elected as WCCTAC’s “even-year” CCTA representative in 2018.  Her 
two-year term expires on January 31, 2020.  The “even-year” representative sits on the 
full CCTA Board and on CCTA’s Planning Committee.  The “odd-year” and “even-year” 
representatives are each other’s alternates for the Committees on which they sit.   

Tom Butt is the “odd-year” representative and sits on the Administration & Projects 
Committee.  His term expires on January 31, 2021.  Roy Swearingen serves as the 
Alternate. His term also expires January 31, 2021. 

According to the WCCTAC Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) Section 9 (A) (3) (c), 
only the Cities and the County may vote for CCTA Representatives – six votes total (one 
each – El Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond, San Pablo, Contra Costa County). Four votes 
are required for appointment.  

WCCTAC Chair  
Chris Kelley is the current Chair and was elected in January 2019. The term for the Chair is 
for one year and there are no term limits.  All members may vote for the Board Chair and 
any member can serve as Chair.  The term for the newly elected Chair will begin on 
February 1, 2020. 

WCCTAC Vice-Chair  
Roy Swearingen is the current Vice-Chair and was elected in January 2019.  The term for 
the Vice-Chair is for one year and there are no term limits.  All members may vote for the 
Vice-Chair and any member can serve as Vice-Chair.  The term for the newly elected Vice-
Chair will begin on February 1, 2020. 

3-1





West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes: December 13, 2019 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Kelley, Chair (Hercules); Roy Swearingen, Vice-Chair (Pinole); 
Chris Peeples (AC Transit); Lateefah Simon (BART); Janet Abelson, (El Cerrito); Tom Butt 
(Richmond); Demnlus Johnson III (Richmond); Jael Myrick (Richmond), Rita Xavier (San 
Pablo); 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Valerie Jenkins, Coire Reilly, Leah 
Greenblat.  
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order: 8:00am 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion to approved Items #3-10 below by Director Abelson; seconded by Director Peeples; 
Motion passed. 
 
Item #3. Approved Minutes of September 27, 2019 Board Meeting.  
Item #4. Received Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities.  
Item #5. Received Financial Reports.  
Item #6. Received info about Payment of Invoices over $10,000.  
Item #7. Approved CCTA’s Vision Zero Task Force Appointments as follows:  Patrick Phelan  
                from the City of Richmond to serve as the primary West County representative,  
                Yvetteh Ortiz from the City of El Cerrito to serve as an alternate and Jimmy Zhou  
                of the City of San Pablo to serve as a second alternate. 
Item #8. Approved 2020 TAC and Board Meeting Calendar.  
Item #9. Received WCCTAC Board Election Reminder. Annual Election will be held at                
                January 2020 WCCTAC Board meeting. 
Item #10. Approved FY 20 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation  
                  for Seniors and People with Disabilities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4-1



REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item #11   
Approved Measure J Program 21b, Low 
Income Student Bus Pass Program (SBPP). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director Swearingen requested that this item be 
pulled from the Consent Calendar. He expressed 
concern about charter schools receiving monthly 
passes and noted the general impact of charters 
on regular public schools. Other Directors, 
including Butt and Abelson, noted that the intent 
of the program was to aid all low-income 
students regardless of which type of school they 
attended.  The requested action was for the 
Board to approve the next two years of funding 
to the West Contra Costa Unified School District. 
WCCTAC staff noted that, given changed 
administrative practices by the WCCUSD, it 
would take on more responsibility to provide 
passes to eligible charter school students. 
 
Motion by Director Butt; seconded by Director 
Abelson to provide two years. 
Motion passed 
Yes-C.Kelley, T.Butt, D. Johnson, R. Xavier, J. 
Abelson, J. Myrick 
No-R. Swearingen 
Abstention- C. Peeples 
 

Item #12 
West Contra Costa Express Bus 
Implementation Plan. 
 

WCCTAC’s consultant, Kimley-Horn, provided 
information about: potential express bus routes, 
the prioritization of those routes, potential 
capital improvements, and operating costs. The 
Board asked questions about the ridership 
potential of these routes and about the need for 
some of the proposed capital improvements. The 
direction from the Board was concurrence with 
the consultant’s general prioritization of routes.   
 

4-2



 
Meeting Adjourned: 10:08am 

Item #13 
Interstate-80 Update 

Information Only 
 
David Man, of Caltrans staff, provided a review of 
the “Before and After Study” for the I-80 Smart 
Corridor (ICM) project. He also shared 
information about CHP enforcement in the HOV 
lane and upcoming maintenance and physical 
improvements in the corridor. 
 

4-3





 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE:   January 24, 2020 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities  

 

New Year 511 Contra Costa Program Marketing Push 
The WCCTAC TDM Program, 511 Contra Costa, is making a big social media marketing push in 
the new year, hoping to encourage commuters to switch up their commutes as their New Year’s 
resolutions. Two programs are being highlighted. The first offers free 31-day WestCAT passes for 
commuters who travel to or from Pinole, 
Hercules, and surrounding communities to 
try the JX and/or JPX lines which connect to 
the El Cerrito Del Norte station.  
More info can be found here: 
https://westcat.org/jxjpxpromo  
 
The second program is Text Your Commute, 
which in years past ran from October 
through November and for the first time has 
been extended into the new year. The 
program has already had its biggest year so 
far, with over 500 participants, and now with 
the extended program enrollment timeline, 
we’re hoping to get even more. Text Your 
Commute is a three-week challenge where 
people who live or work in Contra Costa can 
log their commutes. If they tally up enough 
“green” commutes, they are eligible for up 
to $50 in rewards. Full program information 
and rules are here: www.511cc.org/TYC  
 
 

511 Contra Costa Partnering with Smartphone App Developer 
511 Contra Costa is working with a smartphone app developer, Metropia, on a potential effort 
to provide incentives to help nudge Contra Costa employees and residents onto green commute 
modes. Metropia was awarded an FHWA grant to study commuters’ travel behaviors in the I-80 
corridor and ascertain which incentives can play a role in shifting their commute modes. 
Metropia is developing a travel planning app which, after learning a user’s travel patterns, will 

5-1

https://westcat.org/jxjpxpromo
http://www.511cc.org/TYC


 

begin to suggest greener modes to the users and provide incentives to get them to try those 
green modes.  If a Memorandum of Understanding is approved by the WCCTAC Board at its 
January meeting, the program would run from February to June 2020. 
 
 

Travel Training for Seniors 
In early January, WCCTAC provided a travel training 
session to 27 Japanese-American seniors as part of the 
West Contra Costa Adult Education Program, Sakura 
Kai.   
 
On January 10, 2020, staff provided a travel training 
orientation at the San Pablo Senior Center. There were 
over 40 people in attendance. This was the first time a 
training included a Spanish Interpreter. 
 
At the time of writing, 10 seniors have signed up for a 
travel training trip on January 23, 2020 to Emeryville’s 
Bay Street. They will learn about access via AC Transit, 
the Emery-Go-Round shuttle, and BART.  
               

 

West County Senior Coalition (WCSC) 
To expand the reach of its travel training program for seniors, staff is going to be working closely 
with the West County Senior Coaliton (WCSC).  WCSC is a coalition of organizations serving the 
senior population in West Contra Costa County that helps to educate groups of older individuals, 
their families, friends, and community organizations. Topics includes rights, benefits, 
entitlements, available services, and health and wellness information for older people either 
residing at home or in an institutional setting. With the retirement of Joan Carpenter, Supervisor 
John Gioia’s office has appointed Kate Rauch to lead the coalition. Staff is very excited about this 
partnership.  

 
 
Faster Bay Area Initiative  
Legislation may be introduced this year to place a 
measure on the November ballot for a one-cent, region-
wide, sales tax measure (over 40 years) to improve 
transit in the Bay Area.  The Bay Area Council is 
spearheading this initiative and developing a list of 
potential projects.  The vision is for a significant upgrade 
to existing transit and the development of new transit 
lines.  

 

5-2



 

At its December 18, 2019 meeting, the CCTA Board received an overview from Bay Area Council 
staff.  The Commission raised some concerns.  Some Commissioners noted that the businesses 
leading this effort, some of whom are well-capitalized, could provide significant private funds to 
improve transit rather than relying on a sales tax.  There were questions about whether Contra 
Costa County would receive an equitable share of funds within the region if such a measure 
passed. Finally, there were some concerns that the endeavor was too amorphous.  
 
CCTA does not have an official position on this initiative. Nevertheless, it has developed a list of 
desired improvements in Contra Costa County, which it would like to see included in a potential 
measure.  That list was shared at CCTA’s January 15th Board meeting, and the Authority is 
seeking feedback. WCCTAC staff will make this list available to the WCCTAC Board and will pass 
along feedback. 

 

5-3





G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 1

/1
3/

20
20

 6
:0

0:
52

 P
M

Pe
ri

od
 0

1 
- 

06
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

20

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

77
0-

77
00

-4
10

00
Sa

la
ry

50
7,

44
8.

00
0.

00
50

7,
44

8.
00

18
1,

24
8.

99
32

6,
19

9.
01

0.
00

32
6,

19
9.

01
64

.2
8

77
0-

77
00

-4
12

00
PE

R
S 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

50
,2

28
.2

5
-5

0,
22

8.
25

0.
00

-5
0,

22
8.

25
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

13
10

M
ed

ic
al

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
28

,9
05

.9
9

-2
8,

90
5.

99
0.

00
-2

8,
90

5.
99

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
13

11
R

et
ir

ee
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
07

9.
68

-1
,0

79
.6

8
0.

00
-1

,0
79

.6
8

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
14

00
D

en
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

98
6.

65
-1

,9
86

.6
5

0.
00

-1
,9

86
.6

5
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

15
00

Fl
ex

ib
le

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
A

cc
ou

nt
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

93
5.

00
-2

,9
35

.0
0

0.
00

-2
,9

35
.0

0
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

18
00

L
T

D
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
39

7.
06

-1
,3

97
.0

6
0.

00
-1

,3
97

.0
6

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
61

8.
92

-2
,6

18
.9

2
0.

00
-2

,6
18

.9
2

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

01
O

th
er

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

6,
89

6.
49

-6
,8

96
.4

9
0.

00
-6

,8
96

.4
9

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

02
FI

C
A

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
1.

82
-1

61
.8

2
0.

00
-1

61
.8

2
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
04

L
if

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
6.

65
-4

06
.6

5
0.

00
-4

06
.6

5
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
11

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e

4,
05

0.
00

0.
00

4,
05

0.
00

0.
00

4,
05

0.
00

0.
00

4,
05

0.
00

10
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
12

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

18
9.

00
-1

89
.0

0
0.

00
-1

89
.0

0
0.

00
Sa

la
ry

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
its

51
1,

49
8.

00
0.

00
51

1,
49

8.
00

27
8,

05
4.

50
23

3,
44

3.
50

0.
00

23
3,

44
3.

50
45

.6
4

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
4,

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
2,

85
5.

98
1,

14
4.

02
0.

00
1,

14
4.

02
28

.6
0

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

01
Po

st
ag

e
1,

80
0.

00
0.

00
1,

80
0.

00
1,

09
6.

29
70

3.
71

0.
00

70
3.

71
39

.1
0

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

20
C

op
ie

sP
ri

nt
in

gS
hi

pp
in

gX
er

ox
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
1,

33
5.

66
2,

71
4.

34
0.

00
2,

71
4.

34
67

.0
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

54
,3

25
.0

0
54

,3
25

.0
0

28
,7

58
.0

7
25

,5
66

.9
3

0.
00

25
,5

66
.9

3
47

.0
6

77
0-

77
00

-4
39

00
R

en
tB

ui
ld

in
g

23
,9

00
.0

0
0.

00
23

,9
00

.0
0

11
,3

46
.1

7
12

,5
53

.8
3

0.
00

12
,5

53
.8

3
52

.5
3

77
0-

77
00

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

10
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
10

,0
00

.0
0

3,
79

3.
57

6,
20

6.
43

0.
00

6,
20

6.
43

62
.0

6
77

0-
77

00
-4

43
20

T
ra

ve
lT

ra
in

in
g 

St
af

f
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
2,

25
2.

12
2,

74
7.

88
0.

00
2,

74
7.

88
54

.9
6

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

48
,7

50
.0

0
54

,3
25

.0
0

10
3,

07
5.

00
51

,4
37

.8
6

51
,6

37
.1

4
0.

00
51

,6
37

.1
4

50
.1

0

E
xp

en
se

56
0,

24
8.

00
54

,3
25

.0
0

61
4,

57
3.

00
32

9,
49

2.
36

28
5,

08
0.

64
0.

00
28

5,
08

0.
64

46
.3

9
77

00
W

C
C

T
A

C
 O

pe
ra

ti
on

s
56

0,
24

8.
00

54
,3

25
.0

0
61

4,
57

3.
00

32
9,

49
2.

36
28

5,
08

0.
64

0.
00

28
5,

08
0.

64
46

.3
9

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
77

2-
77

20
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
31

0,
45

0.
00

0.
00

31
0,

45
0.

00
95

,1
69

.8
0

21
5,

28
0.

20
0.

00
21

5,
28

0.
20

69
.3

4
77

2-
77

20
-4

12
00

PE
R

S 
R

et
ir

em
en

t
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
37

,1
90

.7
0

-3
7,

19
0.

70
0.

00
-3

7,
19

0.
70

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
13

10
M

ed
ic

al
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

18
,1

25
.5

6
-1

8,
12

5.
56

0.
00

-1
8,

12
5.

56
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

14
00

D
en

ta
l I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
30

1.
75

-1
,3

01
.7

5
0.

00
-1

,3
01

.7
5

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
18

00
L

T
D

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
60

7.
74

-6
07

.7
4

0.
00

-6
07

.7
4

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
37

3.
85

-1
,3

73
.8

5
0.

00
-1

,3
73

.8
5

0.
00

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

01
/1

3/
20

20
 -

 0
6:

00
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

6-1



G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 1

/1
3/

20
20

 6
:0

0:
25

 P
M

Pe
ri

od
 0

1 
- 

06
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

20

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
r

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

A
do

pt
ed

B
ud

ge
t

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

A
dj

us
te

d
Y

T
D

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
E

nc
um

be
re

d
A

va
ila

bl
e

%
 A

va
il

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
10

C
C

 C
ou

nt
y 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
0.

00
25

0,
00

0.
00

-2
50

,0
00

.0
0

-3
6,

71
2.

76
-2

13
,2

87
.2

4
0.

00
-2

13
,2

87
.2

4
85

.3
1

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

15
E

l C
er

ri
to

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

-1
,4

85
,8

27
.0

0
0.

00
-1

,4
85

,8
27

.0
0

-1
68

,1
17

.2
0

-1
,3

17
,7

09
.8

0
0.

00
-1

,3
17

,7
09

.8
0

88
.6

9
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
20

H
er

cu
le

s 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-3
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-3
50

,0
00

.0
0

-7
72

,3
28

.0
4

42
2,

32
8.

04
0.

00
42

2,
32

8.
04

-1
20

.6
7

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

25
Pi

no
le

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

-6
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-6

0,
00

0.
00

-2
8,

56
7.

30
-3

1,
43

2.
70

0.
00

-3
1,

43
2.

70
52

.3
9

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

30
R

ic
hm

on
d 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
-1

,2
65

,0
52

.0
0

0.
00

-1
,2

65
,0

52
.0

0
-5

1,
99

7.
00

-1
,2

13
,0

55
.0

0
0.

00
-1

,2
13

,0
55

.0
0

95
.8

9
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
35

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-7
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-7

5,
00

0.
00

-4
4,

13
0.

00
-3

0,
87

0.
00

0.
00

-3
0,

87
0.

00
41

.1
6

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d 
P

er
m

its
-3

,2
35

,8
79

.0
0

25
0,

00
0.

00
-3

,4
85

,8
79

.0
0

-1
,1

01
,8

52
.3

0
-2

,3
84

,0
26

.7
0

0.
00

-2
,3

84
,0

26
.7

0
68

.3
9

77
2-

00
00

-3
34

03
G

ra
nt

s
0.

00
55

9,
24

7.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

10
0.

00
G

ra
nt

s
0.

00
55

9,
24

7.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
0-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-5

31
.1

9
53

1.
19

0.
00

53
1.

19
0.

00
77

3-
00

00
-3

61
02

In
te

re
st

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-2
1,

47
7.

19
21

,4
77

.1
9

0.
00

21
,4

77
.1

9
0.

00
U

se
 o

f 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

an
d

M
on

ey
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-2

2,
00

8.
38

22
,0

08
.3

8
0.

00
22

,0
08

.3
8

0.
00

77
0-

00
00

-3
40

10
ST

M
P 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-4
1,

15
4.

69
41

,1
54

.6
9

0.
00

41
,1

54
.6

9
0.

00
77

0-
00

00
-3

41
11

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
0.

00
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
-3

27
,9

50
.0

0
-1

95
,7

20
.0

0
0.

00
-1

95
,7

20
.0

0
37

.3
7

77
0-

00
00

-3
99

06
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

-1
5,

00
0.

00
76

,1
06

.0
0

-9
1,

10
6.

00
-3

1,
45

9.
51

-5
9,

64
6.

49
0.

00
-5

9,
64

6.
49

65
.4

7
77

2-
00

00
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-3

41
,4

15
.6

1
34

1,
41

5.
61

0.
00

34
1,

41
5.

61
0.

00
77

3-
00

00
-3

40
10

ST
M

P 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
41

,1
54

.6
9

-4
1,

15
4.

69
0.

00
-4

1,
15

4.
69

0.
00

77
4-

00
00

-3
99

06
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

-1
5,

00
0.

00
59

5,
63

3.
00

-6
10

,6
33

.0
0

-2
21

,4
49

.2
5

-3
89

,1
83

.7
5

0.
00

-3
89

,1
83

.7
5

63
.7

3
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

R
ev

en
ue

-5
53

,6
70

.0
0

67
1,

73
9.

00
-1

,2
25

,4
09

.0
0

-9
22

,2
74

.3
7

-3
03

,1
34

.6
3

0.
00

-3
03

,1
34

.6
3

24
.7

4

R
ev

en
ue

-3
,7

89
,5

49
.0

0
1,

48
0,

98
6.

00
-5

,2
70

,5
35

.0
0

-2
,0

46
,1

35
.0

5
-3

,2
24

,3
99

.9
5

0.
00

-3
,2

24
,3

99
.9

5
61

.1
8

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
-3

,7
89

,5
49

.0
0

1,
48

0,
98

6.
00

-5
,2

70
,5

35
.0

0
-2

,0
46

,1
35

.0
5

-3
,2

24
,3

99
.9

5
0.

00
-3

,2
24

,3
99

.9
5

61
.1

8

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

01
/1

3/
20

20
 -

 0
6:

00
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

6-2



  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: January 24, 2020 

FR: Coire Reilly, TDM Program Manager   

RE: Memorandum of Understanding with Metropia 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
    Approve a Memorandum of Understanding with Metropia, Inc. 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Last year, CCTA staff proposed a partnership between WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa and a 
smartphone app developer, Metropia, Inc.  Metropia has been awarded a contract from the  
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to conduct a “Smartphone Travel Incentives Study”. 
The purpose is “to gain a deeper understanding of the factors influencing individual travel 
decisions at different times and for a range of trip purposes.” The focus of this study will be 
the I-80 corridor. 
 
511 Contra Costa has partnered with other app developers in recent years, including Scoop 
and Miles. For these programs, Air District grant funds (TFCA) were used to provide free or 
discounted carpool rides on the Scoop app and gift card incentives on Miles.  
 
Metropia’s app is called GoEZY, and is a multimodal trip planner. An interface collects users’ 
travel patterns and mode choices and then encourages or incentivizes users to opt for 
greener commute modes, such as carpools, transit, or biking. During the pilot process, TFCA 
(Air District) funds will be used to provide monetary incentives to further encourage users to 
switch to greener modes. Since incentivizing commuters to make green choices with 
Measure J TDM and Air District funds (TFCA) is what the 511 Contra Costa Program does, a 
partnership with FHA and Metropia has natural synergies.  
 
Under the agreement, WCCTAC would provide $20,000 to the effort from TFCA grant funds, 
$18,000 for incentives to Contra Costa commuters, and $2,000 to promote the app on social 
media platforms. Metropia has agreed to share anonymized, aggregated data with CCTA and 
WCCTAC.  WCCTAC staff is seeking approval of this MOU to begin providing funding the 
project. This effort is expected to run until June 30, 2020, with an extension to December 31, 
2020 if mutual agreed to by the parties.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Resolution for Memorandum of Understanding  
B. Memorandum of Understanding for Metropia, Inc and WCCTAC 

8-1





WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-01 

 
AUTHORIZING THE WCCTAC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING IN A FORM APPROVED BY GENERAL 
COUNSEL 

 
WHEREAS, WCCTAC has a TDM program, 511 Contra Costa, which aims to reduce 

single occupant vehicle trips in Contra Costa County. 
 
WHEREAS, 511 Contra Costa has successfully partnered with smartphone app-based 

developers in recent years, as a means to encourage app users to switch to alternate commute 
modes 

 
WHEREAS, Metropia, Inc. has been awarded an FWHA grant to conduct a pilot, 

focusing on the I-80 corridor, to study the effectiveness of providing incentives as a means to 
influence individual travel decisions 

 
WHEREAS, 511 Contra Costa and Metropia, Inc seek to partner, where 511 Contra 

Costa would provide monetary and gift incentives to Contra Costa commuters to encourage 
them to choose alternative commute modes and to market the app to Contra Costa residents 
and Metropia Inc would provide a tool for commuters and data from the pilot. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1.  That the Board of Directors of the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory 

Committee does hereby enter into a Memorandum of Understanding which will include the 
provision of TFCA grant funds in an amount not to exceed $20,000, conditioned upon 
Metropia, Inc’s timely execution of the agreement.   

 
2.   The Executive Director (or her designee) is hereby authorized and directed, on 

behalf of the Board of Directors of the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee, 
to execute a Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the West Contra Costa 
Transportation Advisory Committee, in a form approved by the General Counsel, upon timely 
submission by Metropia, Inc of the signed agreement; and 

 
4.  The Executive Director (or her designee) is authorized to make all approvals and take 

all actions necessary or appropriate to carry out and implement the terms of the Memorandum 
of Understanding and to administer the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory 
Committee’s obligations, responsibilities and duties to be performed under the agreement.  
 
The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the WCCTAC Board at a regular meeting on January 
24, 2020 by the following vote: 
 

 
 

8A-1



AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

By:       
 Chris Kelley, Chair 

Attest: 
 
 
       
John Nemeth, Executive Director 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Kristopher Kokotaylo, General Counsel 
 
2416588.1  

8A-2



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into between by and between Metropia Inc., 

hereinafter “Metropia” and the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee, hereinafter 

“WCCTAC” (collectively “the Parties”), to define their understanding concerning their efforts and 

obligations on the Smart Phone Travel Incentives Study (the “Study”). 

Whereas, Metropia is working under FHWA Task Order HOTM180073 Smart Phone Travel Incentives 

Study; and,  

Whereas, WCCTAC desires to support the Study and provide funding to support the study and provide 

incentives; and,   

Whereas, the Parties wish to memorialize their intentions and understanding regarding the efforts and 

commitments under the Study.  

Now, therefore the Parties agrees as follows: 

1. Metropia will use its Total Mobility Platform to perform the three required experiments by 

the Study.  These include: 1) Willingness to Accept (“WTA”); 2) Suggested Tile, and 3) 

Suggest Tile and WTA. The experiments are detailed in Exhibit A. 

2. Metropia will be responsible for conducting the experiments and deliveries under the Task 

Order. 

3. WCCTAC will be responsible for providing, when requested by Metropia, up to $18,000 for 

incentives and $2,000 advertising, during the Pilot Program, which is defined as starting on 

the effective date of this MOU and ending on June 30, 2020. This end date can be extended 

to December 31, 2020 with the mutual agreement of the two parties. The details of how the 

funding will be provided is detailed in Exhibit B hereto. 

4. Metropia will ensure that users who receive WCCTAC-funded incentives are 18 years of age 

or older and either live or work in Contra Costa County. 

5. Metropia will use best efforts to assure that WCCTAC and 511 Contra Costa’s contributions 

to the study are recognized. Metropia will ensure that the Bay Area Air Quality Management 

District (“BAAQMD”) and Contra Contra Transportation Authority (“CCTA”) are recognized to 

their satisfaction as sources of the incentive funding, which originates from Transportation 

Fund for Clean Air (“TFCA”) funds.  

8B-1



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

6. Metropia will provide WCCTAC with the deliverables detailed in Exhibit A 

7. The effective date of this MOU shall commence on the date of the last signatures below and 

extend until June 30, 2020 or until the project is complete, whichever is sooner.  This end 

date can be extended to December 31, 2020 with the mutual agreement of the two parties.   

Either Party may terminate this MOU upon 30 days’ notice. 

8. The exclusive points of contact for this MOU are as follows: 

Metropia    

Vassilis Papayannoulis, Ph.D.  

Vice President 

Metropia, Inc. 

(M) 917-613-997 

Vassilis.papayannoulis@metropia.com 

 

WCCTAC  

Coire Reilly 

TDM Program Manager 

WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa 

(O) 510-210-5932 

creilly@511contracosta.org 

 

Either Party can change the above point of contact by doing so in writing. 

9. At all times during the term of this MOU, Metropia shall be an independent contractor and 

shall not be an agent of WCCTAC.  Metropia shall limit its activities for WCCTAC to the 

obligations and duties specified in this MOU.  Metropia shall have no authority, express or 

implied, to act on behalf of WCCTAC in any capacity whatsoever as an agent.  Metropia shall 

have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this MOU, to bind WCCTAC to any 

obligation whatsoever except as specified in this MOU.  WCCTAC has no responsibility 

whatsoever over the employment, discharge, compensation of or service rendered by an 

employee, subordinate, or associated of Metropia.   

10. Metropia shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled 

checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to charges for services or 

expenditures and disbursements charged to WCCTAC under this MOU for a minimum of 3 

years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to Metropia 

pursuant to this MOU.  Any records or documents that this MOU requires Metropia to 

maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during 

regular business hours, upon oral or written request of WCCTAC.   

8B-2



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

11. Metropia shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations in 

undertaking the obligations set forth under this MOU.  This MOU, its interpretation, and all 

work performed under it, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 

12. Metropia agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless WCCTAC, its directors, officers, 

and employees from any and all suits, claims, actions, liability, losses or damages arising 

directly or indirectly from the use of Metropia’s Total Mobility Platform to perform the 

Study or from the performance of this MOU by Metropia, its officers, employees, and agents 

except where such liability is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of 

WCCTAC, its directors, officers or employees. This indemnification survives termination of 

this MOU. Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for any indirect, consequential, 

Special or Punitive Damages as a result of this MOU. 

13. This MOU is the entire agreement between WCCTAC and Metropia and overrides all prior 

oral and written communications. Any change to this MOU shall be in writing and signed by 

both WCCTAC and Metropia. 

14. Neither Party shall not assign this MOU to another person or entity without first securing 

written consent from the other Party.  All of the terms of this MOU shall be binding upon 

and benefit the parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives. 

15. Either Party’s waiver waiver of any breach or default by the other Party shall not be a waiver 

of any other breach or default.  If a Party consents to an act by the other Party that requires 

its approval,itwill not relieve the other Party from obtaining the Party’s consent for any 

other similar act. 

16. No officer or employee of either Party shall receive, other than their normal salary and 

compensation, any benefit either directly or indirectly, under this MOU.  

17. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this MOU, the 

parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of 

California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District Court for the 

Northern District of California. This MOU can only be modified in writing by the signatures of 

the two parties. 

18. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this MOU is invalid, 

void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this MOU not so adjudged shall remain in full force 

and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this MOU shall not void or 

affect the validity of any other provision of this MOU. 

19. The persons executing this MOU on behalf of the Parties warrant that (i) such party is duly 

organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on 

behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this MOU, such party is formally bound to the 

8B-3



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

provisions of this MOU, and (iv) the entering into this MOU does not violate any provision of 

any other agreement to which said party is bound. 

 

 

AGREEING TO THE ABOVE: 

 

METROPIA                                                                           DATE 

 

WCCTAC      DATE 

 

 

  

8B-4



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

EXHIBIT A: EXPERIMENT DESCRIPTION AND DELIVERABLES 

  Metropia is currently working on Task Order HOTM180073PR Smartphone Travel Incentives Study, 

under FHWA’s IDIQ Operations and Freight contract. As the RFP for the task Order indicated, “This study 

seeks to gain a deeper understanding of the factors influencing individual travel decisions at different 

times and for a range of trip purposes. Of primary interest is learning the degree to which users give 

serious consideration to travel options that have reduced congestion impacts and, if they consider but 

do not ultimately choose such options, to engage in a discovery process to ascertain the degree to which 

certain types and levels of incentives could influence decision making. As envisioned, a 

multimodal/intermodal travel application would be made available to users, who in turn would be 

encouraged to indicate within the app their desired travel destination(s) and then would be presented 

with a series of options where each has at least some reasonable likelihood of satisfying their needs and 

preferences. Over time, it is expected that the options would become better tailored to individuals 

based on user guidance and reported/observed behaviors.  

SMARTPHONE PLATFORM 

Metropia’s TOTAL MOBILITY will be the used as the platform to conduct the experiments related to the 

project. The “conduit” to the user is GoEZY, a robust multimodal and intermodal1 smartphone trip 

planner that allows users to discover all contextually relevant mobility options and is supported by an 

easy-to-use AI-driven interface. GoEZY observes and collects user travel patterns and choices, 

supporting the data needs for Metropia’s AI-based algorithms to learn a user’s behavior. GoEZY is tightly 

integrated with INDUCE, the engagement and behavioral modification engine of TOTAL MOBILITY.   

EXPERIMENTS 

The narrative below provides an overview of the experiments Metropia will be conducting in each 

Smartphone market. It is expected that 2,800-3100 users will need to be recruited for these experiments 

since each user will participate in one only experiment to avoid any cross-correlation effects.  

Experiment #1: Willingness to Accept (WTA) 

To obtain more fine-tuned information on people’s WTA switching modes or departure times, a 

revelation mechanism will be used. Multiple revelation mechanisms exist in the literature, with the more 

common ones being second-price auction, random nth-price auction, English auction, and the Becker-

Degroot-Marschak (BDM) mechanism. Over the years, it has been found that a simple BDM mechanism 

reveals individuals’ bids consistent with the dominant demand-revealing strategy. For the purposes of 

this study, a Second Price Sealed bid auction mechanism will be used since it could reveal people’s value 

of changing their commute in an incentive-compatible way. Second Price Sealed bid auction provides 

more information than a take-it-or-leave-it type of design, because each time individuals are sampled, it 

 
1 Intermodal refers to trips made by different modes such as bus and walk or car and bus (i.e., park & ride trips). 

8B-5



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

provides the value of changing their commute. As a result, there is no need to randomize the monetary-

incentives offers for changing the user’s behavior.  

The user would decide using a slider function to select the minimum WTA to take the second-/third-best 

mode. If the user’s WTA is equal to or below the number chosen by the random generator function, 

then he/she gets that incentive level by switching mode or departure time. If his/her minimum WTA is 

above the number chosen by the random generator function, he/she will not get the incentive level by 

switching mode or departure time. This is an incentive-compatible way to quickly elicit a person’s WTA 

to switch behavior without requiring other bidders or suppliers.  

Experiment #2: Suggestion Tiles 

Traditionally, behavior change is viewed as a single event rather than a process. Arguably, this point of 

view ignores the fact that current behavior is shaped slowly, and changing it requires time. Change in 

behavior, especially habitual behavior, occurs continuously through a cyclical or step-by-step process, 

with each step depending on an individual's readiness to act on a new behavior, and strategies or 

processes to guide the individual through the change. 

The focus of this experiment will be the assessment of non-monetary persuasion mechanisms, the 

comparative proposition of incentives with or without information, and the finding of optimum 

combinations of monetized and non-monetized techniques. As such, different types and steps of 

Suggestion Tiles will be used, and the experiment will target two types of behavior: departure time 

change and mode change (from driving alone to public transit). Throughout the experiment, the 

effectiveness of different strategies for each step will be examined while looking at these steps as an 

incremental improvement toward the main objective.  

Experiment #3: Suggestion Tiles and WTA 

Experiment 3 will pivot off Experiments 1 and 2, and the focus will be the assessment of combining non-

monetary persuasion mechanisms and WTA. As such, different types and steps of Suggestion Tiles will 

be used, and the experiment will target two types of behavior: departure time change and mode change 

(from driving alone to public transit). In contrast to Experiment 2, Experiment 3 will switch to assess a 

user’s WTA value, if the non-monetary persuasion mechanisms fail to change behavior rather than 

provide an alternate monetary incentive. 

DELIVERABLES TO WCCTAC 

Metropia will create an aggregated Trip Roster file with the fields summarized in Table 1. Most of these 

fields are directly obtained from the trajectory information, except the Origin and Destination Traffic 

Analysis Zones (TAZs), which are obtained either by geo-coding the coordinates of each trip or by 

registering (via scripting) the coordinates of each trip with-in the appropriate polygon that defines a 

TAZ. For the purposes this project, data will be geo-coded/registered based on census tract boundaries, 

or another layer agreed upon with WCCTAC and provided by WCCTA 

 

8B-6



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

Table 1: Trip-Based Data Dictionary 

LocalWeekday Day of a week, Monday through Sunday 

BinType Bin 1 includes trajectories collected during a typical work week, Monday through 

Friday 

Bin 2 includes trajectories collected during a typical weekend, Saturday and 

Sunday 

  

StartTime The start time of the time interval. 

EndTime The end time of the time interval. 

StartZone The Census Tract the trip originates from. 

EndZone The Census Tract the trip destines to. 

T (minute) The travel time associated with the trip 

 

The trip roster will be provided in a CSV or other format requested by WCCTA and will be delivered 

within a month after the experiments have been concluded.  

In addition, after receiving permission by FHWA, Metropia will share the analysis conducted based on 

data acquired via the experiments pertaining to WCCTA users. 

  

8B-7



 

 
www.metropia.com 1790 E. River Road, Suite 140  Tucson, AZ  85718 

EXHIBIT B – INCENTIVE AND SOCIAL MEDIA FUNDING SCHEDULE 

 

Metropia, Inc. will submit monthly invoices to WCCTA for advertising and incentives in accordance with 

the limits identified in paragraph 3. 

3464349.1  

8B-8



  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: December 14, 2018 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: West County Express Bus Implementation Plan:  Review of Draft Plan 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Provide feedback to staff with the intent of adopting the final plan at the WCCTAC Board’s 
February meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
WCCTAC undertook the development of the West County Express Bus Implementation Plan 
as a follow up to its West County High Capacity Transit Study (HCTS).  The HCTS identified an 
unmet need for express bus service between parts of West County and Berkeley, Emeryville, 
Oakland and San Francisco.   
 
Additionally, due to the HCTS, WCCTAC successfully advocated for Regional Measure 3 (RM3) 
to include funding for I-80 express bus improvements.  This category includes $25 million to 
be split between AC Transit ($15 million) and WestCAT ($10 million).  RM3 funds are 
currently held up by legal challenges.  
 
WCCTAC applied for, and received, a Caltrans planning grant to develop an express bus 
implementation plan.  WestCAT and AC Transit are partnering with WCCTAC on the plan’s 
development.  In parallel, the CCTA undertook the development of a new Transportation 
Expenditure Plan to be put before the voters in March 2020.  The TEP includes $90 million for 
express bus specifically. Funding for express buses could also come from other TEP funding 
categories. 
 
Together with our project partners, WCCTAC worked with consultant, Kimley-Horn 
Associates, to develop a draft West Contra Costa Express Bus Implementation Plan, attached.  
The draft plan is based on, and summarizes, a series of technical memos (available at 
https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/672) that were developed through the course of 
this planning process. 
 
KEY FINDINGS 
The implementation plan brought multiple issues into focus.   
 

9-1

https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/672


 

Route Prioritization Needed:  There are at least eight routes that the analysis shows could be 
successful express bus routes.  Due to the limited amount of funding foreseeably available, 
prioritization of the routes is needed.  The operators recommended, and the WCCTAC Board 
concurred, to emphasize the quality of routes over the quantity of routes.  Four routes 
serving the largest markets combined with desirable travel time savings were prioritized.   
 
Additional Funding Needed:  The Plan analyzed several possible funding scenarios:  No RM3 
funds, RM3 funds only, RM3 plus TEP funds and RM3, TEP plus additional funds.  RM3 funds 
alone are insufficient to begin operating the four high priority routes.  RM3 serves as an 
important funding source, but as a sole funding source it does not provide enough funds to 
purchase even the required number of buses needed for operating a minimum level of 
service.  If the TEP passes and RM3 stands up to its legal challenges, funding would be 
available to implement high priority service and construct the key supporting infrastructure.  
Implementing longer range capital improvements and/or initiating service of the mid and 
long-range routes would require still additional, currently unidentified funds, however.   
 
Pilot Feasibility:  Due to the existing transit operating environment, it is unlikely that a short-
term pilot project is feasible.  Operators currently have no excess buses, maintenance yard 
capacity or available staff to conduct a quick, short-term, experiment of express bus service.  
Due to the level of support needed to operate a high-quality express bus service, a brief, test 
service option does not appear practical.  However, should new service be implemented, it 
could be adjusted over time to better serve real-world operating conditions by modifying 
schedules, stops, and routing.   
 
Required Lead Time:  Implementing new, high-quality express bus service involves more than 
just putting buses on the road; which themselves can take a few years to procure.  There are 
pieces of supporting infrastructure needed to make express bus service effective.  This 
includes transit signal prioritization, development and/or expansion of transit centers and 
mobility hubs, interchange improvements, etc.  These projects have long lead times and 
require years of planning, time to develop management, and funding.  Continued, on-going, 
active management of the plan’s various components will be needed to reach the full 
implementation phase. 
 
New Approach for Managing Mobility Hubs:  The mobility hubs identified in this plan are 
intended to serve West County residents.  Even with a future of new and evolving 
transportation options, most of the land use in West County will not change significantly in 
the next 20-40 years.  Many residents will continue to live in relatively low-density housing, 
but still need to get to employment sites.  For the foreseeable future, the most efficient 
means of operating express bus service in West County will be to have a series of collection 
points.  Historically, Caltrans has operated park and rides on its right of way, but they have 
expressed little interest in expanding this role and several of the proposed mobility hubs are 
not located on Caltrans property.  MTC is currently experimenting with a park and ride trial, 
but they have expressed interest in larger, regional serving facilities.  If local jurisdictions 
want to support their express bus service, then local jurisdictions and transit agencies may 

9-2



 

need to take the lead in owning, developing, and maintaining locally-serving hubs  The capital 
cost of purchasing the sites can be covered by various sources of funding and the operating 
and maintenance costs are projected to be covered by parking charges.  Local ownership and 
maintenance of similar mobility hubs is not unusual outside of West County.  Danville, 
Lafayette, Napa and Martinez are just a few agencies that own and operate such facilities. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
This planning effort has been useful in identifying the most promising express bus routes in 
detail, as well as the improvements needed to make these routes successful. It also highlights 
that there are many preliminary steps required before new service is operable.  In the very 
near-term, it is WCCTACs intent to present the draft plan to the AC Transit and WestCAT 
Boards of Directors.  In February, WCCTAC staff will return to the Board seeking its approval 
of the final plan. 
 
Below are some additional key steps needed to implement express bus service in West 
County: 
 
Establish an Express Bus Working Group:  Further effort and coordination is needed to 
continue the advancement of express bus service.  Staff recommends that WCCTAC oversee a 
staff-level working group composed of transit operators, with participation of other key 
agency staff, e.g. local jurisdictions, MTC, Caltrans, and CCTA.  Quarterly meetings will 
provide opportunity to discuss implementation. The WCCTAC Board can also be kept 
apprised of progress and can provide direction as needed. 
 
Alert Relevant Agencies:  As soon as practical, WCCTAC must notify agencies such as Caltrans, 
MTC, and local jurisdictions of this plan and its desired capital improvements.  For example, 
Caltrans, Emeryville and Berkeley are in the process of redesigning the Ashby interchange, 
making this an ideal time to alert them to the HOV improvements needed to support express 
bus operations. 
 
Pursue Additional Funding:  A variety of elements still require funding to optimize express bus 
performance.  Even if the TEP passes, additional funds are needed for the design and 
construction of capital improvements, the acquisition of additional buses, operating funds, 
purchasing or leasing land and possibly further planning studies.  WCCTAC and its partners 
must continue to actively pursue grant funding and inclusion in future funding measures. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. January 2020 Draft West County Express Bus Implementation Plan 

 
Appendices available on the Plan’s webpage:  
https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/672  

 

9-3

https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/672




®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

DR
AF

T 
PL

AN
 

JA
NU

AR
Y 

 | 
 2

02
0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

9A-1



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
i

Ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
ts

W
CC

TA
C 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s
M

em
be

r A
ge

nc
y

Di
re

ct
or

Ci
ty

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s

Ch
ris

 K
el

le
y, 

Ch
ai

r

Ci
ty

 o
f P

in
ol

e
Ro

y 
Sw

ea
rin

ge
n,

 V
ic

e 
Ch

ai
r

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

To
m

 B
ut

t

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

Be
n 

Ch
oi

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

De
m

nl
us

 J
oh

ns
on

 II
I

Ci
ty

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

Ri
ta

 X
av

ie
r

Ci
ty

 o
f E

l C
er

rit
o

Ja
ne

t A
be

ls
on

AC
 T

ra
ns

it
H.

 E
. C

hr
is

tia
n 

Pe
ep

le
s

BA
RT

La
te

ef
a 

Si
m

on

W
es

tC
AT

M
au

re
en

 P
ow

er
s

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Jo
hn

 G
io

ia

W
CC

TA
C 

St
af

f
Jo

hn
 N

em
et

h,
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Di
re

ct
or

Le
ah

 G
re

en
bl

at
, P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
Na

th
an

 L
an

da
u,

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t

Li
nd

a 
M

or
ris

, A
C 

Tr
an

si
t

W
in

ga
te

 L
ew

, C
al

tra
ns

Ch
ar

lie
 A

nd
er

so
n,

 W
es

tC
AT

Ro
b 

Th
om

ps
on

, W
es

tC
AT

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
dv

is
or

y 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

Ry
an

 L
au

, A
C 

Tr
an

si
t

Be
th

 T
ho

m
as

, C
ity

 o
f B

er
ke

le
y

Di
an

ne
 Y

ee
, C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y

Al
la

n 
Pa

ng
an

ib
an

, C
ity

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

Co
lin

 P
ie

th
e,

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

Pe
te

r E
ng

el
, C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

Hi
sh

am
 N

oe
im

i, 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

Di
an

a 
Ke

en
a,

 C
ity

 o
f E

m
er

yv
ille

Ha
nk

 P
ha

n,
 C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

M
ik

e 
Ro

be
rts

, C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s

Da
vid

 H
an

ha
m

, C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e

Lo
ri 

Re
es

e-
Br

ow
n,

 C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

De
ne

e 
Ev

an
s,

 C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 T

ea
m

Ki
m

le
y-

Ho
rn

Co
nn

ec
tic

s 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Gr
ou

p

Pl
ac

ew
or

ks

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
An

al
yt

ic
s

9A-2



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
ii

Co
nt

en
ts

EX
EC

UT
IV

E 
SU

M
M

AR
Y 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.IV

1.
 IN

TR
OD

UC
TI

ON
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1

 �
1.

1 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ur

po
se

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

1

 �
1.

2 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ro

ce
ss

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

1

 �
1.

3 
A 

Gu
id

e 
to

 th
is

 D
oc

um
en

t .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

2.
 B

AC
KG

RO
UN

D 
CO

ND
IT

IO
NS

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
2

 �
2.

1 
Pr

io
r S

tu
di

es
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.2

 �
2.

2 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Tr

an
si

t S
er

vi
ce

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

 �
2.

3 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.4

3.
 O

UT
RE

AC
H 

SU
M

M
AR

Y  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.5

 �
3.

1 
Ou

tre
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

1 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

 �
3.

2 
Ou

tre
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

2 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.6

 �
3.

3 
Ou

tre
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

3 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.6

4.
 P

RO
JE

CT
 O

PP
OR

TU
NI

TI
ES

 A
ND

 N
EE

DS
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

7

 �
4.

1 
Ex

pa
nd

in
g 

Tr
an

si
t t

o 
Un

de
rs

er
ve

d 
M

ar
ke

ts
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.7

 �
4.

2 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

Tr
an

si
t O

pt
io

ns
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

7

 �
4.

3 
Pa

ss
en

ge
r C

om
fo

rt 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
7

 �
4.

4 
Pr

io
rit

iz
in

g 
Pe

rs
on

 T
hr

ou
gh

pu
t .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

7

 �
4.

5 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

Tr
an

si
t A

cc
es

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..7

 �
4.

6 
En

ha
nc

in
g 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Am
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.8

 �
4.

7 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Op

er
at

or
 C

on
st

ra
in

ts
  ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

8

 �
4.

8 
Lo

w
er

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Em

is
si

on
s 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.8

 �
4.

9 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l D
en

si
ty

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.8

5.
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

RO
UT

ES
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

9

 �
5.

1 
Ro

ut
e 

Ne
tw

or
k.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

9

 �
5.

2 
Op

er
at

io
na

l P
ar

am
et

er
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
0

 �
5.

3 
Ro

ut
e 

Pr
io

rit
iz

at
io

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
0

 �
5.

4 
Ro

ut
e 

Pr
ofi

le
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

4

6.
 C

AP
IT

AL
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

25

 �
6.

1 
Bu

s 
St

op
 A

m
en

iti
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

6

 �
6.

2 
Tr

an
si

t S
ig

na
l P

rio
rit

y .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
30

 �
6.

3 
Fr

ee
w

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.3
4

 �
6.

5 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

 a
nd

 M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..4
1

 �
6.

6 
Bu

s 
Fl

ee
t A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

9

 �
6.

7 
Op

er
at

or
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

ac
ili

ty
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

1

 �
6.

8 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 C

os
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

51

 �
6.

9 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
an

d 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

52

7.
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 P
LA

N 
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.5
3

 �
7.

1 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

3

 �
7.

2 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

od
el

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

3

8.
 M

AR
KE

TI
NG

 A
ND

 B
RA

ND
IN

G  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.5
5

 �
8.

1 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

Br
an

di
ng

 G
oa

ls
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..5
5

 �
8.

2 
M

es
sa

gi
ng

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..5

5

9.
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 M

ON
IT

OR
IN

G  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

56

10
. N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.5
7

 �
10

.1
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

im
el

in
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

57

 �
10

.2
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

dv
an

ce
m

en
t/P

ol
ic

y 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..5

7

 �
10

.3
 F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
57

 �
10

.4
 A

dv
an

ce
m

en
t o

f C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..5

7

 �
10

.5
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
fo

r R
ou

te
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
59

AP
PE

ND
IC

ES
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.6
0

9A-3



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
iii

Li
st

 o
f F

ig
ur

es

FI
GU

RE
 2

-1
 -

 E
XI

ST
IN

G 
W

ES
T 

CO
UN

TY
 E

XP
RE

SS
 T

RA
NS

IT
 S

ER
VI

CE
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

3

FI
GU

RE
 3

-1
 -

 R
IC

HM
ON

D 
PO

ST
 P

RI
NT

 A
RT

IC
LE

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

5

FI
GU

RE
 3

-3
 -

 T
RA

NS
IT

 C
HA

RA
CT

ER
IS

TI
C 

PR
EF

ER
EN

CE
S 

- 
W

EI
GH

TE
D 

AV
ER

AG
E 

RA
NK

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
5

FI
GU

RE
 3

-2
 –

 P
HO

TO
S 

FR
OM

 R
OU

ND
 1

 O
UT

RE
AC

H  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
5

FI
GU

RE
 3

-4
 –

 P
HO

TO
 F

RO
M

 R
OU

ND
 2

 O
UT

RE
AC

H  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.6

FI
GU

RE
 3

-6
 -

 P
RE

FE
RR

ED
 E

XP
RE

SS
 B

US
 A

M
EN

IT
IE

S  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.6

FI
GU

RE
 3

-5
 –

 P
RO

JE
CT

 O
UT

RE
AC

H 
FL

YE
R  

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.6

FI
GU

RE
 5

-1
 -

 F
UL

L 
SY

ST
EM

 M
AP

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.9

FI
GU

RE
 5

-2
 –

 S
YS

TE
M

 M
AP

 N
EA

R 
TE

RM
 R

OU
TE

S  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
12

FI
GU

RE
 5

-3
 –

 M
ED

IU
M

/L
ON

G 
TE

RM
 R

OU
TE

S 
SY

ST
EM

 M
AP

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
13

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
 -

 C
ON

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

UN
TY

 C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
TS

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

5

FI
GU

RE
 6

-2
 -

 A
LA

M
ED

A 
CO

UN
TY

 C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
T 

PR
OJ

EC
TS

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

5

FI
GU

RE
 6

-3
 -

 S
R-

4/
JO

HN
 M

UI
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

/I-
80

 A
CC

ES
S 

IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
TS

 (F
A1

)  ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.3
6

FI
GU

RE
 6

-4
 -

 R
IC

HM
ON

D 
PA

RK
W

AY
/I-

80
 A

CC
ES

S 
IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 (F

A2
)  

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
37

FI
GU

RE
 6

-5
 -

 S
AN

 P
AB

LO
 D

AM
 R

OA
D/

I-
80

 A
CC

ES
S 

IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
TS

 (F
A3

)  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
38

FI
GU

RE
 6

-6
 -

 A
SH

BY
 A

VE
NU

E/
I-

80
 IN

TE
RC

HA
NG

E 
PR

OJ
EC

T 
M

AP
 (F

A4
)  .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

39

FI
GU

RE
 6

-7
 –

 I-
80

 P
AR

T-
TI

M
E 

TR
AN

SI
T 

LA
NE

S 
(T

L1
)  ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

1

FI
GU

RE
 6

-8
 -

 P
RO

PO
SE

D 
TA

RA
 H

IL
LS

 D
RI

VE
 M

OB
IL

IT
Y 

HU
B,

 O
PT

IO
N 

1 
(M

H1
)  .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.4
3

FI
GU

RE
 6

-9
 -

 P
RO

PO
SE

D 
TA

RA
 H

IL
LS

 D
RI

VE
 M

OB
IL

IT
Y 

HU
B,

 O
PT

IO
N 

2 
(M

H2
)  

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.4
4

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
0 

- 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 S

AN
 P

AB
LO

 D
AM

 R
OA

D 
M

OB
IL

IT
Y 

HU
B 

(M
H3

)  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

45

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
1 

- 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 B

IS
SE

LL
 A

VE
NU

E 
M

OB
IL

IT
Y 

HU
B 

(M
H4

)  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

6

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
2 

- 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 W

RI
GH

T 
AV

EN
UE

 M
OB

IL
IT

Y 
HU

B 
(M

H5
)  .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.4
7

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
3 

- 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 H

ER
CU

LE
S 

TR
AN

SI
T 

CE
NT

ER
 C

AP
AC

IT
Y 

EN
HA

NC
EM

EN
T 

(T
C1

)  
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

8

FI
GU

RE
 6

-1
4 

- 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 R

IC
HM

ON
D 

PA
RK

W
AY

 T
RA

NS
IT

 C
EN

TE
R 

CA
PA

CI
TY

 E
NH

AN
CE

M
EN

T 
(T

C2
)  ..

49

Li
st

 o
f T

ab
le

s

TA
BL

E 
2-

1 
- 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 W
ES

T 
CO

UN
TY

 C
OM

M
UT

ER
 T

RA
NS

IT
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
4

TA
BL

E 
5-

1 
- 

AN
NU

AL
 O

&M
 C

OS
T 

ES
TI

M
AT

ES
 B

Y 
RO

UT
E  .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

10

TA
BL

E 
5-

2 
- 

PR
OP

OS
ED

 C
AS

H 
FA

RE
S 

BY
 R

OU
TE

  ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
0

TA
BL

E 
5-

3 
- 

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 M

AR
KE

T 
SI

ZE
 B

Y 
RO

UT
E  

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

1

TA
BL

E 
5-

4 
- 

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 T

RA
VE

L 
TI

M
ES

 B
Y 

RO
UT

E  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

11

TA
BL

E 
6-

1 
- 

BU
S 

ST
OP

 A
M

EN
IT

Y 
UP

GR
AD

E 
QU

AN
TI

TI
ES

 B
Y 

JU
RI

SD
IC

TI
ON

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.2
6

TA
BL

E 
6-

2 
- 

TS
P 

SI
GN

AL
 U

PG
RA

DE
S 

BY
 S

TR
EE

T 
SE

GM
EN

T  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

1

TA
BL

E 
6-

3 
- 

RE
QU

IR
ED

 B
US

ES
 B

Y 
RO

UT
E 

AN
D 

OP
ER

AT
OR

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

0

TA
BL

E 
6-

4 
- 

AC
 T

RA
NS

IT
 A

ND
 W

ES
TC

AT
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y 

CA
PA

CI
TY

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

52

TA
BL

E 
6-

5 
- 

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

T 
CO

ST
 B

Y 
PR

OJ
EC

T 
TY

PE
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

2

TA
BL

E 
6-

6 
– 

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 C

AP
IT

AL
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

T 
CO

ST
 B

Y 
PR

OJ
EC

T  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

52

AP
PE

ND
IC

ES

A.
 A

NA
LY

TI
CA

L 
M

ET
HO

DO
LO

GI
ES

B.
 B

AC
KG

RO
UN

D 
ST

UD
IE

S 
AN

D 
TR

AV
EL

 D
AT

A 
TE

CH
NI

CA
L 

M
EM

OR
AN

DU
M

C.
 O

UT
RE

AC
H 

SU
M

M
AR

IE
S 

AN
D 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS

D.
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

ST
OP

 A
ND

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

 IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
TS

E.
 C

ON
CE

PT
UA

L 
LA

YO
UT

S 
AN

D 
CO

ST
 E

ST
IM

AT
ES

F. 
BI

CY
CL

E/
PE

DE
ST

RI
AN

 G
AP

S 
AN

AL
YS

IS

G.
 O

PE
RA

TI
ON

S 
AN

D 
M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 M

EM
OR

AN
DU

M

H.
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 P
LA

N

9A-4



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
iv

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y

De
ca

de
s 

of
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

jo
b 

gr
ow

th
 h

as
 c

au
se

d 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 In

te
rs

ta
te

 8
0,

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

no
rth

-s
ou

th
 h

ig
hw

ay
 p

as
si

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y, 
to

 
re

ac
h 

un
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
le

ve
ls

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 (M

TC
), 

w
es

tb
ou

nd
 I-

80
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o-
Oa

kl
an

d 
Ba

y 
Br

id
ge

 is
 th

e 
se

co
nd

-m
os

t c
on

ge
st

ed
 s

eg
m

en
t o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 in
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

. T
ha

t c
on

ge
st

io
n 

is
 a

 
pr

od
uc

t o
f a

 jo
bs

-h
ou

si
ng

 im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 w
hi

ch
 re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y, 
So

la
no

 C
ou

nt
y, 

an
d 

ot
he

r m
or

e 
di

st
an

t a
re

as
 to

 th
e 

no
rth

 a
nd

 
ea

st
 a

re
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 jo
b 

ce
nt

er
s 

in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

As
 a

n 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
te

r-
Co

un
ty

 fl
ow

 a
nd

 th
e 

tre
m

en
do

us
 n

ee
d 

fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

es
, o

f t
he

 1
15

,0
00

 w
or

ke
rs

 th
at

 re
si

de
 w

ith
in

 W
es

te
rn

 C
on

tra
 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty,

 9
5,

00
0 

ar
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. R

ec
en

t i
nfi

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 h
as

 le
d 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

ts
 b

ei
ng

 re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
to

 o
ffi

ce
 o

r r
es

id
en

tia
l s

pa
ce

, f
ew

er
 p

la
ce

s 
to

 p
ar

k,
 a

nd
 w

ha
t p

ar
ki

ng
 re

m
ai

ns
 is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

pr
ic

ed
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 fr
ee

. T
he

 h
ea

vy
 ra

il 
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 R

ap
id

 T
ra

ns
it 

sy
st

em
 (B

AR
T)

 h
as

 o
nl

y 
th

re
e 

st
at

io
ns

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y, 
le

av
in

g 
m

an
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
its

 c
at

ch
m

en
t a

re
a,

 a
nd

 it
s 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

 a
re

 fi
llin

g 
ev

er
 e

ar
lie

r i
n 

th
e 

m
or

ni
ng

. C
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ne

tw
or

k 
an

d 
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
pl

an
s 

w
ith

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y, 
th

e 
W

es
t 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Ad

vis
or

y 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 (W
CC

TA
C)

 h
as

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
so

lu
tio

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t 
hi

gh
-c

ap
ac

ity
 tr

an
si

t c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

jo
b 

ce
nt

er
s 

el
se

w
he

re
 in

 th
e 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

. 

St
em

m
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
20

17
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Hi

gh
 C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y,

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
th

e 
W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

, p
ro

po
se

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

ei
r j

ou
rn

ey
 to

 w
or

k 
fa

st
er

, m
or

e 
co

m
fo

rta
bl

e,
 a

nd
 lo

w
er

-s
tre

ss
. 

Th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

is
 P

la
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

et
te

r c
on

ne
ct

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

gr
ow

in
g 

jo
b 

ce
nt

er
s 

in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Oa
kl

an
d,

 
Em

er
yv

ille
, a

nd
 B

er
ke

le
y, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
im

pr
ov

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o.

 T
he

se
 fo

ur
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ce
nt

er
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

co
m

m
ut

e 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 fo

r 4
5,

00
0 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
or

ke
rs

, n
ea

rly
 h

al
f o

f t
ho

se
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

Co
un

ty.

Th
e 

Pl
an

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ub
lic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 T

hi
s 

ou
tre

ac
h 

to
ok

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f b

ot
h 

su
rv

ey
s 

an
d 

di
re

ct
 

ou
tre

ac
h 

to
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. S
ur

ve
ys

 w
er

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 to
 c

ur
re

nt
 tr

an
si

t r
id

er
s 

an
d 

to
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
w

ho
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

tra
ve

l b
y 

ca
r b

ut
 m

ig
ht

 u
se

 tr
an

si
t i

f i
t t

ra
ve

le
d 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 g
o.

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 w
er

e 
he

ld
 a

t l
ar

ge
 E

as
t B

ay
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
to

 h
ea

r f
ro

m
 c

ur
re

nt
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ho
w

 n
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

 s
er

vic
e 

co
ul

d 
be

st
 s

er
ve

 th
em

. K
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 in
pu

t w
as

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
by

 c
lo

se
ly 

in
vo

lvi
ng

 a
nd

 s
ol

ic
iti

ng
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
bo

di
es

, t
ra

ns
it 

ag
en

ci
es

, a
nd

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 w

ho
se

 c
oo

pe
ra

tio
n 

w
ill 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f t
hi

s 
pl

an
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 q
ua

lit
at

ive
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

id
er

s,
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
tra

ns
it 

m
ar

ke
t a

na
lys

is
 w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 c
on

ne
ct

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
e 

w
ith

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 w

or
k,

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 p

ro
po

se
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 n

um
be

r o
f c

om
m

ut
er

s.

Th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 is

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vid

e 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r t

ra
ve

l m
ar

ke
ts

 n
ot

 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
BA

RT
 o

r t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
. T

he
se

 e
ig

ht
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
 w

ou
ld

 li
nk

 
se

ve
ra

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
(H

er
cu

le
s,

 P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

, a
nd

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Co
un

ty
) w

ith
 jo

b 
ce

nt
er

s 
in

 th
e 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 (B
er

ke
le

y, 
Em

er
yv

ille
, O

ak
la

nd
) a

nd
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. E
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t s

et
 o

f p
ot

en
tia

l r
id

er
s 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vid

e 
va

ry
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 o
f t

im
e 

sa
vin

gs
 o

ve
r e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

an
d 

au
to

m
ob

ile
 o

pt
io

ns
. B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
es

e 
fa

ct
or

s,
 th

e 
ro

ut
es

 w
er

e 
pr

io
rit

ize
d,

 p
la

ci
ng

 th
e 

ro
ut

es
 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t e

st
im

at
ed

 m
ar

ke
t s

ize
 a

nd
 g

re
at

es
t t

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vin
gs

 o
ve

r e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
(in

 e
ss

en
se

 th
e 

bi
gg

es
t b

en
efi

ts
 to

 th
e 

m
os

t 
pe

op
le

) a
t t

he
 to

p.
 T

hi
s 

pr
io

rit
iza

tio
n 

w
as

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

llo
w

 d
ec

is
io

nm
ak

er
s 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 ro

ut
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 b
en

efi
t i

f f
un

di
ng

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 
pr

ec
lu

de
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

ne
tw

or
k.

 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ef

fic
ac

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

es
, a

 s
ui

te
 o

f c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
as

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 S

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 
ne

w
 b

us
 s

to
p 

am
en

iti
es

, w
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

m
fo

rt 
of

 ri
de

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
se

rv
ic

e.
 O

th
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 tr
an

si
t s

ig
na

l p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

), 
fre

ew
ay

 o
n-

ra
m

p 
HO

V 
la

ne
s,

 a
nd

 b
us

-o
n-

sh
ou

ld
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
on

 I-
80

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

tim
e 

th
at

 b
us

es
 s

pe
nd

 d
el

ay
ed

 in
 tr

af
fic

. L
as

tly
, 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 s

ev
er

al
 p

ro
po

se
d 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 w
he

re
 ri

de
rs

 c
ou

ld
 tr

an
sf

er
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ot
he

r t
ra

ve
l m

od
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
 w

ou
ld

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly 
en

ha
nc

e 
tra

ns
it 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y 

to
 a

 
w

id
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 

Fu
nd

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

re
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fr
om

 tw
o 

m
aj

or
 s

ou
rc

es
. H

ow
ev

er
, 

at
 o

f t
he

 w
rit

in
g 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t, 

th
er

e 
is

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 b
ot

h 
pr

im
ar

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s.
 R

eg
io

na
l M

ea
su

re
 3

 (R
M

3)
 

is
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 y
et

-u
nr

es
ol

ve
d 

co
ur

t 
ca

se
 a

nd
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
20

20
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 P
la

n 
(C

CT
A 

TE
P)

 h
as

 y
et

 to
 p

as
s 

th
e 

hu
rd

le
 o

f v
ot

er
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
n 

th
e 

up
co

m
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

0 
ba

llo
t. 

To
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r t
hi

s 
un

ce
rta

in
ty,

 th
e 

Pl
an

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 s

ev
er

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
sc

en
ar

io
s,

 
as

su
m

in
g 

di
ffe

re
nt

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
of

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g.
 In

 th
e 

m
os

t p
os

iti
ve

 s
ce

na
rio

, 
as

su
m

in
g 

th
at

 R
M

3 
su

rv
ive

s 
th

e 
le

ga
l 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
an

d 
th

e 
TE

P 
is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 C
on

tra
 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty

 v
ot

er
s,

 fo
ur

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ei
gh

t r
ou

te
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 a
nd

 
m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ap

ita
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

; t
he

se
 

ro
ut

es
 a

re
 d

en
ot

ed
 a

s 
“N

ea
r-

Te
rm

.” 
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t f
un

di
ng

 fr
om

 e
ith

er
 R

M
3 

or
 th

e 
TE

P 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

er
vic

es
.

Th
e 

pl
an

 c
on

cl
ud

es
 b

y 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 d

is
cr

et
e 

st
ep

s,
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

to
pi

c,
 th

at
 W

CC
TA

C,
 

th
e 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 to
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

Pl
an

 
to

 fr
ui

tio
n.

Ro
ut

e
Te

rm
Or

ig
in

(s
)

De
st

in
at

io
n(

s)
1

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Be
rk

el
ey

2
Ne

ar
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Em
er

yv
ille

 &
 O

ak
la

nd

2A
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Em

er
yv

ille

2B
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Oa

kl
an

d

3
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

Pi
no

le
, T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 v
ia

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
, P

ro
po

se
d 

Ta
ra

 H
ills

 D
r M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b,
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Oa
kl

an
d

4
Ne

ar
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 v

ia
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

, P
ro

po
se

d 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 D

r M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b,

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Sa

le
sf

or
ce

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er

5
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ol

le
ge

, P
ro

po
se

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b
Sa

le
sf

or
ce

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er

6
Ne

ar
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, P
ro

po
se

d 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

Em
er

yv
ille

 &
 O

ak
la

nd

7
Ne

ar
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, P
ro

po
se

d 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

Be
rk

el
ey

8
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

via
 R

um
ril

l B
lvd

, P
ro

po
se

d 
W

rig
ht

 A
ve

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

Oa
kl

an
d

9A-5



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
1

1.
 IN

TR
OD

UC
TI

ON
1.

1 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ur

po
se

Th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rri

do
r i

s 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t c
on

ge
st

ed
 fr

ee
w

ay
s 

in
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

, w
ith

 tr
af

fic
 ja

m
s 

oc
cu

rri
ng

 d
ur

in
g 

al
l p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 d

ay
, 

on
 b

ot
h 

w
ee

kd
ay

s 
an

d 
w

ee
ke

nd
s.

 T
ha

t c
on

ge
st

io
n 

is
 a

 p
ro

du
ct

 o
f a

 jo
bs

-h
ou

si
ng

 im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 w
hi

ch
 re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y, 
So

la
no

 
Co

un
ty,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

or
e 

di
st

an
t a

re
as

 to
 th

e 
no

rth
 a

nd
 e

as
t a

re
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 jo
b 

ce
nt

er
s 

in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

W
hi

le
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 h
as

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

HO
V 

la
ne

, t
ha

t l
an

e 
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
du

e 
to

 h
ig

h 
de

m
an

d 
an

d 
lim

ite
d 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

ga
in

st
 v

io
la

to
rs

. B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 w
or

k 
do

ne
 in

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
ly-

co
m

pl
et

ed
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Hi

gh
 C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y,

 th
e 

W
es

t 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (“
th

e 
Pl

an
”)

 p
ro

po
se

s 
ex

pa
nd

in
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

al
on

g 
th

is
 c

or
rid

or
 to

 p
ro

vid
e 

ro
bu

st
 

tra
ns

it 
al

te
rn

at
ive

s 
to

 d
riv

in
g 

fo
r t

ho
se

 li
vin

g 
in

 W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 o

r S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
. T

he
se

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
tra

ns
it 

op
tio

ns
 w

ill 
al

lo
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
om

m
ut

er
s 

st
uc

k 
in

 tr
af

fic
 to

 tr
av

el
 to

 w
or

k 
in

 a
 le

ss
-s

tre
ss

fu
l, 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

an
ne

r. 
Ad

di
tio

na
lly

, t
ho

ug
h 

m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 d
o 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

co
m

m
ut

e 
via

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it,
 s

ev
er

al
 im

po
rta

nt
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t h

ub
s 

ar
e 

no
t w

el
l-s

er
ve

d 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

 a
 tw

o-
 o

r t
hr

ee
-s

ea
t 

tra
ns

it 
rid

e 
to

 re
ac

h.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 s
er

vic
e 

w
ou

ld
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

in
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
un

ce
rta

in
ty

 c
au

se
d 

by
 m

ul
tip

le
 tr

an
sf

er
s,

 p
ro

vid
in

g 
cu

rre
nt

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

s 
w

ith
 a

 b
et

te
r c

om
m

ut
e 

an
d 

pr
es

en
tin

g 
th

os
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

dr
ivi

ng
 w

ith
 a

 m
or

e 
at

tra
ct

ive
 a

lte
rn

at
ive

.

By
 id

en
tif

yin
g 

th
e 

or
ig

in
s 

an
d 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t u

nm
et

 d
em

an
d 

an
d 

m
ak

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 to
 c

on
ne

ct
 

th
em

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ei

r c
om

pe
tit

ive
ne

ss
, t

hi
s 

pl
an

 a
im

s 
to

 p
ro

vid
e 

cu
rre

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

s 
w

ith
 fa

st
, d

ire
ct

, a
nd

 c
on

ve
ni

en
t e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
w

or
k.

 A
s 

an
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
te

r-
Co

un
ty

 fl
ow

 a
nd

 th
e 

tre
m

en
do

us
 n

ee
d 

fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

es
, o

ve
r 1

15
,0

00
 w

or
ke

rs
 re

si
de

 w
ith

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y, 
95

,0
00

 o
f w

ho
m

 a
re

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

. T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 a
nd

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

to
 a

vo
id

 th
e 

st
re

ss
 o

f s
itt

in
g 

in
 tr

af
fic

, t
he

 fr
us

tra
tio

n 
of

 
se

ar
ch

in
g 

fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
, t

he
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 o

f t
ra

ns
fe

rs
, a

nd
 th

e 
co

st
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 fa

re
s,

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
ei

r t
rip

 to
 w

or
k 

to
 a

 o
ne

-s
ea

t r
id

e 
w

ith
 ti

m
e 

to
 

re
ad

, w
or

k,
 s

le
ep

, t
ex

t, 
an

d 
ca

tc
h 

up
 o

n 
lif

e.

1.
2 

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ro
ce

ss
Th

e 
pl

an
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 in
pu

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 fr
om

 k
ey

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 P

ub
lic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

as
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

tw
o 

ro
un

ds
, d

es
cr

ib
ed

 
in

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
Ch

ap
te

r 3
. S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 in

pu
t w

as
 s

ol
ic

ite
d 

via
 re

gu
la

r m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 tw
o 

gr
ou

ps
: t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 (P

M
T)

 a
nd

 th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
dv

is
or

y 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 (T
AC

). 
Th

e 
PM

T 
w

as
 c

om
po

se
d 

of
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 W
CC

TA
C,

 C
al

tra
ns

, A
C 

Tr
an

si
t, 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

. T
hi

s 
gr

ou
p 

m
et

 ro
ug

hl
y 

ev
er

y 
tw

o 
m

on
th

s 
(w

ith
 a

d-
ho

c 
m

ee
tin

gs
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 a
s 

ne
ed

ed
). 

Th
e 

TA
C,

 w
hi

ch
 m

et
 re

gu
la

rly
 b

ut
 le

ss
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly 

th
an

 th
e 

PM
T, 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 w

id
er

 s
el

ec
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y, 

Al
am

ed
a 

Co
un

ty,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e.

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
W

CC
TA

C 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

at
 s

ev
er

al
 p

oi
nt

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
in

 it
s 

fin
al

 fo
rm

 w
as

 s
um

m
ar

ize
d 

in
 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
W

CC
TA

C,
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t, 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
 B

oa
rd

s 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s.
 

1.
3 

A 
Gu

id
e 

to
 th

is
 D

oc
um

en
t

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t p
re

se
nt

s 
a 

de
ta

ile
d 

pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
or

ig
in

at
in

g 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

se
rv

in
g 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
an

d 
Ea

st
 B

ay
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

rs
 in

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty.

 T
he

 re
po

rt 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
na

lys
es

, t
he

 fu
ll 

ve
rs

io
ns

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
ap

pe
nd

ic
es

. 

Th
e 

Pl
an

 re
co

m
m

en
ds

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 c
on

ne
ct

 c
om

m
ut

er
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

to
 th

ei
r j

ob
s 

in
 O

ak
la

nd
, 

Em
er

yv
ille

, B
er

ke
le

y, 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o.

 T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ro

ut
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 5
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 d
et

ai
ls

 fo
r p

ro
po

se
d 

sc
he

du
le

s,
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ho
ur

s,
 s

pa
n,

 a
nd

 fa
re

s.

To
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
ro

ut
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 5
, a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 p

rio
rit

ize
d 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 6
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 
ex

pa
nd

 a
cc

es
s,

 im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ns

it 
tra

ve
l t

im
es

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y, 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 ri
de

r c
om

fo
rt.

 T
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 b

us
 s

to
p 

am
en

iti
es

, s
ig

na
ls

 th
at

 re
du

ce
 b

us
 w

ai
tin

g 
tim

e,
 n

ew
 la

ne
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
flo

w,
 a

nd
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 ri

de
rs

 to
 

se
am

le
ss

ly 
tra

ns
fe

r b
et

w
ee

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ve

l. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 ro
ut

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, t
hi

s 
re

po
rt 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

• 
Se

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
iza

tio
n 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 o
f p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
to

ps
,

• 
Ou

tre
ac

h 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

ov
er

 tw
o 

ro
un

ds
 to

 s
ol

ic
it 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

rid
er

s,
 p

ot
en

tia
l u

se
rs

, a
nd

 k
ey

 E
as

t B
ay

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
at

 in
pu

t i
m

pa
ct

ed
 th

e 
fin

al
 p

la
n,

• 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 c
lo

se
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 a
nd

 b
ic

yc
le

 g
ap

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

hi
nd

er
 o

r p
re

cl
ud

e 
tra

ve
l b

y 
fo

ot
 o

r b
ic

yc
le

 to
 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
to

ps
,

• 
De

ta
ile

d 
es

tim
at

es
 o

f b
ot

h 
ca

pi
ta

l a
nd

 O
&M

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 a

 p
la

n 
to

 s
ee

k 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
he

m
, a

nd

• 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

br
an

di
ng

 p
la

ns
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
la

un
ch

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 tr
an

si
t r

ou
te

s 
to

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
id

er
s,

 m
an

y 
of

 w
ho

m
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

co
m

m
ut

e 
by

 c
ar

.

Co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t i
s 

a 
se

t o
f i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

ep
s 

fo
r e

ac
h 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n,

 p
ro

vid
in

g 
W

CC
TA

C 
an

d 
tra

ns
it 

op
er

at
or

s 
a 

pl
ay

bo
ok

 fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

9A-6



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
2

2.
 B

AC
KG

RO
UN

D 
CO

ND
IT

IO
NS

2.
1 

Pr
io

r S
tu

di
es

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
pl

an
 w

as
 in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
pr

io
r e

ffo
rts

 in
 th

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rri

do
r. 

Th
os

e 
st

ud
ie

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

su
m

m
ar

ize
d 

be
lo

w.
 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Hi
gh

-C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
(2

01
7)

Th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Hi
gh

 C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
(H

CT
S)

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
a 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 h

ig
h-

ca
pa

ci
ty

 tr
an

si
t o

pt
io

ns
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 e
nh

an
ce

 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y. 

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 tr
an

si
t m

od
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s,

 b
us

 ra
pi

d 
tra

ns
it 

(B
RT

), 
co

m
m

ut
er

 ra
il, 

an
d 

a 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r. 
Th

ro
ug

h 
ex

te
ns

ive
 a

na
lys

is
 

an
d 

ou
tre

ac
h 

to
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l u
se

rs
, o

ne
 o

f t
he

 s
tu

dy
’s

 fi
nd

in
gs

 w
as

 a
n 

un
m

et
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 tr

an
si

t m
ar

ke
t. 

Th
e 

HC
TS

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
a 

co
m

m
ut

er
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ad

va
nc

in
g 

se
ve

ra
l o

f t
he

 a
lte

rn
at

ive
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

an
d 

gr
ow

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

co
m

m
ut

er
 s

er
vic

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s 

an
d 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
rs

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty,
 s

uc
h 

as
 O

ak
la

nd
, E

m
er

yv
ille

, a
nd

 B
er

ke
le

y. 
Th

e 
St

ud
y 

id
en

tifi
ed

 s
ev

er
al

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
at

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

di
re

ct
 a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 I-
80

, 
en

ha
nc

ed
 a

cc
es

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
I-8

0 
an

d 
th

e 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, a
 n

ew
 b

us
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
r n

ea
r M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

I-8
0,

 n
ew

 ra
m

p 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
I-8

0,
 a

nd
 tr

an
si

t s
ig

na
l p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
Sh

or
t-

Ra
ng

e 
Tr

an
si

t P
la

n 
(2

01
6)

AC
 T

ra
ns

it’
s 

20
16

 S
ho

rt-
Ra

ng
e 

Tr
an

si
t P

la
n 

(S
RT

P)
 is

 a
 fe

de
ra

lly
-m

an
da

te
d 

fis
ca

l, 
pl

an
ni

ng
, a

nd
 re

gu
la

to
ry

 d
oc

um
en

t t
ha

t e
va

lu
at

es
 c

ur
re

nt
 

sy
st

em
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, a

nd
 la

ys
 o

ut
 g

oa
ls

 fo
r g

ro
w

in
g 

rid
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r e
xis

tin
g 

rid
er

s.
 T

he
 p

la
n 

id
en

tifi
es

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d,
 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
, a

nd
 th

e 
Ho

llis
 S

tre
et

 c
or

rid
or

 in
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 a
s 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t p

op
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 

in
 th

e 
no

rth
er

n 
ha

lf 
of

 it
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

, m
ak

in
g 

th
em

 c
on

du
ci

ve
 to

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

e.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 p
le

dg
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
Pr

io
rit

y 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t A
re

as
 (P

DA
s)

, B
ay

 A
re

a 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
to

 a
bs

or
b 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
re

gi
on

al
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 th

at
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 s
ee

 in
fil

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Am

on
g 

th
e 

m
an

y 
PD

As
 a

re
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 C

or
rid

or
, R

um
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd
, 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 &
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 C

or
rid

or
s,

 C
en

tra
l R

ic
hm

on
d 

& 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 C
or

rid
or

, a
nd

 S
ou

th
 R

ic
hm

on
d.

 T
he

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
ill 

be
 p

ai
re

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
hi

s 
pl

an
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

ne
xt

 s
te

p 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

dv
an

ci
ng

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 n
ew

 s
er

vic
e.

W
CC

TA
 S

ho
rt

-R
an

ge
 T

ra
ns

it 
Pl

an
 (2

01
6)

Th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

Au
th

or
ity

’s
 (W

es
tC

AT
) S

ho
rt-

Ra
ng

e 
Tr

an
si

t P
la

n 
(S

RT
P)

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 a

 
bl

ue
pr

in
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

’s
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 tr
an

si
t d

em
an

ds
. T

he
 p

la
n 

ou
tli

ne
s 

cu
rre

nt
 s

er
vic

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 id
en

tifi
ed

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 s
er

vic
e 

to
 O

ak
la

nd
/E

m
er

yv
ille

; 
Ly

nx
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 P
in

ol
e 

(th
e 

“L
yn

x”
 e

xp
re

ss
 ro

ut
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

pr
ov

id
es

 s
er

vic
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

He
rc

ul
es

 a
nd

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
); 

se
rv

ic
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ar
ea

; i
nc

re
as

ed
 w

ee
ke

nd
 s

er
vic

e;
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 S

ol
an

o 
Co

un
ty.

 O
ak

la
nd

, E
m

er
yv

ille
, a

nd
 B

er
ke

le
y 

ar
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
s 

ha
vin

g 
a 

st
ro

ng
 c

om
m

ut
er

 
de

m
an

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
. T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f A
.M

. m
or

ni
ng

 tr
ip

s 
in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 a
re

 d
es

tin
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 (p
rim

ar
ily

 to
 O

ak
la

nd
 a

nd
 U

C 
Be

rk
el

ey
) –

 tr
an

si
t u

se
rs

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
tra

ns
fe

r t
o 

BA
RT

 a
t t

he
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 B
AR

T 
st

at
io

n.
 T

he
 S

RT
P 

id
en

tifi
es

 p
ot

en
tia

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r s

er
vic

e 
to

 W
es

t B
er

ke
le

y, 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

Oa
kl

an
d,

 a
nd

 E
m

er
yv

ille
’s

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 d
is

tri
ct

. T
he

 S
RT

P 
al

so
 p

ro
po

se
d 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 

se
rv

ic
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

Pi
no

le
 a

nd
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 in
 th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

. T
hi

s 
Pl

an
 s

er
ve

s 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
es

e 
go

al
s 

by
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 m
ee

t e
xis

tin
g 

ne
ed

s.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 2
01

6 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
St

ud
y 

Up
da

te
Th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t r

ep
re

se
nt

ed
 a

n 
up

da
te

 to
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 S
tu

dy
, c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 2

00
1.

 T
he

 s
tu

dy
 b

rin
gs

 to
ge

th
er

 th
e 

10
 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
W

es
tC

AT
 a

nd
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t, 
op

er
at

in
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 to

 e
nd

or
se

 a
 u

ni
fie

d 
vis

io
n 

fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 s

er
vic

e.
 T

he
 

up
da

te
 a

ls
o 

m
ad

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r t
hr

ee
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

or
rid

or
s.

 T
he

 I-
80

 C
or

rid
or

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 w
as

 id
en

tifi
ed

 a
s 

on
e 

w
he

re
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vin
g 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
an

d 
Oa

kl
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ve
ry

 c
om

pe
tit

ive
 b

y 
20

40
, a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
om

pe
tit

ive
 to

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 a

nd
 W

es
t B

er
ke

le
y. 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
er

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f e
xis

tin
g 

ro
ut

es
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ca

pi
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

ire
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

bu
s 

ra
m

ps
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

I-8
0 

HO
V 

la
ne

s 
so

ut
h 

of
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

.

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 R
ea

ss
es

sm
en

t (
20

13
)

Th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 (R
PT

C)
 is

 a
 fa

ci
lit

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e.
 O

w
ne

d 
by

 C
al

tra
ns

 
an

d 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it,

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
tra

ns
fe

r p
oi

nt
 b

et
w

ee
n 

va
rio

us
 m

od
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 R

PT
C 

is
 

co
m

po
se

d 
of

 a
 p

ar
k 

& 
rid

e 
lo

t (
w

ith
 2

07
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ta
lls

), 
se

ve
n 

sa
w

to
ot

h 
bu

s 
ba

ys
 (s

er
ve

d 
by

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t L

oc
al

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
ba

y 
ro

ut
es

, a
nd

 b
y 

W
es

tC
AT

 L
oc

al
 a

nd
 E

xp
re

ss
 ro

ut
es

), 
an

d 
a 

ca
su

al
 c

ar
po

ol
 p

ic
k-

up
/d

ro
p-

of
f a

re
a.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
re

qu
es

te
d 

a 
st

ud
y 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ho
w

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 m
ig

ht
 b

es
t b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
ss

et
 to

 th
e 

w
id

er
 re

gi
on

, e
nt

ai
lin

g 
an

al
ys

es
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 p
ar

ki
ng

 d
em

an
d,

 re
ta

il 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y, 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 e
xp

an
si

on
, a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l o

ut
lo

ok
. T

he
 fi

na
l r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
w

as
 th

at
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

nfi
gu

ra
tio

n 
be

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

un
til

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

em
an

d 
co

ul
d 

m
ak

e 
an

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
t t

he
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
r fi

na
nc

ia
lly

 fe
as

ib
le

.

9A-7



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
3

2.
2 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t S

er
vi

ce
s

Ex
pr

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
e

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

 b
y 

bo
th

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 W

es
tC

AT
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

op
er

at
or

s.
 W

hi
le

 c
ru

ci
al

ly 
im

po
rta

nt
 to

 th
ou

sa
nd

s 
of

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
co

m
m

ut
er

s,
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 n

o 
ex

pr
es

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
ga

ps
 th

at
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 d

o 
no

t fi
ll, 

no
ta

bl
y 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
to

 tr
av

el
 to

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 v
ia

 tr
an

si
t w

ith
ou

t 
ha

vin
g 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 b

et
w

ee
n 

m
od

es
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

. 

Ex
is

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
is

 s
um

m
ar

ize
d 

be
lo

w
: 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

op
er

at
es

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 “T
ra

ns
ba

y”
 li

ne
s,

 a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 s
er

ve
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 
via

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o-
Oa

kl
an

d 
Ba

y 
Br

id
ge

. S
ev

er
al

 o
f t

he
 T

ra
ns

ba
y 

lin
es

 (G
, H

, L
, a

nd
 L

A)
 s

er
ve

 lo
ca

l 
st

op
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Al

am
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 b
ef

or
e 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

tri
p 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. W
hi

le
 th

e 
ro

ut
es

 
se

rv
e 

th
e 

ar
ea

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 H
illt

op
 M

al
l i

n 
Ri

ch
m

on
d,

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, a

nd
 p

ar
ts

 o
f E

l C
er

rit
o,

 c
en

tra
l a

nd
 

w
es

te
rn

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
do

 n
ot

 re
ce

ive
 a

ny
 T

ra
ns

ba
y 

se
rv

ic
e.

W
es

tC
A

T 
W

es
tC

AT
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

on
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

e 
th

at
 ru

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 th

e 
Ly

nx
, 

th
at

 s
er

ve
s 

st
op

s 
in

 H
er

cu
le

s 
an

d 
th

e 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 b
ef

or
e 

tra
ve

lin
g 

on
 I-

80
 a

nd
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o-

Oa
kl

an
d 

Ba
y 

Br
id

ge
. T

he
 o

pe
ra

to
r’s

 o
th

er
 e

xp
re

ss
 ro

ut
es

 J
L/

JR
 a

nd
 J

X/
JP

X 
ru

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 B

AR
T 

st
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 th
e 

JL
/J

R 
st

op
pi

ng
 a

t R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

. E
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

os
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 P
in

ol
e 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 to
 e

ith
er

 tr
av

el
 n

or
th

 to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r o
r t

o 
tra

ns
fe

r a
t E

l 
Ce

rri
to

 d
el

 N
or

te
 B

AR
T 

st
at

io
n.

 C
om

m
ut

er
s 

in
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 a
nd

 c
en

tra
l R

ic
hm

on
d 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ea
sy

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 e

xp
re

ss
 tr

an
si

t v
ia

 W
es

tC
AT

.

B
A

RT
BA

RT
 p

ro
vid

es
 h

ea
vy

 ra
il 

se
rv

ic
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r i

n 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
to

 N
or

th
 B

er
ke

le
y, 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
, M

ac
Ar

th
ur

 (O
ak

la
nd

), 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

Oa
kl

an
d,

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
, a

nd
 b

ey
on

d.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 th
re

e 
BA

RT
 

st
at

io
ns

 in
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y:
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
, a

nd
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

Pl
az

a.
 W

hi
le

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
st

at
io

n 
is

 th
e 

lin
e 

te
rm

in
us

, E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 S

ta
tio

n 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 fo

r m
an

y 
as

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
lin

e 
du

e 
to

 it
s 

lo
ca

tio
n 

ne
ar

 I-
80

 a
nd

 is
 th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r p
oi

nt
 to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 m
an

y 
bu

s 
lin

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 W
es

tC
AT

 J
L/

JR
 a

nd
 J

X/
JP

X)
. T

he
 s

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
bo

th
 s

ur
fa

ce
 a

nd
 

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
, t

ot
al

lin
g 

ov
er

 2
00

0 
sp

ac
es

, a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
a 

da
ily

 fe
e 

of
 $

3 
fo

r B
AR

T 
rid

er
s.

 A
s 

of
 th

e 
w

rit
in

g 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt,
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t t
yp

ic
al

ly 
fil

ls
 a

t 7
:3

0 
A.

M
. T

ho
ug

h 
th

e 
BA

RT
 tr

ai
ns

 th
em

se
lve

s 
ar

e 
no

t c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
at

 m
ax

im
um

 c
ap

ac
ity

, m
an

y 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 
ar

e 
fo

rc
ed

 to
 s

ta
nd

 a
nd

 c
ro

w
d 

in
to

 th
e 

ce
nt

er
 o

f t
he

 c
ar

, w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
co

m
fo

rta
bl

e 
or

 in
fe

as
ib

le
 fo

r s
om

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

s.
 

C
ap

it
ol

 C
or

ri
do

r Op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

Am
tra

k,
 th

e 
Ca

pi
to

l C
or

rid
or

 tr
ai

n 
lin

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 s

er
vic

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 a
nd

 S
an

 J
os

é 
w

ith
 

st
op

s 
at

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r, 

W
es

t B
er

ke
le

y, 
Em

er
yv

ille
, a

nd
 J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e.
 T

he
 C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s 
ha

s 
pl

an
s 

fo
r a

 C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
 s

to
p 

at
 it

s 
fu

tu
re

 H
er

cu
le

s 
In

te
rm

od
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, l

oc
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
sh

or
e 

of
 S

an
 

Pa
bl

o 
Ba

y 
no

rth
w

es
t o

f t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
. C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 s
er

vic
e 

op
er

at
es

 1
5 

tri
ps

 p
er

 d
ay

 
pe

r d
ire

ct
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 c

or
rid

or
, w

ith
 s

ev
en

 tr
ip

s 
pe

r d
ay

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 S
an

 J
os

é.
 C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 is
 p

ric
ed

 
fo

r l
on

ge
r d

is
ta

nc
e 

tra
ve

l; 
sh

or
t-

di
st

an
ce

 tr
av

el
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
an

d 
ot

he
r E

as
t B

ay
 jo

b 
ce

nt
er

s 
co

st
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

$9
-$

10
, a

 le
ve

l t
ha

t m
ay

 p
ro

hi
bi

tiv
el

y 
ex

pe
ns

ive
 fo

r m
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

id
er

s.
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
 s

um
m

ar
ize

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

in
g 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
t C

ou
nt

y. 
Ta

bl
e 

2-
1 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
da

ily
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, e
xc

lu
di

ng
 C

ap
ita

l C
or

rid
or

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
ce

nt
 d

at
a 

w
as

 n
ot

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 F
ig

ur
e 

2-
1 

- 
Ex

is
tin

g 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Tr

an
si

t S
er

vic
e

9A-8



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
4

2.
3 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
Th

e 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 S
tu

di
es

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
l D

at
a 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

 (f
ou

nd
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B)

, e
va

lu
at

ed
 tr

av
el

 d
em

an
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

 to
 

w
es

te
rn

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 a
nd

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
xp

re
ss

 s
er

vic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

os
t e

ffe
ct

ive
. T

he
 m

em
o’

s 
fin

di
ng

s 
w

er
e 

di
vid

ed
 in

to
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 a
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

re
gi

on
’s

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

de
ns

ity
 a

nd
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s,

 a
nd

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

co
m

m
ut

e 
or

ig
in

s 
an

d 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
.

Ex
is

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
fin

di
ng

s 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
ize

d 
be

lo
w

: 

• 
Ex

is
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 s

er
ve

s 
bo

th
 s

o-
ca

lle
d 

“c
ho

ic
e 

rid
er

s”
 (r

id
er

s 
w

ith
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
n 

au
to

m
ob

ile
 b

ut
 w

ho
 c

ho
os

e 
to

 
rid

e 
tra

ns
it 

an
yw

ay
) a

nd
 “t

ra
ns

it-
de

pe
nd

en
t r

id
er

s”
 (r

id
er

s 
w

ith
ou

t e
as

y 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

n 
au

to
m

ob
ile

).

• 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it’

s 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 ro

ut
es

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 la

rg
el

y 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

n 
ar

te
ria

l-r
un

ni
ng

 m
od

el
 in

 w
hi

ch
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
w

al
k 

fro
m

 h
om

e 
to

 th
ei

r b
us

 s
to

p,
 

ca
pt

ur
e 

a 
la

rg
e 

sh
ar

e 
(o

ve
r 5

0 
pe

rc
en

t) 
of

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l m
ar

ke
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 th
ei

r o
rig

in
 a

nd
 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

st
op

. 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
’s

 L
yn

x 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
ca

pt
ur

es
 n

ea
rly

 5
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

 w
ith

in
 a

 2
.5

-m
ile

 d
riv

in
g 

di
st

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t 

Ce
nt

er
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Sa

le
sf

or
ce

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, t

he
 li

ne
’s

 te
rm

in
us

. 

• 
Ex

is
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

tra
ve

l t
im

es
 a

re
 m

os
t c

om
pe

tit
ive

 w
ith

 a
ut

om
ob

ile
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

es
 w

he
n 

a 
on

e-
se

at
 ri

de
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
in

 c
as

es
 w

he
re

 ri
de

rs
 

ha
ve

 a
 d

es
tin

at
io

n 
ne

ar
 a

 B
AR

T 
st

at
io

n.
 O

th
er

 tr
ip

s 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 m

uc
h 

lo
ng

er
 v

ia
 tr

an
si

t t
ha

n 
via

 a
ut

om
ob

ile
. 

• 
Ar

te
ria

l-r
un

ni
ng

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t T

ra
ns

ba
y 

lin
es

 s
ee

 lo
w

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
on

 th
e 

no
rth

er
n 

en
ds

 o
f t

he
ir 

al
ig

nm
en

ts
, l

ik
el

y 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

fre
ew

ay
 s

eg
m

en
t.

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

re
 s

um
m

ar
ize

d 
be

lo
w

:

• 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

de
ns

ity
, a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 fa

ct
or

 in
 tr

an
si

t p
la

nn
in

g,
 is

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
in

 th
e 

ci
tie

s 
of

 H
er

cu
le

s,
 P

in
ol

e,
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d,
 a

nd
 E

l 
Ce

rri
to

. D
en

si
tie

s 
ar

e 
m

uc
h 

lo
w

er
 n

or
th

 o
f R

od
eo

, w
es

t o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

, a
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

ea
st

 o
f I

-8
0.

• 
Th

er
e 

is
 c

om
pa

ra
tiv

el
y 

lit
tle

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t d
en

si
ty

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y. 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
rs

 o
f t

he
 E

as
t B

ay
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 O
ak

la
nd

, 
Be

rk
el

ey
, a

nd
 E

m
er

yv
ille

.

• 
M

or
e 

th
an

 a
 q

ua
rte

r (
26

.6
 p

er
ce

nt
) o

f W
es

t C
ou

nt
y’s

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

is
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e,
 d

efi
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

U.
S.

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 U
rb

an
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 m
ak

in
g 

be
lo

w
 5

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f a

re
a 

m
ed

ia
n 

in
co

m
e.

• 
W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 7
5.

3 
pe

rc
en

t H
is

pa
ni

c 
or

 n
on

-w
hi

te
. T

he
se

 re
si

de
nt

s 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 li

ve
 in

 th
e 

lo
w

er
-ly

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 

an
d 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
w

es
t o

f t
he

 I-
80

 fr
ee

w
ay

. 

• 
Ne

ar
ly 

on
e 

in
 tw

el
ve

 (7
.8

 p
er

ce
nt

) h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
n 

au
to

m
ob

ile
, h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
ra

te
 in

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 

(5
.6

 p
er

ce
nt

) b
ut

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
(9

.2
 p

er
ce

nt
 in

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Jo
se

-S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
-O

ak
la

nd
 C

om
bi

ne
d 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a)

. T
he

se
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

re
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
 E

l C
er

rit
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 a

nd
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

. 

Th
e 

m
em

o 
al

so
 id

en
tifi

ed
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 c
om

m
ut

e 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

hi
ch

 it
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r p
ot

en
tia

l e
xp

re
ss

 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e:

• 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o

• 
M

ar
ke

t S
tre

et
 C

or
rid

or

• 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l D

is
tri

ct

• 
So

ut
h 

of
 M

ar
ke

t n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
(S

oM
a)

• 
UC

SF
 P

ar
na

ss
us

 C
am

pu
s

• 
No

rth
er

n 
Po

rti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

M
is

si
on

 D
is

tri
ct

• 
Oa

kl
an

d

• 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

• 
Up

to
w

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

• 
Ja

ck
 L

on
do

n 
Sq

ua
re

• 
Br

oa
dw

ay
/M

ac
Ar

th
ur

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 A

re
a

• 
Be

rk
el

ey

• 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

Be
rk

el
ey

• 
UC

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Ca

m
pu

s

• 
No

rth
 B

er
ke

le
y

• 
Be

rk
el

ey
/E

m
er

yv
ille

• 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 a

re
a 

be
tw

ee
n 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 a
nd

 I-
80

 in
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 a
nd

 B
er

ke
le

y

Pr
ov

id
er

Ro
ut

e
Ex

te
nt

s
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r H

ea
dw

ay
s

Av
er

ag
e 

Da
ily

 R
id

er
s

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 

Ro
ut

es

G
El

 C
er

rit
o 

Pl
az

a 
to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 v

ia
 

El
 C

er
rit

o,
 A

lb
an

y, 
Be

rk
el

ey
20

-3
0 

M
in

ut
es

47
1

H
Ea

st
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 v
ia

 
El

 C
er

rit
o,

 K
en

si
ng

to
n,

 B
er

ke
le

y
20

 M
in

ut
es

62
8

L
Pr

in
ce

to
n 

Pl
az

a 
to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 

via
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

15
-1

8 
M

in
ut

es
67

8

LA
Hi

llt
op

 D
r P

ar
k 

& 
Ri

de
 to

 S
an

 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

via
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

15
-2

0 
M

in
ut

es
44

9

To
ta

l
2,

22
6

W
es

tC
AT

 E
xp

re
ss

 a
nd

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 R

ou
te

s

 

JR
/J

L 
Ex

pr
es

s
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 v
ia

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
10

-1
8 

M
in

ut
es

1,
21

1

JX
 E

xp
re

ss
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 v
ia

 I-
80

15
 M

in
ut

es
39

4

JP
X 

Ex
pr

es
s

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 v

ia
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

, I
-8

0
15

 M
in

ut
es

56
4

LY
NX

 T
ra

ns
ba

y
He

rc
ul

es
 to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
15

 M
in

ut
es

1,
11

0

To
ta

l
3,

27
9

BA
RT

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
St

at
io

n
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

to
 D

al
y 

Ci
ty,

 M
illb

ra
e,

 
W

ar
m

 S
pr

in
gs

/S
ou

th
 F

re
em

on
t

7 
M

in
ut

es
4,

13
5

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l 
No

rte
 S

ta
tio

n
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

to
 D

al
y 

Ci
ty,

 M
illb

ra
e,

 
W

ar
m

 S
pr

in
gs

/S
ou

th
 F

re
em

on
t

7 
M

in
ut

es
8,

57
7

No
te

: D
at

a 
fro

m
 2

01
7,

 B
AR

T 
rid

er
sh

ip
 re

fle
ct

s 
da

ily
 s

ta
tio

n 
ex

its

Ta
bl

e 
2-

1 
- 

Ex
is

tin
g 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Co
m

m
ut

er
 T

ra
ns

it 
Se

rv
ic

es

9A-9



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
5

3.
 O

UT
RE

AC
H 

SU
M

M
AR

Y
Tw

o 
ro

un
ds

 o
f p

ub
lic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
. O

ut
re

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
1 

so
lic

ite
d 

in
pu

t 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 g
ui

de
 ro

ut
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
2 

ga
th

er
ed

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
fte

r t
he

 in
iti

al
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 d
ra

ft 
ro

ut
es

 a
nd

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

n 
de

si
re

d 
ro

ut
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 T

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 re

su
lts

 o
f e

ac
h 

ro
un

d 
of

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
ar

e 
de

sc
rib

ed
 b

el
ow

. F
or

 
de

ta
ile

d 
su

m
m

ar
ie

s 
on

 R
ou

nd
s 

1 
an

d 
2 

of
 o

ut
re

ac
h,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 fr

om
 th

os
e 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ef
fo

rts
, s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

C.

 3
.1

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

1
Ou

tre
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

1 
be

ga
n 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

8 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
8.

 T
he

 g
oa

ls
 w

er
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ab

ou
t t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 to

 
so

lic
it 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 o
n 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

Ou
tr

ea
ch

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
Ro

un
d 

1 
of

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
ct

ivi
tie

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

ra
is

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
w

ar
en

es
s.

 T
he

se
 a

ct
ivi

tie
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

:

• 
A 

pr
oj

ec
t w

eb
 p

ag
e 

w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
on

 th
e 

W
CC

TA
C 

w
eb

si
te

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
8.

 T
hi

s 
pa

ge
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

bo
th

 E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

Sp
an

is
h,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

tim
el

in
e,

 a
 li

nk
 

to
 s

ub
sc

rib
e 

to
 th

e 
m

ai
lin

g 
lis

t, 
an

d 
a 

w
ay

 to
 g

ive
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

• 
An

 o
nl

in
e 

su
rv

ey
 (p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 b

ot
h 

En
gl

is
h 

an
d 

Sp
an

is
h)

 a
sk

ed
 b

as
ic

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 ri
de

r 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
s,

 c
om

m
ut

e 
di

re
ct

io
n,

 d
ur

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

od
e 

of
 tr

av
el

. R
es

po
nd

en
ts

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 ra
nk

 fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 in

flu
en

ce
 th

ei
r d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 u

se
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 to

 c
om

m
ut

e.
 

• 
Tw

o 
pr

om
ot

ed
 F

ac
eb

oo
k 

po
st

s 
w

er
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d,
 re

ac
hi

ng
 m

or
e 

th
an

 1
7,

00
0 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
,0

00
 e

ng
ag

em
en

ts
. T

he
se

 p
os

ts
 b

ot
h 

lin
ke

d 
to

 th
e 

on
lin

e 
su

rv
ey

.

• 
A 

pr
oj

ec
t f

ac
t s

he
et

 w
as

 c
re

at
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s,
 c

ivi
c 

in
st

itu
tio

ns
, a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

fa
ct

 s
he

et
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 li
nk

s 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 o
nl

in
e 

su
rv

ey
.

• 
A 

po
st

ca
rd

 d
es

cr
ib

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

n 
br

ie
f w

as
 m

ai
le

d 
to

 m
or

e 
th

an
 2

7,
00

0 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 in
vit

in
g 

re
ci

pi
en

ts
 to

 p
ro

vid
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 v
ia

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 
th

e 
on

lin
e 

su
rv

ey
.

• 
Pr

es
s 

re
le

as
es

 w
er

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 lo
ca

l n
ew

s 
ou

tle
ts

, c
ity

 m
an

ag
er

 n
ew

sl
et

te
rs

, a
nd

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
 c

ou
nc

ils
. 

• 
Po

p-
up

 e
ve

nt
s 

w
er

e 
he

ld
 a

t t
he

 P
in

ol
e 

fa
rm

er
’s

 m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 th

e 
ho

lid
ay

 tr
ee

 li
gh

tin
g 

in
 

He
rc

ul
es

. A
t b

ot
h 

ev
en

ts
 s

ur
ve

ys
 w

er
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 a

nd
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 w

er
e 

en
ga

ge
d.

 

• 
In

-p
er

so
n 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ur
ve

y 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 o
ve

r s
ev

er
al

 d
ay

s 
at

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r, 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 B

AR
T 

St
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

BA
RT

 S
ta

tio
n.

Re
su

lts
Th

e 
su

rv
ey

 s
am

pl
ed

 h
ea

vil
y 

fro
m

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

at
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
rs

 a
nd

 B
AR

T 
st

at
io

ns
. W

hi
le

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 is

 n
ot

 a
 ra

nd
om

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
co

m
m

ut
er

s,
 it

 d
oe

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 s
en

tim
en

ts
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

rid
er

s 
an

d 
th

os
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

Ke
y 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lts

 a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

• 
A 

to
ta

l o
f 4

71
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ur

ve
y, 

94
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f w
ho

m
 li

ve
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

• 
Ov

er
 h

al
f (

52
 p

er
ce

nt
) o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 c
om

m
ut

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

a 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
in

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
. T

he
 n

ex
t-

la
rg

es
t d

es
tin

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

Oa
kl

an
d 

(1
7 

pe
rc

en
t) 

an
d 

Be
rk

el
ey

 (1
3 

pe
rc

en
t).

 

• 
Fo

rty
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 s
pe

nt
 b

et
w

ee
n 

60
-9

0 
m

in
ut

es
 to

 re
ac

h 
th

ei
r c

om
m

ut
e 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
A.

M
. I

n 
th

e 
P.

M
. t

hi
s 

ris
es

 to
 4

4 
pe

rc
en

t. 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

se
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
tra

ns
it 

co
m

m
ut

er
s.

 

• 
A 

m
aj

or
ity

 (5
2 

pe
rc

en
t) 

of
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

illi
ng

 to
 p

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

$2
.5

0 
an

d 
$5

.0
0 

fo
r a

 o
ne

-w
ay

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 
rid

e 
to

 w
or

k 
or

 s
ch

oo
l.

• 
W

he
n 

as
ke

d 
to

 ra
nk

 fa
ct

or
s 

th
ey

 ta
ke

 in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

hi
le

 ri
di

ng
 tr

an
si

t, 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
se

le
ct

ed
 b

us
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y, 

re
lia

bi
lit

y, 
an

d 
sh

or
te

r t
rip

 
du

ra
tio

n 
as

 th
e 

th
re

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rta
nt

.

• 
Re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

as
ke

d 
w

ha
t f

ac
to

rs
 th

ey
 ta

ke
 in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
he

n 
ta

ki
ng

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
si

t a
nd

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 ra
nk

 a
 s

et
 o

f 1
2 

re
sp

on
se

s.
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-3
 s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 th

os
e 

ra
nk

in
gs

, w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 b

ar
s 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
gr

ea
te

r p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

sh
or

te
r b

ar
s 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
lo

w
er

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e.

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-1
 - 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Po

st
 P

rin
t A

rti
cl

e

 F
ig

ur
e 

3-
2 

– 
Ph

ot
os

 fr
om

 R
ou

nd
 1

 O
ut

re
ac

h

 W
ha

t F
ac

to
rs

 d
o 

yo
u 

ta
ke

 in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

he
n 

ta
ki

ng
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

si
t?

 F
ig

ur
e 

3-
3 

- T
ra

ns
it 

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

 P
re

fe
re

nc
es

 -
 W

ei
gh

te
d 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ra
nk

9A-10



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
6

3.
2 

Ou
tr

ea
ch

 R
ou

nd
 2

Ou
tre

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
2 

be
ga

n 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

19
 a

nd
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
19

. T
he

 g
oa

l w
as

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 ra

is
in

g 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 to
 s

ol
ic

it 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

er
vic

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

.

Ou
tr

ea
ch

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
Th

e 
fir

st
 g

oa
l o

f O
ut

re
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

2 
w

as
 to

 in
fo

rm
 m

or
e 

pe
op

le
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

. 
Th

is
 w

as
 d

on
e 

in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
ay

s:

• 
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
eb

si
te

 (p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 b
ot

h 
En

gl
is

h 
an

d 
Sp

an
is

h)
 w

as
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
to

ps
. 

• 
An

 o
nl

in
e 

su
rv

ey
 (p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
Sp

an
is

h)
 a

sk
ed

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 
pl

ac
e 

of
 re

si
de

nc
e 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

co
m

m
ut

e 
ar

riv
al

 a
nd

 d
ep

ar
tu

re
 ti

m
es

, 
an

d 
tra

ve
l m

od
e.

 R
es

po
nd

en
ts

 w
er

e 
as

ke
d 

fo
r t

he
ir 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
or

ig
in

 a
nd

 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
lo

ca
tio

n 
fro

m
 a

 li
st

 th
at

 in
cl

ud
ed

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

st
op

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t.

• 
Th

re
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 F
ac

eb
oo

k 
po

st
s 

w
er

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d,

 re
ac

hi
ng

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 4
,6

00
 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Re
si

de
nt

s.
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 T
AC

 w
er

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 s

ha
re

 th
e 

Fa
ce

bo
ok

 p
os

t u
si

ng
 th

ei
r s

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 T
he

 p
os

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 li

nk
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 s
ur

ve
y.

• 
An

 u
pd

at
ed

 fl
ye

r, 
in

 S
pa

ni
sh

 a
nd

 E
ng

lis
h,

 w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 a
nd

 B
er

ke
le

y, 
an

d 
at

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Ju

ne
te

en
th

 F
es

tiv
al

. 

• 
A 

pr
es

s 
re

le
as

e 
ex

pl
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 p

ro
vid

ed
 to

 1
5 

ne
w

s 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
, C

ity
 M

an
ag

er
 n

ew
sl

et
te

rs
, n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

co
un

ci
ls

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 

in
te

re
st

ed
 p

ar
tie

s.

• 
Fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

p 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

er
e 

he
ld

 a
t s

ev
er

al
 b

us
in

es
se

s:
 N

ov
ar

tis
 (E

m
er

yv
ille

), 
Pi

xa
r (

Em
er

yv
ille

), 
an

d 
RE

I (
Be

rk
el

ey
).

• 
Po

p-
up

 e
ve

nt
s 

w
er

e 
he

ld
 a

t t
he

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Ju

ne
te

en
th

 F
es

tiv
al

 a
nd

 th
e 

He
rc

ul
es

 J
ul

y 
4t

h 
Ev

en
t. 

At
 b

ot
h 

ev
en

ts
 s

ur
ve

ys
 w

er
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 w
er

e 
en

ga
ge

d.
 

Re
su

lts
A 

to
ta

l o
f 7

98
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ur

ve
y. 

Li
ke

ly 
du

e 
to

 m
or

e 
ex

pa
ns

ive
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n,
 th

e 
Ou

tre
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

2 
su

rv
ey

 h
ad

 m
or

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

dr
ive

 th
an

 th
e 

Ou
tre

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
1 

su
rv

ey
. T

hu
s,

 it
 is

 m
or

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 d
o 

no
t 

ye
t c

om
m

ut
e 

by
 tr

an
si

t b
ut

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
w

illi
ng

 to
. S

im
ila

r t
o 

Ou
tre

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
1,

 th
is

 is
 n

ot
 a

 s
ta

tis
tic

al
ly 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

ur
ve

y 
as

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

w
er

e 
se

lf-
se

le
ct

ed
.

• 
A 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

es
po

nd
en

ts
 w

or
k 

in
 e

ith
er

 B
er

ke
le

y 
(2

7 
pe

rc
en

t) 
or

 O
ak

la
nd

 (2
7 

pe
rc

en
t),

 w
ith

 s
m

al
le

r a
m

ou
nt

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 (1

3 
pe

rc
en

t) 
or

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 (1

2 
pe

rc
en

t).
 T

hi
s 

co
nt

ra
st

s 
to

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
Ro

un
d 

1 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

m
or

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
ou

tre
ac

h 
to

 in
tra

-E
as

t B
ay

 c
om

m
ut

er
s.

• 
Tw

o-
th

ird
s 

of
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
(6

7 
pe

rc
en

t) 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 d
riv

e 
al

on
e 

du
rin

g 
th

ei
r c

om
m

ut
e,

 4
4 

pe
rc

en
t f

or
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

tri
p 

an
d 

23
 p

er
ce

nt
 

in
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 a

no
th

er
 m

od
e.

 F
ig

ur
e 

3-
6 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 re
sp

on
de

nt
 p

re
fe

re
nc

e 
fo

r a
m

en
iti

es
.

• 
W

he
n 

as
ke

d 
w

ha
t e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 a

m
en

iti
es

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
id

er
s 

pr
ef

er
re

d,
 th

re
e-

qu
ar

te
rs

 (7
6 

pe
rc

en
t) 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
th

e 
de

si
re

 fo
r r

ea
l-t

im
e 

ar
riv

al
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 N
ea

rly
 tw

o-
th

ird
s 

(6
4 

pe
rc

en
t) 

al
so

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
fa

re
s 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 in

flu
en

ce
 th

ei
r c

ho
ic

e 
to

 ri
de

 a
n 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

(re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 s
el

ec
t m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 a
ns

w
er

). 

• 
Th

e 
su

rv
ey

 re
ac

he
d 

ro
ug

hl
y 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f A
si

an
 a

nd
 B

la
ck

/A
fri

ca
n 

Am
er

ic
an

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

(re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
m

ak
eu

p 
of

 C
on

tra
 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty

), 
w

hi
le

 W
hi

te
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

ov
er

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 (3
6 

pe
rc

en
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 2
4 

pe
rc

en
t 

of
 C

ou
nt

y 
po

pu
la

tio
n)

 a
nd

 H
is

pa
ni

c/
La

tin
o 

pe
op

le
 u

nd
er

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

(1
3 

pe
rc

en
t o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 3
6 

pe
rc

en
t o

f C
ou

nt
y 

po
pu

la
tio

n)
.

Or
ig

in
s

• 
Re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

gi
ve

n 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

to
 s

el
ec

t a
 p

re
fe

rre
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

or
ig

in
 s

to
p 

am
on

g 
th

os
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Pl
an

. F
ou

r-
fif

th
s 

(7
9 

pe
rc

en
t) 

of
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
to

ps
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
ei

r p
re

fe
rre

d 
lo

ca
tio

n;
 2

1 
pe

rc
en

t r
es

po
nd

ed
 th

at
 ‘n

on
e 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e’

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

(th
ou

gh
 o

ve
r h

al
f o

f t
ho

se
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

po
rte

d 
liv

in
g 

in
 c

iti
es

 s
ou

th
 o

f 
Ri

ch
m

on
d,

 m
ea

ni
ng

 th
at

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 w
ou

ld
 li

ke
ly 

no
t b

e 
a 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 c

om
m

ut
e 

op
tio

n)
.

De
st

in
at

io
ns

• 
W

he
n 

as
ke

d 
to

 s
el

ec
t a

 p
re

fe
rre

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
de

st
in

at
io

n,
 3

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f r

es
po

nd
en

ts
 

se
le

ct
ed

 B
er

ke
le

y 
an

d 
30

 p
er

ce
nt

 s
el

ec
te

d 
Oa

kl
an

d.
 S

m
al

le
r n

um
be

rs
 s

el
ec

te
d 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
(1

6 
pe

rc
en

t) 
an

d 
Em

er
yv

ille
 (1

4 
pe

rc
en

t) 
as

 th
ei

r p
re

fe
rre

d 
de

st
in

at
io

n.
 T

en
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
se

le
ct

ed
 a

no
th

er
 d

es
tin

at
io

n.
 

• 
A 

la
rg

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 (9

0 
pe

rc
en

t) 
of

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 s
el

ec
te

d 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

as
 th

ei
r p

re
fe

rre
d 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

fo
r t

he
m

. 

Re
su

lts
• 

Re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

ex
pe

ct
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
fa

st
er

 th
an

, o
r a

t 
le

as
t c

om
pe

tit
ive

 w
ith

, d
riv

in
g.

 

• 
Or

ig
in

s 
w

ith
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
 p

re
fe

rre
d 

by
 a

 la
rg

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e,
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
rte

ria
l r

ou
te

s.
 

• 
W

hi
le

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 s

ee
m

ed
 to

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
 

m
uc

h 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
id

er
 d

em
an

d,
 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f l

ar
ge

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
of

 
em

pl
oy

er
-p

ro
vid

ed
 fr

ee
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

m
ay

 li
m

it 
th

e 
de

si
ra

bi
lit

y 
of

 e
xp

re
ss

 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
. 

• 
Su

rv
ey

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
de

si
re

 fo
r r

ea
l-t

im
e 

ar
riv

al
 d

is
pl

ay
s.

3.
3 

Ou
tr

ea
ch

 R
ou

nd
 3

Ro
un

d 
3 

of
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

w
ill 

fo
cu

s 
on

 s
pr

ea
di

ng
 th

e 
w

or
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

 D
ra

ft 
Pl

an
. I

t w
ill 

co
ns

is
t o

f a
 d

ig
ita

l m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g:

• 
Up

da
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
eb

pa
ge

• 
Se

nd
in

g 
an

 e
bl

as
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t m
ai

lin
g 

lis
t

• 
Re

qu
es

tin
g 

th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
(i.

e.
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
, T

AC
 m

em
be

rs
, a

nd
 la

rg
e 

em
pl

oy
er

s)
 h

el
p 

sp
re

ad
 th

e 
w

or
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

em
ai

l, 
so

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
, 

an
d 

Ne
xt

Do
or

.

• 
Pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
 D

oc
um

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 p

ai
d 

Fa
ce

bo
ok

 p
os

ts

 F
ig

ur
e 

3-
4 

– 
Ph

ot
o 

fro
m

 R
ou

nd
 2

 O
ut

re
ac

h

Fi
gu

re
 3

-5
 –

 P
ro

je
ct

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
Fl

ye
r

Fi
gu

re
 3

-6
 -

 P
re

fe
rre

d 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
Am

en
iti

es

9A-11



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
7

4.
 P

RO
JE

CT
 O

PP
OR

TU
NI

TI
ES

 A
ND

 N
EE

DS
Pr

oj
ec

t n
ee

ds
 w

er
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 s

tu
di

es
, a

na
lys

is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 S
tu

di
es

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
l D

at
a 

M
em

or
an

du
m

, t
w

o 
ro

un
ds

 o
f o

ut
re

ac
h,

 a
nd

 o
ng

oi
ng

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
W

CC
TA

C 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s.

 T
ho

se
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 e
xp

lo
re

d 
in

 fu
rth

er
 d

et
ai

l 
in

 th
e 

ch
ap

te
r b

el
ow

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
th

at
 fo

llo
w.

 

4.
1 

Ex
pa

nd
in

g 
Tr

an
si

t t
o 

Un
de

rs
er

ve
d 

M
ar

ke
ts

Th
e 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 S

tu
di

es
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

l D
at

a 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

no
t w

el
l-s

er
ve

d 
by

 
in

te
rc

ou
nt

y 
tra

ns
it 

op
tio

ns
 (s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

B 
fo

r t
he

 fu
ll 

te
xt

). 
Fu

rth
er

 a
na

lys
is

 e
xa

m
in

ed
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 c

or
rid

or
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
w

er
e 

ho
m

e 
to

 
th

e 
la

rg
es

t n
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 jo

b 
ce

nt
er

s 
(B

er
ke

le
y, 

Em
er

yv
ille

, a
nd

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d)
 a

nd
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. W
es

t 
Co

un
ty

 c
or

rid
or

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

bo
th

 u
nd

er
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

in
te

rc
ou

nt
y 

tra
ns

it 
an

d 
ho

m
e 

to
 a

 la
rg

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f w

or
ke

rs
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 w

er
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:

• 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Jo
hn

 M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay

• 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 a
nd

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

an
d 

ce
nt

ra
l R

ic
hm

on
d

• 
Ru

m
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd
/1

3t
h 

St
re

et
/H

ar
bo

ur
 W

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
an

d 
ce

nt
ra

l R
ic

hm
on

d

Th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

 is
 h

om
e 

to
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 li

vin
g 

w
ith

in
 s

o-
ca

lle
d 

“C
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
f C

on
ce

rn
,” 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
m

po
si

te
 in

de
x 

of
 in

co
m

e,
 

m
in

or
ity

 s
ta

tu
s,

 li
m

ite
d 

En
gl

is
h 

pr
ofi

ci
en

cy
, d

is
ab

ilit
y 

st
at

us
, a

nd
 m

or
e.

 T
he

 s
ub

re
gi

on
 is

 m
aj

or
ity

 n
on

-w
hi

te
 a

nd
 h

om
e 

to
 a

 la
rg

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
or

 n
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
; t

hr
ee

-q
ua

rte
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
is

 a
 m

em
be

r o
f a

 m
in

or
ity

 g
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f c
ar

le
ss

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 is
 h

ig
he

r b
y 

se
ve

ra
l p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
po

in
ts

 th
an

 b
ot

h 
th

at
 o

f t
he

 w
id

er
 c

ou
nt

y. 
Ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

co
rri

do
rs

 id
en

tifi
ed

 a
bo

ve
 e

ith
er

 
pa

ss
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

or
 is

 e
nt

ire
ly 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 M
TC

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
f C

on
ce

rn
. 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d 
an

d 
Be

rk
el

ey
 h

av
e 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly 

be
en

 c
en

te
rs

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Ea

st
 B

ay
. D

ue
 to

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l r

ec
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
Em

er
yv

ille
 h

as
 b

ec
om

e 
ho

m
e 

to
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g 
nu

m
be

r o
f e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 T

ho
ug

h 
it 

is
 s

til
l s

m
al

l r
el

at
ive

 to
 it

s 
ne

ig
hb

or
s,

 it
 is

 u
ni

qu
el

y 
un

de
rs

er
ve

d 
by

 
ex

pr
es

s 
tra

ns
it 

fro
m

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y;

 d
ue

 to
 it

s 
la

ck
 o

f a
 B

AR
T 

st
at

io
n,

 tr
an

si
t c

om
m

ut
er

s 
m

us
t d

is
em

ba
rk

 a
t M

ac
Ar

th
ur

 S
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
ns

fe
r t

o 
th

e 
Em

er
y 

Go
-R

ou
nd

 s
hu

ttl
e.

 

Th
e 

tw
o 

la
rg

es
t t

ra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y, 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, c

ur
re

nt
ly 

se
rv

e 
as

 lo
ca

l h
ub

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l t

ra
ve

l a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

re
gi

on
al

 n
od

es
 fo

r p
ar

k 
& 

rid
e 

tra
ve

l t
o 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
an

d 
Al

am
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 (v
ia

 a
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 B
AR

T 
at

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 

st
at

io
n)

. W
hi

le
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

ts
 a

t t
he

se
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
rs

 a
re

 fu
ll 

or
 n

ea
r c

ap
ac

ity
, a

n 
at

te
m

pt
 w

as
 m

ad
e 

to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

th
es

e 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s 

in
to

 a
ny

 
pr

op
os

ed
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l r

ol
e 

th
ey

 a
lre

ad
y 

pl
ay

 in
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 le
ve

ra
ge

 e
xis

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

4.
2 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
Tr

an
si

t O
pt

io
ns

Th
ou

gh
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

rs
 li

st
ed

 a
bo

ve
 m

ay
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

be
 re

ac
he

d 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
via

 tr
an

si
t, 

ne
ar

ly 
al

l o
f t

he
 tr

ip
s 

re
qu

ire
 a

t l
ea

st
 

on
e 

tra
ns

fe
r. 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 a
 tr

an
si

t r
id

er
 li

vin
g 

in
 P

in
ol

e 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 O
ak

la
nd

 w
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 th

e 
W

es
tC

AT
 J

R 
to

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 S

ta
tio

n,
 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 m

us
t t

ra
ns

fe
r t

o 
BA

RT
 b

ef
or

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 O

ak
la

nd
. T

hi
s 

tra
ns

fe
r i

nt
ro

du
ce

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

ra
ve

l t
im

e,
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 m

is
si

ng
 a

 tr
ai

n,
 

an
d 

co
st

 (r
id

er
s 

tra
ns

fe
rri

ng
 fr

om
 B

AR
T 

to
 W

es
tC

AT
 b

us
es

 p
ay

 a
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
fa

re
 –

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
sc

ou
nt

 w
he

n 
tra

ns
fe

rri
ng

 fr
om

 W
es

tC
AT

 to
 

BA
RT

). 
Ri

de
rs

 h
op

in
g 

to
 tr

av
el

 to
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 o
r W

es
t B

er
ke

le
y, 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 n

ea
rb

y 
BA

RT
 s

ta
tio

ns
, m

us
t t

ra
ns

fe
r t

o 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

us
. T

hi
s 

co
m

po
un

di
ng

 in
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
le

ad
s 

to
 a

 s
itu

at
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 m

os
t o

f t
ho

se
 w

ith
 th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

an
d 

m
ea

ns
 to

 d
riv

e 
sk

ip
 tr

an
si

t a
nd

 c
om

m
ut

e 
by

 c
ar

. 

By
 p

ro
vid

in
g 

si
ng

le
-s

ea
t r

id
es

 fr
om

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
, n

ew
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
, a

nd
 a

rte
ria

l s
to

ps
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

to
 th

e 
jo

b 
ce

nt
er

s 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 th

e 
Ea

st
 

Ba
y 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
ai

m
s 

to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 m
or

e 
co

m
pe

llin
g 

op
tio

n 
th

an
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 a

 c
on

ge
st

ed
 

au
to

 c
om

m
ut

e.
 

4.
3 

Pa
ss

en
ge

r C
om

fo
rt

Hi
gh

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
on

 B
AR

T 
tra

in
s 

an
d 

lim
ite

d 
se

at
in

g 
re

qu
ire

s 
m

os
t p

eo
pl

e 
rid

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

ak
 h

ou
r t

o 
st

an
d,

 a
 s

itu
at

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 m

an
y 

be
 

un
co

m
fo

rta
bl

e 
or

 in
fe

as
ib

le
 fo

r s
om

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

id
er

s.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 s

om
e 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 s
ec

ur
ity

 o
r 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

on
 th

e 
hi

gh
ly-

us
ed

 B
AR

T 
ca

rs
, o

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
bo

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 e

xit
in

g 
at

 e
ac

h 
st

op
. 

Ex
pr

es
s 

bu
se

s 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 w

ith
 p

as
se

ng
er

 c
om

fo
rt 

in
 m

in
d.

 A
ll 

rid
er

s 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 s
it 

do
w

n,
 a

llo
w

in
g 

th
em

 to
 re

ad
, c

at
ch

 u
p 

on
 e

m
ai

l, 
w

at
ch

 
vid

eo
s 

on
 th

ei
r p

ho
ne

, o
r t

ak
e 

a 
na

p.
 T

hi
s 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 h

ig
he

r l
ev

el
 o

f c
om

fo
rt 

an
d 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 fo

r p
ro

du
ct

ivi
ty

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 o
th

er
 tr

an
si

t o
pt

io
ns

.

4.
4 

Pr
io

rit
iz

in
g 

Pe
rs

on
 T

hr
ou

gh
pu

t
A 

fu
lly

-lo
ad

ed
 d

ou
bl

e-
de

ck
er

 c
oa

ch
 b

us
 c

an
 c

ar
ry

 a
t l

ea
st

 8
0 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 in

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
 le

ss
 th

an
 th

re
e 

tim
es

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f a
 s

in
gl

e 
pr

iva
te

 
au

to
m

ob
ile

. D
es

pi
te

 th
is

, i
n 

m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

re
a 

tra
ns

it 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 tr

ea
te

d 
no

 d
iff

er
en

tly
 th

an
 a

ut
om

ob
ile

s,
 a

si
de

 fr
om

 th
ei

r b
ei

ng
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 
to

 u
se

 th
e 

HO
V 

la
ne

. T
hi

s 
fa

ilu
re

 to
 p

rio
rit

ize
 h

ig
h-

ca
pa

ci
ty

 tr
an

si
t r

el
at

ive
 to

 lo
w

-c
ap

ac
ity

 a
ut

om
ob

ile
s 

di
si

nc
en

tiv
ize

s 
us

e 
of

 tr
an

si
t r

el
at

ive
 to

 
pr

iva
te

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 If

 s
om

eo
ne

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ca

r, 
th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

lit
tle

 re
as

on
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

on
e’

s 
co

m
m

ut
e 

an
d 

rid
e 

th
e 

bu
s.

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

on
 th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rri
do

r, 
pr

io
rit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

bu
s 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

 w
ith

 
th

at
 o

f a
ut

om
ob

ile
s 

ei
th

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 la

ne
s 

or
 tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n.
 A

s 
no

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ou

tre
ac

h 
su

rv
ey

 re
su

lts
, s

uc
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

w
ou

ld
 in

ce
nt

ivi
ze

 th
os

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
dr

ivi
ng

 to
 s

w
itc

h 
to

 m
or

e 
sp

ac
e-

ef
fic

ie
nt

 m
od

es
, i

nc
re

as
in

g 
pe

rs
on

-t
hr

ou
gh

pu
t o

n 
th

e 
co

rri
do

r w
ith

ou
t 

re
qu

iri
ng

 c
os

t-
pr

oh
ib

iti
ve

 fr
ee

w
ay

 w
id

en
in

g.
 It

 is
 s

ai
d 

th
at

 th
e 

be
st

 a
dv

er
tis

em
en

t f
or

 th
e 

bu
s 

is
 d

riv
er

s 
w

at
ch

in
g 

it 
pa

ss
 th

em
 w

hi
le

 th
ey

 a
re

 
st

uc
k 

in
 tr

af
fic

.

A 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 d

el
ay

 is
 in

 tr
av

el
in

g 
on

 a
rte

ria
ls

 n
ea

r f
re

ew
ay

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

os
e 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

. P
rio

rit
izi

ng
 b

us
es

 
ar

ou
nd

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 b

en
efi

t i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 tr
an

si
t t

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

ne
ss

.

4.
5 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
Tr

an
si

t A
cc

es
s

Pa
rk

in
g 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
 s

er
ve

s 
as

 a
 li

m
ita

tio
n 

fo
r b

ot
h 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
dr

ive
 a

nd
 fo

r t
ho

se
 w

ho
 tr

av
el

 b
y 

BA
RT

 o
r e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s.
 D

ue
 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

in
fil

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

m
an

y 
pa

rts
 o

f t
he

 E
as

t B
ay

, m
an

y 
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 re

pu
rp

os
ed

 fo
r o

ffi
ce

 s
pa

ce
 a

nd
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
bu

ild
in

gs
. I

n 
so

m
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 E

m
er

yv
ille

, p
ol

ic
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

s 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 o

n-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
al

l-d
ay

 u
se

. T
he

se
 c

ha
ng

es
 s

er
ve

 to
 d

ec
re

as
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f p
ar

ki
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

co
m

m
ut

er
s,

 fo
rc

in
g 

th
em

 to
 s

pe
nd

 m
or

e 
tim

e 
se

ar
ch

in
g 

fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

m
on

ey
 p

ay
in

g 
fo

r i
t. 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

or
e 

hi
gh

 c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

e 
w

ill 
pr

es
en

t p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
lte

rn
at

ive
s 

to
 th

is
.

Pa
rk

in
g 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
 a

ls
o 

ex
is

t a
t t

he
 o

rig
in

 p
oi

nt
s 

of
 e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e.
 E

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

fro
m

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 c
ap

tu
re

s 
a 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l m

ar
ke

t (
i.e

. p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 li
ve

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
w

or
k 

in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

), 
m

an
y 

of
 w

ho
m

 b
oa

rd
 a

t 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 o
r R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
. H

ow
ev

er
, b

ot
h 

of
 th

es
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
ar

e 
lim

ite
d 

in
 th

ei
r a

bi
lit

y 
to

 s
er

ve
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
tra

ns
it 

us
er

s 
w

ho
 a

rri
ve

 v
ia

 a
ut

o.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t, 
w

hi
ch

 m
an

ag
es

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, t
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t fi

lls
 a

t a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
7:

00
 o

n 
w

ee
kd

ay
 m

or
ni

ng
s.

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r’s

 m
an

ag
in

g 
ag

en
cy

, B
AR

T, 
re

po
rts

 th
at

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
eg

ul
ar

ly 
fil

l d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

m
or

ni
ng

 c
om

m
ut

e 
pe

rio
d,

 it
s 

us
ag

e 
ra

te
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

nd
 w

ill 
lik

el
y 

be
gi

n 
to

 re
ac

h 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 in

 th
e 

ne
ar

 fu
tu

re
 if

 c
ur

re
nt

 tr
en

ds
 c

on
tin

ue
. 

W
hi

le
 th

er
e 

is
 lo

ca
l b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, o
nl

y 
a 

su
bs

et
 o

f i
t r

un
s 

at
 h

ig
h 

fre
qu

en
ci

es
. T

he
re

 is
 li

ttl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 e

ith
er

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

r, 
th

e 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
re

a 
la

ck
s 

ne
ar

by
 s

id
ew

al
ks

, a
nd

 
th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 b
ic

yc
le

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

ou
nd

 b
ot

h 
ce

nt
er

s 
ar

e 
no

t s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

ag
es

 a
nd

 a
bi

lit
ie

s.
 B

ic
yc

le
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 n
et

w
or

k 
ga

ps
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 s

er
vic

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n 
w

er
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
F.

 H
ow

ev
er

, d
ue

 to
 th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 la
nd

 u
se

s,
 e

ve
n 

if 
ex

is
tin

g 
bi

ke
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 g
ap

s 
w

er
e 

cl
os

ed
 th

er
e 

w
ou

ld
 s

til
l b

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 tr

an
si

t. 

Du
e 

to
 th

es
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt-

to
-a

dd
re

ss
 c

on
st

ra
in

ts
, n

ew
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 in

 c
on

ce
rt 

w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
m

ob
ilit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t b
ot

h 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
 w

ith
 w

al
k-

up
 s

er
vic

e 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
m

ay
 re

lie
ve

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

at
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r, 
as

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 fo
rm

er
ly 

dr
ov

e 
an

d 
pa

rk
ed

 c
ou

ld
 w

al
k 

fro
m

 th
ei

r h
om

e 
to

 th
e 

bu
s 

st
op

. 

9A-12



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
8

4.
6 

En
ha

nc
in

g 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Am

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

M
an

y 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

a 
la

ck
 b

as
ic

 a
m

en
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 a

 s
he

lte
rs

, b
en

ch
es

, a
nd

 li
gh

tin
g.

 S
ev

er
al

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
co

nc
re

te
 p

as
se

ng
er

 
lo

ad
in

g 
zo

ne
 to

 p
ro

vid
e 

a 
w

ai
tin

g 
ar

ea
 fo

r r
id

er
s 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r u
se

rs
 b

oa
rd

in
g 

th
e 

bu
s.

 P
ro

vid
in

g 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 to

 e
xis

tin
g 

st
op

s 
th

at
 

w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

rid
er

 w
ai

tin
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ill 
fu

rth
er

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 ri

de
rs

hi
p,

 a
 fa

ct
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 th
e 

Ou
tre

ac
h 

Ro
un

d 
2 

su
rv

ey
. 

4.
7 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Op
er

at
or

 C
on

st
ra

in
ts

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 th

at
 m

us
t b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

be
fo

re
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
xp

re
ss

 s
er

vic
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 

Co
un

ty.
 T

he
 s

er
vic

e 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 b

e 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

s 
op

er
at

or
s 

in
 th

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ar

ea
, A

C 
Tr

an
si

t a
nd

 W
es

tC
AT

, b
ot

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 

op
er

at
e 

at
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ro

llin
g 

st
oc

k.

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 S
to

ra
ge

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
AC

 T
ra

ns
it’

s 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Di

vis
io

n 
3 

(D
3)

 fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 lo

ca
te

d 
at

 th
e 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

of
 M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

21
st

 S
tre

et
 in

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
’s

 fa
ci

lit
y 

(it
s 

on
ly 

su
ch

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 y
ar

d)
 is

 o
n 

Pi
no

le
 S

ho
re

s 
Dr

ive
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly 
no

rth
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e.
 B

ot
h 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it’
s 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

’s
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 n
o 

su
rp

lu
s 

bu
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 s
to

ra
ge

 c
ap

ac
ity

, a
nd

 c
an

no
t c

ur
re

nt
ly 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l b

us
es

 w
ith

ou
t 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
or

 re
co

nfi
gu

ra
tio

n.
 T

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
its

 s
to

ra
ge

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

, W
es

tC
AT

 p
la

ns
 a

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y. 
Th

e 
pa

rc
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ya

rd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
an

d 
fu

ll 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fro

m
 R

M
3 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 th
e 

ne
w

 fa
ci

lit
y, 

pe
nd

in
g 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

la
w

su
it 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

. A
C 

Tr
an

si
t h

as
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
, t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

is
 P

la
n,

 a
 p

la
n 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 s

hi
ft 

bu
se

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

ve
ra

l o
f i

ts
 y

ar
ds

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

ap
ac

ity
 a

t t
he

 D
3 

fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 R

ic
hm

on
d.

 

Bu
se

s
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 la

ck
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 in

 th
ei

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 y
ar

ds
, n

ei
th

er
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t n
or

 W
es

tC
AT

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
po

ss
es

se
s 

su
ffi

ci
en

t e
xc

es
s 

ro
llin

g 
st

oc
k 

(b
ey

on
d 

th
ei

r c
ur

re
nt

 b
us

 s
pa

re
 ra

tio
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
) t

o 
be

gi
n 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

 ro
ut

es
. T

he
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 n

ew
 o

r 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
ec

es
si

ta
te

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f n

ew
 b

us
es

. R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r n

ew
 b

us
es

 to
 b

e 
ac

qu
ire

d 
an

d 
th

ei
r c

os
t m

ay
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 C

ha
pt

er
 6

.6
 a

nd
 th

e 
pl

an
 to

 fu
nd

 th
ei

r p
ur

ch
as

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 C

ha
pt

er
 7

. 

4.
8 

Lo
w

er
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Em

is
si

on
s

As
 g

lo
ba

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l l
ea

de
rs

 g
ra

pp
le

 w
ith

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
of

 re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

w
or

ld
’s

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

ou
tp

ut
, t

he
 ro

le
 o

f t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 

to
 

ta
ke

 a
 la

rg
er

 ro
le

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Ai

r R
es

ou
rc

es
 B

oa
rd

, o
ve

r 4
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
’s

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

 o
rig

in
at

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
se

ct
or

, t
he

 li
on

’s
 s

ha
re

 o
f w

hi
ch

 is
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 ta
ilp

ip
e 

em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 p

er
so

na
l v

eh
ic

le
s.

 M
an

y 
st

ep
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

at
 lo

ng
-d

is
ta

nc
e 

co
m

m
ut

in
g 

in
 th

e 
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 h

as
 o

n 
th

e 
gl

ob
al

 c
lim

at
e,

 b
ut

 o
ne

 o
f t

ho
se

 s
te

ps
 is

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
ha

ve
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 lo
w

-c
ar

bo
n 

fo
rm

s 
of

 tr
an

si
t. 

A 
fu

ll 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
ca

rr
yin

g 
up

w
ar

d 
of

 8
0 

pe
op

le
 h

as
 a

 m
uc

h 
lo

w
er

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
ot

pr
in

t t
ha

n 
th

os
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

op
le

 tr
av

el
in

g 
in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ca

rs
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 a

s 
ba

tte
ry

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 im

pr
ov

es
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

fo
r p

ar
tia

l o
r t

ot
al

 e
le

ct
rifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 fl
ee

t, 
fu

rth
er

 re
du

ci
ng

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s.
 

4.
9 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l D

en
si

ty
M

uc
h 

of
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 c
om

po
se

d 
of

 in
ne

r-
rin

g 
su

bu
rb

s,
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ize
d 

by
 s

in
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
 o

n 
sm

al
l p

ar
ce

ls
 in

te
rs

pe
rs

ed
 w

ith
 

so
m

e 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. W
hi

le
 m

an
y 

po
rti

on
s 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
w

es
t o

f I
-8

0 
ar

e 
on

 g
rid

de
d 

st
re

et
s,

 th
e 

ro
ad

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
ea

st
 

of
 I-

80
 is

 w
in

di
ng

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ra

in
ed

 b
y 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
. B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 la
ck

 o
f d

en
se

, m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

tim
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 tr
av

er
se

 m
an

y 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
st

re
et

s,
 it

 is
 fa

r m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 fo

r c
om

m
ut

er
s 

to
 tr

av
el

 to
 a

 c
en

tra
l p

oi
nt

 a
nd

 b
e 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
by

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
tra

ns
it 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 

re
ce

ivi
ng

 d
oo

r-
to

-d
oo

r t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

- 
to

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 fu

tu
re

 w
ith

 th
e 

ad
ve

nt
 o

f a
ut

on
om

ou
s 

sh
ut

tle
s,

 b
ut

 a
s 

of
 th

e 
w

rit
in

g 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
th

e 
tim

el
in

e 
fo

r t
ha

t s
ee

m
s 

fa
r f

ro
m

 c
er

ta
in

.

9A-13



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
9

5.
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

RO
UT

ES
Th

is
 c

ha
pt

er
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r n
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
, t

he
 p

ha
si

ng
 o

f t
he

ir 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 th
ei

r s
er

vic
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 C

ha
pt

er
 5

.4
 p

ro
vid

es
 d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
ofi

le
s 

of
 e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

or
ig

in
s,

 d
es

tin
at

io
n,

 tr
an

si
t c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
al

l c
os

ts
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 it

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

n.

5.
1 

Ro
ut

e 
Ne

tw
or

k
A 

se
rie

s 
of

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
ro

ut
es

 w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

tra
ve

l m
ar

ke
t a

na
lys

is
, f

ee
db

ac
k 

fro
m

 p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h,

 a
nd

 in
pu

t f
ro

m
 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s.

 

Or
ig

in
s

On
 th

e 
or

ig
in

 s
id

e 
(W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)
, r

ou
te

s 
w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 s
er

ve
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s 

(H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r, 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

), 
m

aj
or

 a
rte

ria
ls

 (S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e,
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
, M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e,

 R
um

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

/H
ar

bo
ur

 W
ay

), 
an

d 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 
pr

op
os

ed
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
. M

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

as
 a

 m
ea

ns
 o

f e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 a

gg
re

ga
tin

g 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f r

id
er

s,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 c

rit
ic

al
 g

ive
n 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

la
ck

 o
f h

ig
h-

de
ns

ity
 h

ou
si

ng
, c

ou
pl

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
lim

ite
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
 in

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
er

vic
e 

ar
ea

. I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 p
ro

vid
e 

an
 e

ffi
ci

en
t a

nd
 fa

st
 s

er
vic

e,
 ro

ut
es

 s
er

vin
g 

ar
te

ria
l s

eg
m

en
ts

 w
ill 

st
op

 a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
ev

er
y 

ha
lf-

m
ile

, u
si

ng
 e

xis
tin

g 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

. T
hi

s 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
to

p 
sp

ac
in

g 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
’s

 S
ho

rt 
Ra

ng
e 

Tr
an

si
t P

la
n.

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
lig

nm
en

t
Be

tw
ee

n 
or

ig
in

 a
nd

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

se
gm

en
ts

, a
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 w

ou
ld

 u
se

 th
e 

I-8
0 

fre
ew

ay
, e

m
pl

oy
in

g 
th

e 
HO

V 
la

ne
s 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
po

ss
ib

le
. R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 in
cl

ud
es

 d
ire

ct
 a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

 to
 I-

80
 H

OV
 la

ne
s 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e.

 T
hi

s 
al

lo
w

s 
bu

se
s 

to
 a

vo
id

 h
av

in
g 

to
 

m
er

ge
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l l
an

es
 o

f h
ea

vil
y 

co
ng

es
te

d 
I-8

0,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
fo

r d
riv

er
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 re
su

lt 
in

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

pe
na

lti
es

. T
he

re
fo

re
, r

ou
te

 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 in

 p
ar

t t
o 

le
ve

ra
ge

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 th

e 
di

re
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

ra
m

ps
. C

ha
pt

er
 6

.4
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Tr
an

si
t L

an
es

 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 b

us
es

 to
 tr

av
el

 in
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 a
ux

ilia
ry

 la
ne

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

sh
ou

ld
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

, a
 s

eg
m

en
t a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

th
re

e 
m

ile
s 

in
 le

ng
th

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

bo
th

 s
er

ve
 R

PT
C 

an
d 

us
e 

th
e 

di
re

ct
 a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

. T
he

re
 a

re
 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

is
su

es
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

ra
te

s 
of

 H
OV

 la
ne

 v
io

la
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t. 

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
, a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
ef

fo
rt 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 b
et

w
ee

n 
W

CC
TA

C 
an

d 
M

TC
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Hi
gh

w
ay

 P
at

ro
l (

CH
P)

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 th

er
eb

y 
im

pr
ov

e 
HO

V 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

Af
te

r t
ra

ve
lin

g 
on

 I-
80

, t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 a
rte

ria
ls

 in
 B

er
ke

le
y, 

Em
er

yv
ille

, O
ak

la
nd

 w
ith

 s
to

ps
 ro

ug
hl

y 
ev

er
y 

ha
lf-

m
ile

, a
nd

 th
e 

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. E
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
m

ar
ke

ts
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 ro
ut

e,
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 ro
ut

es
 2

 a
nd

 6
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 O

ak
la

nd
 v

ia
 E

m
er

yv
ille

. 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
 s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
ei

gh
t p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
, n

um
be

re
d 

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
8.

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 R

ou
te

 2
 is

 s
pl

it 
in

to
 2

A 
an

d 
2B

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty.
 T

hi
s 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 g
oa

l o
f s

er
vin

g 
Oa

kl
an

d 
an

d 
Em

er
yv

ille
 w

ith
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

ro
ut

es
 o

rig
in

at
in

g 
fro

m
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r. 
In

 th
e 

ne
ar

 
te

rm
, R

ou
te

 2
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
se

rv
e 

Oa
kl

an
d 

via
 E

m
er

yv
ille

.

 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
 -

 F
ul

l S
ys

te
m

 M
ap

9A-14



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
10

5.
2 

Op
er

at
io

na
l P

ar
am

et
er

s

Op
er

at
io

na
l A

pp
ro

ac
h

W
es

tC
AT

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
op

er
at

es
 s

er
vic

e 
pr

im
ar

ily
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Hi
llt

op
 M

al
l i

n 
no

rth
er

n 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

an
d 

th
e 

Ca
rq

ui
ne

z 
Br

id
ge

 n
ea

r C
ro

ck
et

t. 
Th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
f P

in
ol

e,
 H

er
cu

le
s,

 R
od

eo
, T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

, a
nd

 E
l S

ob
ra

nt
e.

 A
s 

no
te

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly,

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
ex

te
nd

s 
in

to
 E

l 
Ce

rri
to

 a
nd

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
. W

es
tC

AT
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
 fo

r a
ny

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 P
la

n 
or

ig
in

at
in

g 
in

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 
w

ith
in

 it
s 

cu
rre

nt
 s

er
vic

e 
ar

ea
.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
op

er
at

es
 s

er
vic

e 
in

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
(H

illt
op

 M
al

l a
nd

 s
ou

th
), 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 
Al

am
ed

a 
Co

un
ty.

 S
om

e 
of

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
’s

 ro
ut

es
 e

xt
en

d 
in

to
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 C

ou
nt

y. 
Ad

di
tio

na
l e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
op

er
at

es
 in

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. A
C 

Tr
an

si
t i

s 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

 fo
r a

ny
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 P

la
n 

or
ig

in
at

in
g 

in
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 it
s 

cu
rre

nt
 s

er
vic

e 
ar

ea
.

Se
rv

ic
e 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 in

iti
al

ly 
op

er
at

e 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

-p
er

io
ds

 o
nl

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 in

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 a
nd

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
. 

In
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
r w

he
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

al
lo

w
s,

 s
er

vic
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

ll-
da

y. 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

op
er

at
es

 it
s 

Tr
an

sb
ay

 s
er

vic
e 

in
 th

e 
pe

ak
-d

ire
ct

io
n 

on
ly,

 w
hi

le
 W

es
tC

AT
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

al
l o

f i
ts

 s
er

vic
es

 in
 b

ot
h 

di
re

ct
io

ns
. T

he
 c

os
t a

na
lys

is
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t a

ss
um

es
 p

ea
k-

di
re

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

ly,
 b

ut
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 m
ay

 c
ho

os
e 

to
 o

pe
ra

te
 b

i-d
ire

ct
io

na
l s

er
vic

e,
 w

ith
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 c
os

t i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. A

n 
Op

er
at

in
g 

Pl
an

 w
ith

 
de

ta
ile

d 
sc

he
du

le
s,

 fr
eq

ue
nc

ie
s,

 fa
re

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, f
ar

eb
ox

 re
ve

nu
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, a
nd

 c
os

ts
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

G.

Sp
an

Fo
r t

he
 p

la
nn

ed
 p

ea
k-

pe
rio

d 
on

ly 
se

rv
ic

e,
 s

ou
th

bo
un

d 
A.

M
. s

er
vic

e 
w

ou
ld

 o
pe

ra
te

 b
et

w
ee

n 
5:

00
 A

.M
. a

nd
 9

:0
0 

A.
M

. N
or

th
bo

un
d 

re
tu

rn
 tr

ip
 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ou

ld
 o

pe
ra

te
 b

et
w

ee
n 

3:
00

 P
.M

. a
nd

 7
:0

0 
P.

M
. A

dd
iti

on
al

 o
ff-

pe
ak

 m
id

-d
ay

 s
er

vic
e 

w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d;

 ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
at

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 o

ff-
pe

ak
 tr

ip
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
G.

 H
ow

ev
er

, a
ll 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 c

os
t e

st
im

at
es

 a
ss

um
e 

pe
ak

-o
nl

y 
se

rv
ic

e.

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y
Al

l r
ou

te
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 o

n 
15

- 
to

 3
0-

m
in

ut
e 

pe
ak

 h
ea

dw
ay

s.
 D

ur
in

g 
bo

th
 A

.M
. a

nd
 P

.M
. p

er
io

ds
, s

er
vic

e 
w

ou
ld

 ru
n 

at
 1

5-
m

in
ut

e 
he

ad
w

ay
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

ak
 o

f t
he

 p
ea

k 
(6

:3
0 

A.
M

. t
o 

8:
30

 A
.M

. a
nd

 4
:0

0 
P.

M
. t

o 
6:

00
 P

.M
.).

 A
t a

ll 
ot

he
r t

im
es

, b
us

es
 w

ou
ld

 a
rri

ve
 e

ve
ry

 2
0 

to
 

30
 m

in
ut

es
. P

ot
en

tia
l m

id
da

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
op

er
at

ed
 w

ith
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 fr

eq
ue

nc
ie

s 
ra

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 1

20
 m

in
ut

es
 to

 
15

0 
m

in
ut

es
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
he

 ro
ut

e.
 

O&
M

 C
os

ts
Op

er
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (O
&M

) c
os

ts
 w

ou
ld

 v
ar

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
ro

ut
es

 g
ive

n 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 in
 ro

ut
e 

le
ng

th
, fl

ee
t s

ize
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
ro

ut
e,

 
an

d 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
 s

er
vin

g 
th

e 
ro

ut
e.

 E
st

im
at

ed
 O

&M
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 T

ab
le

 5
-1

. A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

se
 e

st
im

at
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
G.

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1 
- 

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

 b
y 

Ro
ut

e

Fa
re

s
Fa

re
s 

w
er

e 
se

t b
y 

ex
am

in
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
fa

re
s 

ch
ar

ge
d 

by
 W

es
tC

AT
 a

nd
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t. 
Fo

r R
ou

te
s 

1,
 2

, a
nd

 3
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
W

es
tC

AT
, 

a 
fa

re
 o

f $
3.

50
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d,
 s

et
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f W

es
tC

AT
’s

 lo
ca

l s
er

vic
e 

($
1.

75
) a

nd
 it

s 
Ly

nx
 s

er
vic

e 
to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 ($

5.
00

). 
Ro

ut
e 

4,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 ru

n 
fro

m
 P

in
ol

e 
an

d 
th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
, a

 $
5.

00
 fa

re
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d,
 e

qu
iva

le
nt

 to
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 L
yn

x 
fa

re
.

Ro
ut

es
 5

, 6
, 7

, a
nd

 8
, w

ou
ld

 b
e 

op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it.
 F

or
 R

ou
te

 5
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 ru

n 
fro

m
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 a
nd

 E
l S

ob
ra

nt
e 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, a
 fa

re
 

of
 $

5.
50

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d,

 e
qu

iva
le

nt
 to

 c
ur

re
nt

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t T

ra
ns

ba
y 

ro
ut

es
. R

ou
te

s 
6,

 7
, a

nd
 8

, a
lth

ou
gh

 ru
nn

in
g 

on
 I-

80
, h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r e
nd

-
to

-e
nd

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
as

 e
xis

tin
g 

re
gi

on
al

 ro
ut

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
1R

 a
nd

 7
2R

, a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ca

sh
 fa

re
 o

f $
2.

50
. 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 d
is

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 fr

eq
ue

nt
 ri

de
r i

nc
en

tiv
es

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
si

m
ila

r t
o 

cu
rre

nt
 s

er
vic

es
. I

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
n,

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
H,

 
fa

re
s 

ar
e 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
f i

nfl
at

io
n 

(p
eg

ge
d 

to
 th

e 
Co

ns
um

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x,
 o

r C
PI

). 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fa

re
s 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e,
 

sh
ow

n 
in

 T
ab

le
 5

-2
, a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 y
ea

r o
f t

he
 P

la
n 

an
d 

ar
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
in

 2
02

0 
do

lla
rs

. F
or

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 
fo

r d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
pr

op
os

ed
 ro

ut
e 

fa
re

s,
 s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

G.

Ta
bl

e 
5-

2 
- 

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
as

h 
Fa

re
s 

by
 R

ou
te

 

5.
3 

Ro
ut

e 
Pr

io
rit

iz
at

io
n

As
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 7
, t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l f

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

Pl
an

 is
 h

ig
hl

y 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

. I
f f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 

RM
3,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly 
to

 s
ur

viv
e 

its
 le

ga
l c

ha
lle

ng
e,

 a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

CC
TA

 T
EP

, w
hi

ch
 is

 s
til

l d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

vo
te

r a
pp

ro
va

l, 
is

 o
bt

ai
ne

d,
 c

ap
ita

l 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r f
ou

r r
ou

te
s 

w
ill 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 T
o 

gu
id

e 
ro

ut
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 ro

ut
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ivi
de

d 
in

to
 tw

o 
gr

ou
ps

, o
ne

 to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

ne
ar

 te
rm

 a
nd

 th
e 

ot
he

r t
o 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

/lo
ng

 te
rm

 a
s 

m
or

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
be

co
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
hi

s 
pr

io
rit

iza
tio

n 
w

as
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

a 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

m
ar

ke
t d

em
an

d 
an

d 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

ne
ss

 o
ve

r e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it/
au

to
 tr

av
el

. G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n,

 e
qu

ity
, 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 o
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

or
 o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
er

e 
al

so
 q

ua
lit

at
ive

ly 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

iza
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

Ex
is

tin
g 

M
ar

ke
t D

em
an

d
An

 e
st

im
at

io
n 

of
 tr

av
el

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e’
s 

al
ig

nm
en

t w
as

 m
ad

e,
 re

fe
rre

d 
to

 h
er

e 
as

 th
e 

“m
ar

ke
t s

ize
.” 

Th
e 

m
ar

ke
t s

ize
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e 

is
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

:

(1
) L

ive
 w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
n 

or
ig

in
 b

us
 s

to
p 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ro

ut
e 

or
 

(2
) L

ive
 w

ith
in

 s
ho

rt 
dr

ivi
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

or
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
/m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
an

d 

(3
) W

or
k 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

bu
s 

st
op

 s
er

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
ro

ut
e.

Ro
ut

e
Op

er
at

or
Ca

sh
 F

ar
e

1 

W
es

tC
AT

$3
.5

0 

2 
$3

.5
0 

2A
$3

.5
0 

2B
$3

.5
0 

3 
$3

.5
0 

4 
$5

.0
0 

5 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

$5
.5

0 

6 
$2

.5
0 

7 
$2

.5
0 

8 
$2

.5
0 

No
te

: A
ll 

fa
re

s 
re

fle
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

 fa
re

 le
ve

ls
. F

ar
es

 a
re

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 w

ith
 in

fla
tio

n

No
te

: A
ll 

co
st

s 
in

 2
02

0 
do

lla
rs

Ro
ut

e
Op

er
at

or
Pe

ak
 O

nl
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

Pe
ak

 &
 M

id
da

y 
Se

rv
ic

e
1

W
es

tC
AT

$9
72

,0
00

$1
,0

97
,0

00

2
$1

,1
80

,0
00

 
$1

,3
26

,0
00

 

2A
$1

,0
97

,0
00

 
$1

,2
22

,0
00

 

2B
$1

,0
98

,0
00

 
$1

,0
98

,0
00

 

3
$1

,0
37

,0
00

 
$1

,1
59

,0
00

 

4
$1

,0
78

,0
00

 
$1

,2
16

,0
00

 

5

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

$1
,6

50
,0

00
 

$1
,8

81
,0

00
 

6
$1

,6
03

,0
00

 
$1

,7
96

,0
00

 

7
$1

,5
08

,0
00

 
$1

,7
01

,0
00

 

8
$1

,6
55

,0
00

 
$1

,8
42

,0
00

9A-15



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
11

Th
is

 a
na

lys
is

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 u

si
ng

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 th

e 
Lo

ng
itu

di
na

l E
m

pl
oy

er
-H

ou
si

ng
 D

yn
am

ic
 (L

EH
D)

 p
ro

gr
am

 (2
01

7 
da

ta
), 

a 
pr

od
uc

t o
f t

he
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s,
 w

hi
ch

 u
se

s 
su

rv
ey

 d
at

a 
to

 e
st

im
at

e 
th

e 
pl

ac
e 

of
 re

si
de

nc
e 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
w

or
ke

rs
. T

he
 

un
iq

ue
 m

ar
ke

t s
ize

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 T

ab
le

 5
-3

. F
or

 d
et

ai
le

d 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A.

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

3 
- 

Es
tim

at
ed

 M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e 

by
 R

ou
te

Tr
av

el
 T

im
e 

Co
m

pe
tit

iv
en

es
s

Fo
r a

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

e 
to

 a
ttr

ac
t n

ew
 ri

de
rs

, i
t m

us
t p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ap

pe
al

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

ive
 to

 w
or

ke
rs

’ c
ur

re
nt

 c
om

m
ut

es
. T

ho
ug

h 
rid

in
g 

a 
bu

s 
ha

s 
na

tu
ra

l a
dv

an
ta

ge
s 

ov
er

 d
riv

in
g 

a 
ca

r b
y 

on
es

el
f, 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 re
ad

, d
o 

w
or

k,
 o

r s
le

ep
, t

he
 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 c
om

m
ut

e 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
. I

n 
th

at
 re

ga
rd

, t
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n 

ha
ve

 s
om

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
es

 o
ve

r e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it,
 in

 th
at

 th
ey

 s
er

ve
 a

re
as

 d
ire

ct
ly 

pr
ev

io
us

ly 
on

ly 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
y 

a 
tw

o-
 o

r t
hr

ee
-s

ea
t t

ra
ns

it 
rid

e,
 re

du
ci

ng
 to

ta
l c

om
m

ut
e 

tim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

un
pr

ed
ic

ta
bi

lit
y 

in
he

re
nt

 in
 tr

an
sf

er
rin

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

od
es

. 

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, t

he
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 c
an

 c
om

pa
re

 fa
vo

ra
bl

y 
to

 a
ut

o-
ba

se
d 

co
m

m
ut

es
. T

ho
ug

h 
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
via

 b
us

 is
 in

he
re

nt
 le

ss
 

di
re

ct
 th

at
 d

riv
in

g,
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
es

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

HO
V 

la
ne

s 
on

 I-
80

. C
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 
6,

 s
uc

h 
a 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

pa
rt-

tim
e 

tra
ns

it 
la

ne
s 

on
 I-

80
, w

ou
ld

 fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
tra

ve
l t

im
es

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
.

An
 a

na
lys

is
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 to
 e

st
im

at
e 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

tra
ve

l t
im

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 e

xis
tin

g 
op

tio
ns

. T
ab

le
 

5-
4 

sh
ow

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

es
 v

ia
 a

ut
om

ob
ile

, e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it,
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 e

xp
re

ss
 ro

ut
es

 fo
r s

ev
er

al
 p

oi
nt

s 
al

on
g 

ea
ch

 ro
ut

e.
 T

hi
s 

an
al

ys
is

 a
ss

um
es

 a
 s

ou
th

bo
un

d 
tri

p 
de

pa
rti

ng
 a

t 7
:3

0 
A.

M
. E

xis
tin

g 
au

to
 tr

ip
s 

w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 o

n 
a 

po
in

t-
to

-p
oi

nt
 b

as
is

 w
ith

ou
t u

si
ng

 c
ar

po
ol

 la
ne

s.
 T

he
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
es

tim
at

es
 fo

r t
he

 P
la

n’
s 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 a

ss
um

e 

Ro
ut

e
Or

ig
in

(s
)

De
st

in
at

io
n(

s)
Es

t. 
M

ar
ke

t S
iz

e

1
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Be
rk

el
ey

1,
20

0

2
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Em
er

yv
ille

 &
 O

ak
la

nd
2,

70
0

2A
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Em
er

yv
ille

90
0

2B
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Oa
kl

an
d

1,
80

0

3
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 v

ia
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

, 
Pr

op
os

ed
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
r M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b,
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Oa
kl

an
d

1,
20

0

4
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 v

ia
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

, 
Pr

op
os

ed
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
r M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b,
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

1,
50

0

5
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
, P

ro
po

se
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

50
0

6
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, 
Pr

op
os

ed
 B

is
se

ll A
ve

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

Em
er

yv
ille

 &
 O

ak
la

nd
2,

50
0

7
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, 
Pr

op
os

ed
 B

is
se

ll A
ve

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

Be
rk

el
ey

1,
70

0

8
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 R
um

ril
l B

lvd
, 

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
rig

ht
 A

ve
 M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
Oa

kl
an

d
1,

20
0

Ro
ut

e
Ro

ut
e 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Or

ig
in

De
st

in
at

io
n

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
e 

(M
in

ut
es

)
Ex

is
tin

g 
Au

to
Ex

is
tin

g 
Tr

an
si

t
Pr

op
os

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

1
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 B
er

ke
le

y

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
45

54
28

Un
ive

rs
ity

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 A

ve
, B

er
ke

le
y

51
35

37

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

6t
h 

St
 &

 V
irg

in
ia

 S
t, 

Be
rk

el
ey

36
61

21
Un

ive
rs

ity
 A

ve
 &

 S
ha

ttu
ck

 A
ve

, B
er

ke
le

y
42

31
30

2
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 &

 O
ak

la
nd

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Ho

llis
 S

t &
 5

9t
h 

St
, E

m
er

yv
ille

51
60

34
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
 v

ia
 

Em
er

yv
ille

51
50

56

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Ho
llis

 S
t &

 5
9t

h 
St

, E
m

er
yv

ille
43

55
27

Br
oa

dw
ay

 &
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

, O
ak

la
nd

 v
ia

 
Em

er
yv

ille
47

48
49

2A
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 E
m

er
yv

ille

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Ho

llis
 S

t &
 5

9t
h 

St
, E

m
er

yv
ille

51
60

34

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

43
55

27

2B
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 O
ak

la
nd

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
51

50
38

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

47
48

31

3
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

r M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 O

ak
la

nd

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
& 

Ap
pi

an
 W

ay
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
52

61
46

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
& 

Ta
ra

 H
ills

 A
ve

nu
e

51
60

42
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
47

48
31

4

Pi
no

le
, T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
r M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b,
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 S
al

es
fo

rc
e 

Tr
an

si
t 

Ce
nt

er

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
& 

Ap
pi

an
 W

ay

SF
 S

al
es

fo
rc

e 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

81
64

65
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
e 

& 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 A

ve
nu

e
80

67
61

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

56
55

50

5
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
, S

an
 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

to
 

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

SF
 S

al
es

fo
rc

e 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

69
70

51

6
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, B
is

se
ll A

ve
 M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
to

 
Em

er
yv

ille
 &

 O
ak

la
nd

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 R
he

em
 A

ve
nu

e
Ho

llis
 S

t &
 5

9t
h 

St
, E

m
er

yv
ille

32
56

36
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
 v

ia
 

Em
er

yv
ille

38
49

58

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
Ho

llis
 S

t &
 5

9t
h 

St
, E

m
er

yv
ille

26
50

23
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
 v

ia
 

Em
er

yv
ille

33
45

45

7
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 2
3r

d 
St

, B
is

se
ll A

ve
 M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
to

 
Be

rk
el

ey

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 R
he

em
 A

ve
nu

e
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
25

53
27

Un
ive

rs
ity

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 A

ve
, B

er
ke

le
y

33
36

39

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
20

42
14

Un
ive

rs
ity

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 A

ve
, B

er
ke

le
y

28
30

26

8
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
via

 R
um

ril
l 

Bl
vd

, H
ar

bo
ur

 W
ay

, W
rig

ht
 A

ve
 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

to
 O

ak
la

nd

Ru
m

ril
l B

lvd
 &

 M
ar

ke
t S

t
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, O

ak
la

nd
39

55
48

Ha
rb

ou
r W

ay
 &

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
36

40
38

W
rig

ht
 A

ve
 M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b
34

56
32

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4 
- 

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 b
y 

Ro
ut

e

9A-16



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
12

th
at

 th
e 

ro
ut

es
 fo

llo
w

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
lig

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
 u

se
 th

e 
HO

V 
la

ne
 o

n 
I-8

0,
 b

ut
 d

o 
no

t a
ss

um
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ita

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

os
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 C

ha
pt

er
 6

. M
an

y 
of

 th
es

e 
ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
vio

us
ly 

re
qu

ire
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ai
tin

g 
tim

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
tra

ns
fe

rs
. E

lim
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r r
es

ul
ts

 in
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

im
e 

sa
vin

gs
.

Fo
r a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

in
 ro

ut
e 

pr
io

rit
iza

tio
n 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

ive
 c

om
pe

tit
ive

ne
ss

 in
de

x,
 s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A.

Ne
ar

-T
er

m
 R

ou
te

s
Ro

ut
es

 2
, 4

, 6
, a

nd
 7

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 te

rm
. T

he
y 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 a
lig

nm
en

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 a

 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 la
rg

e 
tra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 h

ig
h 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vin
gs

 o
ve

r e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
op

tio
ns

. T
he

se
 ro

ut
es

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

2.

Ro
ut

e 
2 

se
rv

es
 b

ot
h 

Em
er

yv
ille

 a
nd

 O
ak

la
nd

 fr
om

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
. T

hi
s 

ro
ut

e 
ha

s 
a 

la
rg

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
si

ze
, d

ue
 to

 th
e 

hi
gh

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t i
n 

bo
th

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

ci
tie

s.
 T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vin
gs

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
ar

e 
ve

ry
 h

ig
h 

fo
r 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 in
 E

m
er

yv
ille

, s
in

ce
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
di

re
ct

 B
AR

T 
se

rv
ic

e,
 fo

rc
in

g 
rid

er
s 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 th
e 

Em
er

y 
Go

-R
ou

nd
 s

hu
ttl

e.
 T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vin
gs

 
to

 O
ak

la
nd

 v
ia

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l, 
du

e 
to

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
an

d 
th

e 
in

di
re

ct
 ro

ut
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

Em
er

yv
ille

.

Ro
ut

e 
4 

se
rv

es
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 v
ia

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 fr
om

 P
in

ol
e 

an
d 

Ta
ra

 H
ills

. T
he

 
ro

ut
e 

ha
s 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

la
rg

e 
m

ar
ke

t s
ize

, d
ue

 to
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 in
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o.
 T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vin
gs

 a
re

 h
ig

h 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

an
d 

au
to

 a
lte

rn
at

ive
s,

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
la

ck
 o

f t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 a

nd
 u

se
 o

f H
OV

 la
ne

s.
 T

he
 tr

av
el

 m
ar

ke
t o

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 

th
ro

ug
h 

Pi
no

le
 is

 n
ot

 w
el

l-s
er

ve
d 

by
 e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
tra

ns
it 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vid

e 
a 

si
ng

le
-s

ea
t r

id
e 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. W
hi

le
 p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
rid

er
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

ha
ve

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 b
oa

rd
 tr

an
sb

ay
 s

er
vic

es
 a

t R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, t
he

 e
ar

ly 
fil

l t
im

e 
of

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t m

ak
es

 it
 d

iffi
cu

lt 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r m

an
y 

us
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

to
 b

oa
rd

 a
t H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t b

ac
k-

tra
ck

in
g 

to
 th

e 
no

rth
.

Ro
ut

e 
6 

se
rv

es
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 a
nd

 O
ak

la
nd

 fr
om

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 a

nd
 C

en
tra

l/S
ou

th
 R

ic
hm

on
d.

 T
hi

s 
ro

ut
e 

ha
s 

a 
la

rg
e 

m
ar

ke
t s

ize
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 

se
ve

ra
l M

TC
-d

es
ig

na
te

d 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

f C
on

ce
rn

, h
om

e 
to

 a
 la

rg
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

w
 in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 li

m
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

er
so

na
l a

ut
om

ob
ile

s.
 

Tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

sa
vin

gs
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 e

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ar
e 

hi
gh

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
nc

e 
(to

 O
ak

la
nd

) o
r t

w
ic

e 
(to

 E
m

er
yv

ille
). 

Co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
au

to
, t

hi
s 

ro
ut

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
ffe

r a
 g

re
at

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

ve
r e

xis
tin

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

bu
t w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ith

 li
m

ite
d 

au
to

 
ac

ce
ss

.

Ro
ut

e 
7 

se
rv

es
 B

er
ke

le
y 

fro
m

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 a

nd
 C

en
tra

l/S
ou

th
er

n 
Ri

ch
m

on
d.

 T
hi

s 
ro

ut
e 

ha
s 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

la
rg

e 
m

ar
ke

t s
ize

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 s
ev

er
al

 
M

TC
-d

es
ig

na
te

d 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

f C
on

ce
rn

, h
om

e 
to

 a
 la

rg
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

w
 in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 li

m
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

er
so

na
l a

ut
om

ob
ile

s.
 T

he
 

ro
ut

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 m

od
er

at
e 

tim
e 

sa
vin

gs
, w

ith
 h

ig
he

r s
av

in
gs

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
in

 it
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 W

es
t B

er
ke

le
y 

an
d 

hi
gh

er
 s

av
in

gs
 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 a

ut
o 

in
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
. 

 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-2
 –

 S
ys

te
m

 M
ap

 N
ea

r T
er

m
 R

ou
te

s

9A-17



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
13

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s
Ro

ut
es

 1
, 3

, 5
, a

nd
 8

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
/lo

ng
-t

er
m

 a
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 b
ey

on
d 

th
at

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

is
 

Pl
an

 b
ec

om
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 T

he
se

 ro
ut

es
 re

pr
es

en
t s

til
l-v

ia
bl

e 
bu

t s
m

al
le

r c
om

m
ut

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
, o

r t
ho

se
 w

ith
 le

ss
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l t
ra

ve
l t

im
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

ov
er

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
ne

w
 ro

ut
es

, R
ou

te
 2

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 b

e 
sp

lit
 in

to
 R

ou
te

s 
2A

 a
nd

 2
B,

 e
ac

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 o
rig

in
at

e 
fro

m
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, b
ut

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 a

nd
 O

ak
la

nd
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 s
er

vin
g 

Oa
kl

an
d 

via
 E

m
er

yv
ille

. T
hi

s 
sp

lit
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e 

sh
or

te
r, 

m
or

e 
re

lia
bl

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 O
ak

la
nd

 a
nd

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

or
e 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
to

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
id

er
s,

 b
ut

 a
t 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly 

hi
gh

er
 c

os
t t

ha
n 

ru
nn

in
g 

on
ly 

Ro
ut

e 
2.

 T
he

 ro
ut

es
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
3.

Ch
ap

te
r 7

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
pl

an
. U

nd
er

 a
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

sc
en

ar
io

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 fu

nd
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 o

pe
ra

te
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ea
r-

te
rm

 ro
ut

es
, b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 m
ed

iu
m

/lo
ng

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

. I
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 if

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 id
en

tifi
ed

. 

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
3 

– 
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g 

Te
rm

 R
ou

te
s 

Sy
st

em
 M

ap

9A-18



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
14

5.
4 

Ro
ut

e 
Pr

ofi
le

s
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

s 
pr

es
en

t R
ou

te
 P

ro
fil

es
 fo

r r
ou

te
s 

1-
8,

 d
ep

ic
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ro

ut
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t, 
or

ig
in

-d
es

tin
at

io
n 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 k

ey
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.

Ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e 

w
er

e 
di

vid
ed

 in
to

 tw
o 

ca
te

go
rie

s:
 “R

eq
ui

re
d”

 a
nd

 “O
pt

im
al

.” 
Re

qu
ire

d 
ca

pi
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
de

em
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ro
ut

e,
 s

uc
h 

as
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 w
ith

 b
en

ch
es

 a
nd

 s
he

lte
rs

. O
pt

im
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 th
os

e 
th

at
 

ar
e 

hi
gh

ly 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 le

ad
 to

 th
e 

be
st

 ri
de

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
co

m
fo

rt,
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
, a

nd
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e,
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

tri
ct

ly 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r o

pe
ra

tio
n.

 A
ll 

op
tim

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
as

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 id
en

tifi
ed

. E
ac

h 
ca

pi
ta

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 is
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

an
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n 
nu

m
be

r. 
Fo

r f
ul

l d
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 o
f e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

se
e 

Ch
ap

te
r 6

. N
ot

e 
th

at
 m

an
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ou

ld
 

im
pr

ov
e 

m
ul

tip
le

 ro
ut

es
 -

 th
us

 th
e 

co
st

s 
fo

r b
ot

h 
re

qu
ire

d 
an

d 
op

tim
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
es

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t o

ve
rla

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
al

l r
ou

te
s.

 

M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
w

ho
 (1

) l
ive

 w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
or

ig
in

 a
rte

ria
l s

to
p 

or
 s

ho
rt 

dr
ivi

ng
 

di
st

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
se

d/
ex

is
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
 o

r m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

an
d 

(2
) w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

st
op

. A
ll 

da
ta

 w
er

e 
ga

th
er

ed
 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
17

 L
on

gi
tu

di
na

l E
m

pl
oy

er
-H

ou
se

ho
ld

 D
yn

am
ic

s 
pr

og
ra

m
, a

 p
ro

du
ct

 o
f t

he
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s.
 M

ar
ke

t s
ize

 e
st

im
at

es
 d

o 
no

t t
ak

e 
in

to
 

ac
co

un
t f

ut
ur

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t g

ro
w

th
. F

or
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 m

ar
ke

t s
ize

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A.

Ro
ut

e 
su

bs
id

y 
w

as
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 c
on

se
rv

at
ive

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

of
 ri

de
rs

hi
p,

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
ca

pt
ur

e 
ra

te
s 

(th
e 

ac
tu

al
 s

ha
re

 o
f c

om
m

ut
er

s 
w

ho
 u

se
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 c
om

m
ut

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ou

ld
) o

f A
C 

Tr
an

si
t T

ra
ns

ba
y 

bu
se

s 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
 L

yn
x.

 

Tr
av

el
 ti

m
es

 w
er

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

se
ve

ra
l o

rig
in

s 
an

d 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 o

n 
ea

ch
 ro

ut
e 

us
in

g 
Go

og
le

 M
ap

s 
an

d 
W

az
e,

 a
ss

um
in

g 
a 

pe
ak

-h
ou

r 
(7

:3
0 

A.
M

.),
 p

ea
k-

di
re

ct
io

n 
(s

ou
th

bo
un

d)
 d

ep
ar

tu
re

. P
ro

po
se

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
tra

ve
l t

im
es

 a
ss

um
es

 tr
av

el
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ro
ut

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t a

nd
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 
I-8

0 
HO

V 
la

ne
. E

xis
tin

g 
au

to
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
as

su
m

es
 a

 d
ire

ct
 tr

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

or
ig

in
 a

nd
 d

es
tin

at
io

n 
w

ith
ou

t u
si

ng
 th

e 
I-8

0 
HO

V 
la

ne
. E

xis
tin

g 
tra

ns
it 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

tri
p 

le
ng

th
 fo

r a
ll 

tri
ps

 le
av

in
g 

af
te

r 7
:0

0 
A.

M
. a

nd
 b

ef
or

e 
8:

00
 A

.M
. F

or
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
, s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A.

No
te

s 
on

 R
ou

te
 A

lig
nm

en
t C

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

Ro
ut

es
 1

 a
nd

 2
 (a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 R
ou

te
s 

2A
 a

nd
 2

B)
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 s

er
ve

 b
ot

h 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, 
bo

th
 o

f w
hi

ch
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

at
 o

r n
ea

r p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ap

ac
ity

. T
ho

ug
h 

th
is

 P
la

n 
pr

op
os

es
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
ut

om
ob

ile
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

t e
ac

h,
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f s
tru

ct
ur

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 is

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 re

qu
ire

s 
an

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
. S

ec
ur

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g,

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

de
si

gn
, a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

ill 
ta

ke
 s

ev
er

al
 y

ea
rs

. U
nt

il 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

ut
o 

pa
rk

in
g 

is
 p

ro
vid

ed
, r

id
er

sh
ip

 o
f s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 ro

ut
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

tra
in

ed
 d

ue
 to

 li
m

ite
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
pp

ly.
 

Se
rv

in
g 

bo
th

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 m

ax
im

ize
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

se
rv

e 
bo

th
 th

e 
He

rc
ul

es
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

m
ar

ke
ts

. T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
bu

s-
on

-s
ho

ul
de

r o
pe

ra
tio

n 
on

 I-
80

 b
et

w
ee

n 
SR

-4
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 b

us
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

at
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r w

ou
ld

 li
m

it 
(o

r e
ve

n 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

of
fs

et
) t

he
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
de

la
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

to
pp

in
g 

at
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 e
xis

tin
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 A

s 
w

ith
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

po
se

d,
 it

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 c

on
tin

ua
lly

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
af

te
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
fo

r fi
ne

-t
un

in
g 

an
d 

op
tim

iza
tio

n.
 If

 b
us

es
 a

re
 fi

lle
d 

up
 u

po
n 

le
av

in
g 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 th

en
 th

er
e 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
a 

be
ne

fit
 

to
 a

ls
o 

st
op

pi
ng

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 a

nd
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 s

pl
it 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
in

to
 tw

o 
ro

ut
es

, w
ith

 o
ne

 h
av

in
g 

its
 o

nl
y 

or
ig

in
 s

to
p 

at
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r a
nd

 th
e 

ot
he

r h
av

in
g 

its
 o

nl
y 

or
ig

in
 s

to
p 

at
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
.

Ro
ut

e 
5 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 s

ta
rt 

at
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
 (a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 R
ou

te
s 

6,
 7

, a
nd

 8
) a

nd
 th

en
 u

se
 E

l P
or

ta
l D

r t
o 

ac
ce

ss
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
at

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d.

 C
on

ge
st

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Co
lle

ge
 a

nd
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 D
am

 R
oa

d 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
hi

gh
. T

he
 o

rig
in

at
io

n 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
fo

r t
he

 
Co

lle
ge

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
a 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
to

 lo
ca

l b
us

 s
er

vic
es

, e
xis

tin
g 

la
yo

ve
r s

pa
ce

, a
nd

 e
xis

tin
g 

dr
ive

r f
ac

ilit
ie

s.
 If

 it
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
an

d 
va

ria
bi

lit
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Co

lle
ge

 a
nd

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d 

is
 to

o 
hi

gh
, t

he
n 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 o
rig

in
at

io
n 

po
in

t, 
ei

th
er

 a
t t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(s
ee

 C
ha

pt
er

 6
.5

) o
r a

t P
rin

ce
to

n 
Pl

az
a.

9A-19



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
15

Ro
ut

e 
1 

- 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 B

er
ke

le
y

Ph
as

e:
 M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

Pr
op

os
ed

 O
pe

ra
to

r: 
W

es
tC

AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 8

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: B

er
ke

le
y 

St
at

io
n

BA
RT

: D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
 S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

W
es

t B
er

ke
le

y

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey

Al
ta

 B
at

es
 S

um
m

it 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

He
rc

ul
es

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

Ro
de

o
Cr

oc
ke

tt
I-8

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
12

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JR

/J
L,

 1
0,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8 

19
, 3

0Z
, C

3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
28

54
45

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Un

iv
er

si
ty

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 

Av
e,

 B
er

ke
le

y
37

35
51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
21

61
36

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Un

iv
er

si
ty

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 

Av
e,

 B
er

ke
le

y
30

31
42

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
4

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 6
th

 S
tre

et
/U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d/
Sh

at
tu

ck
 A

ve
nu

e 
(B

er
ke

le
y)

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

Op
tim

al
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TL
1

I-8
0 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es

FA
1

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

FA
2

SR
-4

/I-
80

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

TS
P4

TS
P 

on
 6

th
 S

tre
et

/S
ha

ttu
ck

 A
ve

nu
e 

(B
er

ke
le

y)

TC
1

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

   
  8

,6
21

,0
00

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
   

85
,3

17
,0

00

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,0

90
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-20



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
16

Ro
ut

e 
2 

- 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
& 

Oa
kl

an
d

Ph
as

e:
 N

ea
r

Pr
op

os
ed

 O
pe

ra
to

r: 
W

es
tC

AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 1

0

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 1
R,

 7
2R

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
St

at
io

n

Em
er

y 
Go

-R
ou

nd
: H

ol
lis

, H
ol

lis
 S

ou
th

, S
he

llm
ou

nd
-P

ow
el

l, 
W

at
er

ga
te

 E
xp

re
ss

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
 2

0t
h 

St
re

et
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, E
as

t B
ay

 B
RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e

BA
RT

: M
ac

Ar
th

ur
 S

ta
tio

n,
 1

9t
h 

St
/O

ak
la

nd
 S

ta
tio

n,
 1

2t
h 

St
/O

ak
la

nd
 

Ci
ty

 C
en

te
r S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Ho
lli

s 
St

re
et

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t C
or

rid
or

Ka
is

er
 P

er
m

an
en

te
 O

ak
la

nd

Al
ta

 B
at

es
 S

um
m

it 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r

Up
to

w
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

Ja
ck

 L
on

do
n 

Sq
ua

re

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

He
rc

ul
es

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

Ro
de

o
Cr

oc
ke

tt
I-8

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
27

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JR

/J
L,

 1
0,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8 

19
, 3

0Z
, C

3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Ho

lli
s 

St
 &

 5
9t

h 
St

, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

34
60

51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Ho

lli
s 

St
 &

 5
9t

h 
St

, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

27
55

43

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d 

vi
a 

Em
er

yv
ill

e
56

50
51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d 

vi
a 

Em
er

yv
ill

e
49

48
47

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
5

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 H
ol

lis
 S

tre
et

/4
0t

h 
St

re
et

/B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

(E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

BS
6

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

BA
1

Bu
se

s 
fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TL
1

I-8
0 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es

FA
1

SR
-4

/J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

TS
P5

TS
P 

on
 H

ol
lis

 S
tre

et
, 4

0t
h 

St
re

et
 (E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 O

ak
la

nd
)

TC
1

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

  1
0,

94
4,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
  8

7,
74

0,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,3

60
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-21



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
17

Ro
ut

e 
2A

 - 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 E

m
er

yv
ill

e
Ph

as
e:

 M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Pr

op
os

ed
 O

pe
ra

to
r: 

W
es

tC
AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 1
R,

 7
2R

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
St

at
io

n

BA
RT

: M
ac

Ar
th

ur
 S

ta
tio

n

Em
er

y 
Go

-R
ou

nd
: H

ol
lis

, H
ol

lis
 S

ou
th

, S
he

llm
ou

nd
-P

ow
el

l, 
W

at
er

ga
te

 E
xp

re
ss

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Ho
lli

s 
St

re
et

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t C
or

rid
or

Ka
is

er
 P

er
m

an
en

te
 O

ak
la

nd

Al
ta

 B
at

es
 S

um
m

it 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

He
rc

ul
es

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

Ro
de

o
Cr

oc
ke

tt
I-8

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
90

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JR

/J
L,

 1
0,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8 

19
, 3

0Z
, C

3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Ho

lli
s 

St
 &

 5
9t

h 
St

, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

34
60

51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Ho

lli
s 

St
 &

 5
9t

h 
St

, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

27
55

43

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
5

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 H
ol

lis
 S

tre
et

/4
0t

h 
St

re
et

/B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

(E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TL
1

I-8
0 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es

FA
1

SR
-4

/J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

TS
P5

TS
P 

on
 H

ol
lis

 S
tre

et
, 4

0t
h 

St
re

et
 (E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 O

ak
la

nd
)

TC
1

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

   
9,

61
1,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 8

6,
40

7,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,2

44
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-22



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
18

Ro
ut

e 
2B

 - 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 O

ak
la

nd
Ph

as
e:

 M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Pr

op
os

ed
 O

pe
ra

to
r: 

W
es

tC
AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 2
0t

h 
St

re
et

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, E

as
t B

ay
 B

RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e

BA
RT

: 1
9t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 S
ta

tio
n,

 1
2t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 C
ity

 C
en

te
r S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Up
to

w
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

Ja
ck

 L
on

do
n 

Sq
ua

re

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

He
rc

ul
es

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

Ro
de

o
Cr

oc
ke

tt
I-8

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
18

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JR

/J
L,

 1
0,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8 

19
, 3

0Z
, C

3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d

38
50

51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d

31
48

47

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
6

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TL
1

I-8
0 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es

FA
1

SR
-4

/J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

TS
P6

TS
P 

on
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

nu
e 

(O
ak

la
nd

)

TC
1

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

   
9,

33
3,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 8

6,
00

9,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,2

53
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-23



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
19

Ro
ut

e 
3 

- 
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

r M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 O

ak
la

nd
Ph

as
e:

 M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Pr

op
os

ed
 O

pe
ra

to
r: 

W
es

tC
AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 2
0t

h 
St

re
et

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, E

as
t B

ay
 B

RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e

BA
RT

: 1
9t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 S
ta

tio
n,

 1
2t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 C
ity

 C
en

te
r S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Up
to

w
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

Ja
ck

 L
on

do
n 

Sq
ua

re

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

I-8
0 

Co
m

m
ut

er
s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
13

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JL

/J
R,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8,

 1
9,

 C
3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
& 

Ta
ra

 H
ill

s 
Av

en
ue

Br
oa

dw
ay

 &
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

, 
Oa

kl
an

d
42

60
51

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d

31
48

47

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
1

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e,
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 

(P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

BS
6

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

M
H1

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 (O
pt

io
n 

1)

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

M
H2

Ta
ra

 H
ill

s 
Dr

iv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 (O
pt

io
n 

2)

TS
P6

TS
P 

on
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

nu
e 

(O
ak

la
nd

)

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 1
3,

37
3,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 7

4,
24

9,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,1

95
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-24



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
20

Ro
ut

e 
4 

- 
Pi

no
le

, T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

r P
&R

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 S

al
es

fo
rc

e 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

Ph
as

e:
 N

ea
r  

Pr
op

os
ed

 O
pe

ra
to

r: 
W

es
tC

AT

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
SF

 M
un

i: 
Sa

le
sf

or
ce

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 J

, K
, L

, M
, N

, T

BA
RT

: E
m

ba
rc

ad
er

o 
St

at
io

n,
 M

on
tg

om
er

y 
St

at
io

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

M
ar

ke
t S

tre
et

So
M

a

Fi
na

nc
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

I-8
0 

Co
m

m
ut

er
s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
15

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

: 
JL

/J
R,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 1
8,

 1
9,

 C
3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
& 

Ta
ra

 H
ill

s 
Av

en
ue

SF
 S

al
es

fo
rc

e 
Tr

an
si

t 
Ce

nt
er

61
67

80

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
SF

 S
al

es
fo

rc
e 

Tr
an

si
t 

Ce
nt

er
50

55
56

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
1

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e,
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 

(P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

M
H1

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 (O
pt

io
n 

1)

BA
1

Bu
se

s 
fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

M
H2

Ta
ra

 H
ill

s 
Dr

iv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 (O
pt

io
n 

2)

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 1
3,

04
0,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 7

3,
71

6,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,2

40
,0

00

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-25



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
21

Ro
ut

e 
5 

- 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
, S

an
 P

ab
lo

 D
am

 R
oa

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub
 to

 S
al

es
fo

rc
e 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r
Ph

as
e:

 M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Pr

op
os

ed
 O

pe
ra

to
r: 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
SF

 M
un

i: 
Sa

le
sf

or
ce

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 J

, K
, L

, M
, N

, T

BA
RT

: E
m

ba
rc

ad
er

o 
St

at
io

n,
 M

on
tg

om
er

y 
St

at
io

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

M
ar

ke
t S

tre
et

So
M

a

Fi
na

nc
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o
El

 S
ob

ra
nt

e

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
40

0 
Co

m
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t
Es

tim
at

ed
 T

ra
ve

l T
im

es
 (M

in
ut

es
)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 

Ro
ad

 M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

SF
 S

al
es

fo
rc

e 
Tr

an
si

t 
Ce

nt
er

51
70

69

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

M
H3

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

FA
3

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d/

I-8
0 

Ac
ce

ss
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

TS
P3

 T
SP

 o
n 

El
 P

or
ta

l D
r, 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 1
8,

90
0,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 2

3,
58

0,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,4

22
,0

00
 

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-26



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
22

Ro
ut

e 
6 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
vi

a 
23

rd
 S

t, 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

 M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 to
 E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
& 

Oa
kl

an
d

Ph
as

e:
 M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

Pr
op

os
ed

 O
pe

ra
to

r: 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 1
R,

 7
2R

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
St

at
io

n

BA
RT

: M
ac

Ar
th

ur
 S

ta
tio

n

Em
er

y 
Go

-R
ou

nd
: H

ol
lis

, H
ol

lis
 S

ou
th

, S
he

llm
ou

nd
-P

ow
el

l, 
W

at
er

ga
te

 E
xp

re
ss

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
 2

0t
h 

St
re

et
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, E
as

t B
ay

 B
RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e

BA
RT

: 1
9t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 S
ta

tio
n,

 1
2t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 C
ity

 C
en

te
r S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Ho
lli

s 
St

re
et

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t C
or

rid
or

Ka
is

er
 P

er
m

an
en

te
 O

ak
la

nd

Al
ta

 B
at

es
 S

um
m

it 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r

Up
to

w
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

Ja
ck

 L
on

do
n 

Sq
ua

re

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o
Ri

ch
m

on
d

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
25

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

:
C3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1,

 7
2/

72
R/

72
M

, 7
4,

 7
6

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 
Rh

ee
m

 A
ve

nu
e

Ho
lli

s 
St

 &
 5

9t
h 

St
, 

Em
er

yv
ill

e
36

56
32

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
Ho

lli
s 

St
 &

 5
9t

h 
St

, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

23
50

26

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 
Rh

ee
m

 A
ve

nu
e

Br
oa

dw
ay

 &
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

, 
Oa

kl
an

d 
vi

a 
Em

er
yv

ill
e

58
49

38

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d 

vi
a 

Em
er

yv
ill

e
45

45
33

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
2

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

, M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d)

BS
5

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 H
ol

lis
 S

tre
et

/4
0t

h 
St

re
et

/B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

(E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

BS
6

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

M
H4

Bi
ss

el
l A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub
 (R

ic
hm

on
d 

ea
st

)

BA
1

Bu
se

s 
fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TS
P1

 T
SP

 o
n 

23
rd

 S
tre

et
, M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d)

TS
P5

 T
SP

 o
n 

Ho
lli

s 
St

re
et

, 4
0t

h 
St

re
et

 (E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 1
3,

87
0,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 1

4,
55

0,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,4

12
,0

00
 

No
te

: M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-27



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
23

Ro
ut

e 
7 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
vi

a 
23

rd
 S

t, 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

 M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 to
 B

er
ke

le
y

Ph
as

e:
 N

ea
r  

Pr
op

os
ed

 O
pe

ra
to

r: 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 8

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: B

er
ke

le
y 

St
at

io
n

BA
RT

: D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey
 S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

W
es

t B
er

ke
le

y

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Be

rk
el

ey

Al
ta

 B
at

es
 S

um
m

it 
M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o
Ri

ch
m

on
d

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
17

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

:
C3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1,

 7
2/

72
R/

72
M

, 7
4,

 7
6

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 
Rh

ee
m

 A
ve

nu
e

6t
h 

St
 &

 V
irg

in
ia

 S
t, 

Be
rk

el
ey

27
53

25

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 &

 
Rh

ee
m

 A
ve

nu
e

Un
iv

er
si

ty
 A

ve
 &

 S
ha

ttu
ck

 
Av

e,
 B

er
ke

le
y

39
36

33

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
6t

h 
St

 &
 V

irg
in

ia
 S

t, 
Be

rk
el

ey
14

42
20

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
& 

39
th

 S
tre

et
Un

iv
er

si
ty

 A
ve

 &
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 

Av
e,

 B
er

ke
le

y
26

30
28

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
2

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

, M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d)

BS
4

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 6
th

 S
tre

et
, U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d,
 S

ha
ttu

ck
 A

ve
nu

e 
(B

er
ke

le
y)

M
H4

Bi
ss

el
l A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub
 (R

ic
hm

on
d 

ea
st

)

BA
1

Bu
se

s 
fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TS
P1

 T
SP

 o
n 

23
rd

 S
tre

et
, M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d)

TS
P4

 T
SP

 o
n 

6t
h 

St
re

et
, S

ha
ttu

ck
 A

ve
nu

e 
(B

er
ke

le
y)

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 1
2,

54
7,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 1

3,
12

7,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,2

48
,0

00
 

No
te

:  M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-28



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
24

Ro
ut

e 
8 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
vi

a 
Ru

m
ril

l B
lv

d,
 H

ar
bo

ur
 W

ay
, W

rig
ht

 A
ve

 M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 to
 O

ak
la

nd
Ph

as
e:

 M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Pr

op
os

ed
 O

pe
ra

to
r: 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t S
iz

e:
 9

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Tr
an

si
t C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 2
0t

h 
St

re
et

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, E

as
t B

ay
 B

RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
: J

ac
k 

Lo
nd

on
 S

qu
ar

e

BA
RT

: 1
9t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 S
ta

tio
n,

 1
2t

h 
St

/O
ak

la
nd

 C
ity

 C
en

te
r S

ta
tio

n

Ke
y 

De
st

in
at

io
ns

 S
er

ve
d

Up
to

w
n 

Oa
kl

an
d

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Oa

kl
an

d

Ja
ck

 L
on

do
n 

Sq
ua

re

M
ar

ke
ts

 S
er

ve
d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o
Ri

ch
m

on
d

I-5
80

 C
om

m
ut

er
s

M
ar

ke
t S

iz
e

~
12

00
 C

om
m

ut
er

s

Or
ig

in
 T

ra
ns

it 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

W
es

tC
AT

:
C3

AC
 T

ra
ns

it:
70

, 7
1,

 7
2/

72
R/

72
M

, 7
4,

 7
6

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or
/B

AR
T:

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
St

at
io

n

Or
ig

in
 A

lig
nm

en
t

De
st

in
at

io
n 

Al
ig

nm
en

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ra

ve
l T

im
es

 (M
in

ut
es

)

Or
ig

in
De

st
in

at
io

n
Ex

tim
at

ed
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

si
t

Ex
is

tin
g 

Au
to

Ru
m

ril
l B

lv
d 

& 
M

ar
ke

t S
t

Br
oa

dw
ay

 &
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

, 
Oa

kl
an

d
48

55
39

Ha
rb

ou
r W

ay
 &

 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

Br
oa

dw
ay

 &
 G

ra
nd

 A
ve

, 
Oa

kl
an

d
38

40
36

W
rig

ht
 A

ve
 P

&R
Br

oa
dw

ay
 &

 G
ra

nd
 A

ve
, 

Oa
kl

an
d

32
56

34

Re
qu

ire
d 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

BS
3

Bu
s 

St
op

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
on

 R
um

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

/1
3t

h 
St

re
et

/H
ar

bo
ur

 W
ay

 
(S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d)

BS
6

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Up

gr
ad

es
 o

n 
Br

oa
dw

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

M
H5

W
rig

ht
 A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub
 (R

ic
hm

on
d 

w
es

t)

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

TS
P2

 T
SP

 o
n 

Ru
m

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

/1
3t

h 
St

re
et

/H
ar

bo
ur

 W
ay

 (S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d)

TS
P6

 T
SP

 o
n 

Gr
an

d 
Av

en
ue

 (O
ak

la
nd

)

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 C
os

ts
Re

qu
ire

d
$ 

 2
2,

82
6,

00
0

Fu
ll 

(R
eq

ui
re

d 
+ 

Op
tim

al
)

$ 
 2

3,
42

6,
00

0

An
nu

al
 O

&M
 C

os
t:

$1
,4

13
,0

00
 

No
te

:  M
ar

ke
t s

ize
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 L
EH

D 
20

17
. A

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

in
 2

02
0 

do
lla

rs
.

9A-29



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
25

6.
 C

AP
IT

AL
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
Th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
fin

di
ng

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 in
pu

t f
ro

m
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

ei
r e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

m
ot

iva
te

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

ive
ne

ss
, a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y, 

an
d 

de
si

ra
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 K

ey
 fi

nd
in

gs
 in

cl
ud

e:

• 
Th

e 
tra

ns
it 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

fo
rta

bl
e 

on
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

or
ig

in
 a

nd
 d

es
tin

at
io

n 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

tri
p.

• 
Bu

s 
tra

ve
l t

im
es

 m
us

t b
e 

co
m

pe
tit

ive
 w

ith
 a

ut
o 

tra
ve

l f
or

 m
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

id
er

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r m
ak

in
g 

a 
sw

itc
h 

be
tw

ee
n 

m
od

es
.

• 
Gi

ve
n 

th
e 

la
nd

 u
se

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

of
 th

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ar

ea
, m

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
id

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 th

at
 s

er
ve

 m
ul

tim
od

al
 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 w

al
k-

up
 s

er
vic

e.

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

es
e 

st
at

ed
 p

re
fe

re
nc

es
, a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 (1
) p

ro
vid

e 
a 

hi
gh

-q
ua

lit
y 

rid
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 (2
) e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 tr

an
si

t v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
gi

ve
n 

pr
io

rit
y 

ov
er

 lo
w

er
-e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 m
od

es
, a

nd
 (3

) e
nh

an
ce

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 a

nd
 b

us
 s

to
p 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.

Ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

gr
ou

pe
d 

be
lo

w
 b

y 
ty

pe
. F

ig
ur

e 
6-

1 
sh

ow
s 

al
l p

ro
po

se
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Fi

gu
re

 6
-2

 
sh

ow
s 

al
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty.
 

Ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

su
m

m
ar

ize
d 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
fil

es
. T

he
se

 p
ro

fil
es

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
th

e 
ro

ut
e(

s)
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

en
efi

t, 
th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

os
t t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t, 

an
d 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 b

en
efi

t i
t w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e.

 T
he

 p
ro

fil
es

 a
ls

o 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

lis
tin

g 
of

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ep

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 p

ro
ce

ed
 to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 T

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ep

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
kn

ow
n 

ab
ou

t p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 e
vo

lve
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
in

pu
ts

 fr
om

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
 T

he
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

at
 a

 c
on

ce
pt

ua
l d

es
ig

n 
st

ag
e.

 F
ur

th
er

 d
es

ig
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

ay
 re

fin
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

efi
ni

tio
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

de
si

gn
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 a

dd
ito

in
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
ch

 a
s 

to
po

rg
ra

ph
ic

 s
ur

ve
y, 

tra
ffi

c 
an

al
ys

is
, a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n.

Co
nc

ep
tu

al
 la

yo
ut

s 
fo

r t
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

le
d 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E.
 

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
 -

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Fi
gu

re
 6

-2
 - 

Al
am

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s

9A-30



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
26

6.
1 

Bu
s 

St
op

 A
m

en
iti

es
Ev

er
y 

bu
s 

tri
p 

be
gi

ns
 b

y 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

a 
bu

s 
st

op
 o

r t
ra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
. T

o 
en

su
re

 th
e 

w
ai

tin
g 

pe
rio

d 
be

fo
re

 a
 b

us
 a

rri
ve

s 
is

 c
om

fo
rta

bl
e,

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 a

nd
 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e 

am
en

iti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
he

lte
rs

, s
ea

tin
g,

 li
gh

tin
g,

 re
al

-t
im

e 
ar

riv
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 b
ik

e 
pa

rk
in

g,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fe
at

ur
es

. R
id

er
s 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 c

on
si

de
r r

id
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

ov
er

 d
riv

in
g 

if 
th

ey
 k

no
w

 th
at

 th
ei

r t
ra

ns
it 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ill 
be

 c
on

ve
ni

en
t, 

sa
fe

, q
ui

ck
, a

nd
 c

om
fo

rta
bl

e.

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill 

pr
im

ar
ily

 u
se

 e
xis

tin
g 

bu
s 

st
op

s.
 In

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s,

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 b

e 
re

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

 m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 lo
ca

tio
n 

or
 o

ne
 th

at
 

is
 p

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 b

us
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 (f
ar

-s
id

e 
at

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

). 
Ex

is
tin

g 
lo

ca
l s

to
ps

 in
 b

ot
h 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 a
nd

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
tie

s 
va

ry
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 

in
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f a

m
en

iti
es

 p
ro

vid
ed

. M
an

y 
st

op
s 

co
ns

is
t o

f o
nl

y 
a 

bu
s 

st
op

 p
ol

e 
w

ith
 a

 s
ig

n 
an

d 
no

th
in

g 
el

se
, t

he
 b

ar
e 

m
in

im
um

 fo
r 

a 
tra

ns
it 

st
op

. B
us

 s
to

ps
 in

 th
e 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t M
ul

tim
od

al
 C

or
rid

or
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 (2
01

8)
 a

nd
 D

es
ig

ni
ng

 w
ith

 
Tr

an
si

t (
20

04
). 

Fo
r a

 fu
ll 

lis
t o

f b
us

 s
to

p 
am

en
ity

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
D.

 

Re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
am

en
iti

es
 a

re
 d

ivi
de

d 
in

to
 tw

o 
tie

rs
. T

ie
r 1

 a
m

en
iti

es
 a

re
 h

ig
hl

y 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

fo
r s

to
ps

 fo
r n

ew
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e.
 T

ie
r 2

 
am

en
iti

es
 a

re
 b

en
efi

ci
al

 to
 s

to
p 

ac
ce

ss
 o

r t
he

 ri
de

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 b
ut

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 h
ig

h-
rid

er
sh

ip
 s

to
ps

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

t 
ev

er
y 

st
op

.

Ti
er

 1
 A

m
en

iti
es

AD
A-

Co
m

pl
ia

nt
 L

an
di

ng
 Z

on
e

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Am
er

ic
an

s 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
Ac

t (
AD

A)
, a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 a
ll 

us
er

s,
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 

co
nc

re
te

 la
nd

in
g 

zo
ne

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

cu
rb

. T
hi

s 
la

nd
in

g 
zo

ne
, w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 5

’ w
id

e 
an

d 
8’

 d
ee

p 
an

d 
fre

e 
of

 s
tre

et
 

fu
rn

itu
re

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r a

 b
us

 to
 d

ep
lo

y 
a 

ra
m

p 
al

lo
w

in
g 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r u

se
rs

 to
 b

oa
rd

.

Sh
el

te
r

A 
sh

el
te

r i
s 

a 
tw

o-
 o

r t
hr

ee
-w

al
le

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
at

 th
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

w
ai

tin
g 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 to

 s
ta

nd
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f d
ire

ct
 s

un
lig

ht
 o

r 
in

cl
em

en
t w

ea
th

er
. S

he
lte

rs
 m

ay
 c

om
e 

in
 d

iff
er

en
t s

ize
s 

an
d 

sh
ap

es
, b

ut
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 re

qu
ire

 a
 la

rg
er

 fo
ot

pr
in

t i
n 

th
e 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

 th
an

 o
th

er
 

st
op

 a
m

en
iti

es
. D

et
ai

le
d 

st
op

 d
es

ig
n 

is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 v
er

ify
 th

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 s

he
lte

r p
la

ce
m

en
t a

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

. I
f a

 s
he

lte
r i

s 
no

t 
fe

as
ib

le
 w

ith
in

 a
 c

on
st

ra
in

ed
 s

id
ew

al
k 

sp
ac

e,
 th

en
 th

e 
st

op
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
 n

ea
rb

y 
lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 a
 s

he
lte

r m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

.

Be
nc

h

Bu
s 

st
op

 b
en

ch
es

 a
re

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly 

im
po

rta
nt

 in
 p

la
ce

s 
w

ith
 h

ig
he

r e
xp

ec
te

d 
w

ai
t t

im
es

, r
ou

te
s 

th
at

 s
er

ve
 o

ld
er

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 
w

ith
 a

 h
ig

he
r v

ol
um

e 
of

 b
oa

rd
in

gs
. I

f t
he

 b
us

 s
to

p 
al

so
 h

as
 a

 s
he

lte
r, 

th
e 

be
nc

h 
sh

ou
ld

 g
en

er
al

ly 
be

 p
la

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
sh

el
te

r. 
Bu

sy
 s

to
ps

 o
r 

tra
ns

fe
r p

oi
nt

s 
m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 m
ul

tip
le

 b
en

ch
es

 to
 s

er
ve

 a
ll 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 w

ho
 w

an
t a

 p
la

ce
 to

 s
it.

Pe
de

st
ria

n-
Sc

al
e 

Li
gh

tin
g

St
an

da
rd

 s
tre

et
 la

m
ps

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 il

lu
m

in
at

e 
th

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
 fo

r m
ot

or
is

ts
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
id

ea
l f

or
 p

ro
vid

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 li
gh

tin
g 

fo
r 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 w

ai
tin

g 
fo

r t
he

 b
us

. P
ed

es
tri

an
-s

ca
le

 li
gh

tin
g 

is
 in

st
al

le
d 

lo
w

er
 to

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 a

nd
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
nt

 o
f p

ro
vid

in
g 

a 
w

el
l-l

it 
pl

ac
e 

to
 s

ta
nd

 o
r s

it 
w

hi
le

 w
ai

tin
g 

fo
r t

he
 b

us
, i

nc
re

as
in

g 
rid

er
s’

 s
en

se
 o

f s
ec

ur
ity

. T
hi

s 
lig

ht
in

g 
ca

n 
so

m
et

im
es

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
sh

el
te

rs
 th

em
se

lve
s.

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 p
ro

vid
in

g 
so

la
r-

po
w

er
ed

 li
gh

tin
g,

 re
m

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 c
on

ne
ct

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 w

ith
 u

til
ity

 
lin

es
.

Tr
as

h 
Re

ce
pt

ac
le

To
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 th

at
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 s
ta

y 
cl

ea
n 

w
ith

 a
s 

lit
tle

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

, t
ra

sh
 re

ce
pt

ac
le

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
cl

os
e 

to
, o

r a
t, 

th
e 

bu
s 

st
op

. D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f a
ct

ivi
ty

 a
t t

he
 b

us
 s

to
ps

, t
ra

sh
 re

ce
pt

ac
le

s 
m

us
t b

e 
em

pt
ie

d 
fre

qu
en

tly
 to

 a
vo

id
 o

ve
rfl

ow
.

Ti
er

 2
 A

m
en

iti
es

Sy
st

em
 M

ap

A 
la

rg
e,

 le
gi

bl
e 

sy
st

em
 m

ap
 is

 a
 u

se
fu

l b
us

 s
to

p 
am

en
ity

. P
as

se
ng

er
s 

ca
n 

pl
an

 tr
ip

s 
w

ith
ou

t n
ee

di
ng

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 o

f t
he

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 v

ia
 s

m
ar

tp
ho

ne
. T

he
 s

ys
te

m
 m

ap
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
nt

ac
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

so
 th

at
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
m

ay
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

 tr
an

si
t a

ge
nc

y 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pa
rk

in
g

Bi
cy

cl
es

 c
an

 a
llo

w
 tr

an
si

t r
id

er
s 

to
 re

ac
h 

st
op

s 
fro

m
 fa

rth
er

 a
w

ay
 th

an
 if

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
w

al
ki

ng
, p

ot
en

tia
lly

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

id
er

s.
 

Se
cu

re
 b

ic
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
, s

uc
h 

as
 lo

ck
er

s 
an

d 
em

er
gi

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 B

IK
EE

P, 
al

lo
w

s 
rid

er
s 

to
 p

ar
k 

th
ei

r b
ic

yc
le

 w
ith

 g
re

at
er

 
co

nfi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 it
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

st
ol

en
.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
bu

s 
st

op
 a

m
en

iti
es

 b
y 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 #
 ro

w
 c

or
re

sp
on

ds
 to

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t p

ro
fil

es
 fo

un
d 

be
lo

w.
 E

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t (

nu
m

be
re

d 
BS

1-
BS

6)
 c

or
re

sp
on

ds
 to

 a
 s

et
 o

f b
us

 s
to

ps
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
gr

ad
ed

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

a 
ro

ut
e.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 R

ou
te

 7
 tr

av
el

s 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 a
nd

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
in

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 a

nd
 o

n 
6t

h 
St

re
et

, U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

ou
le

va
rd

, a
nd

 S
ha

ttu
ck

 
Av

en
ue

 in
 B

er
ke

le
y. 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 fo
r t

hi
s 

ro
ut

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

BS
2 

an
d 

BS
4

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1 
- 

Bu
s 

St
op

 A
m

en
ity

 U
pg

ra
de

 Q
ua

nt
iti

es
 b

y 
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n

Be
rk

el
ey

Un
in

co
rp

.
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 

Co
un

ty
Em

er
yv

ill
e

Oa
kl

an
d

Pi
no

le
Ri

ch
m

on
d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o
To

ta
l

Ro
ut

e 
#s

1,
 7

3,
 4

2,
 2

A,
 6

2,
 2

B,
 3

, 8
3,

 4
6,

 7
, 8

6,
 7

, 8
-

Pr
oj

ec
t #

BS
4

BS
1

BS
5

BS
5,

 B
S6

BS
1

BS
1,

 B
S2

, B
S3

BS
2,

 B
S3

-

To
ta

l S
to

ps
16

4
12

14
4

20
10

80
Ne

w
 o

r R
el

oc
at

ed
 S

to
ps

1
1

2
0

0
5

4
13

Ti
er

 1
 A

m
en

iti
es

AD
A 

La
nd

in
g 

Zo
ne

1
1

0
0

0
1

2
5

Sh
el

te
r

13
3

11
9

4
20

9
69

Be
nc

h
8

1
8

5
2

15
9

48
Li

gh
tin

g
14

4
9

7
4

19
10

67
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le
7

4
0

7
4

15
9

46
Ti

er
 2

 A
m

en
iti

es
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

14
4

12
13

4
20

9
76

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pa
rk

in
g

11
4

10
11

4
20

10
70

9A-31



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
27

BS
1:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 U

ni
nc

or
p.

 C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty

BS
2:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
, R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 (P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f P
in

ol
e,

 C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d,

 a
nd

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

2.
 P

E 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

3.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

5.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

0 
St

op
s

Co
st

: $
44

0,
00

0

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 3
, 4

 •
 W

es
tC

AT
: J

PX
, J

R/
JL

, C
3,

 1
9

Be
ne

fit
:

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

fo
rt 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f r
id

er
s 

(a
m

en
iti

es
)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

, M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
(S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
 a

nd
 C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d

2.
 P

E 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

3.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

5.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

4 
St

op
s

Co
st

: $
62

6,
00

0

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 6
, 7

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
74

, 7
2M Be

ne
fit

:
Im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
fo

rt 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f r

id
er

s 
(a

m
en

iti
es

)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

No
te

:  A
ll 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
in

 2
02

0 
do

lla
rs

.

9A-32



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
28

BS
3:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, R

ic
hm

on
d

BS
4:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 B
er

ke
le

y

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

4 
St

op
s

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

6 
St

op
s

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ru

m
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd
, 1

3t
h 

St
re

et
, H

ar
bo

ur
 W

ay
 (S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
, C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d

2.
 P

E 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

3.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

5.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Co
st

: $
69

3,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 8
 •

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t: 

71
, 7

6 Be
ne

fit
:

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

fo
rt 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f r
id

er
s 

(a
m

en
iti

es
)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
6t

h 
St

re
et

, U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

ou
le

va
rd

, S
ha

ttu
ck

 A
ve

nu
e 

(B
er

ke
le

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y

2.
 P

E 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

3.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

5.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Co
st

: $
62

1,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 7

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
18

, 5
1B

, 5
2,

 F,
 F

S,
 Z

Be
ne

fit
:

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

fo
rt 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f r
id

er
s 

(a
m

en
iti

es
)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

No
te

:  A
ll 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
in

 2
02

0 
do

lla
rs

.

9A-33



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
29

BS
5:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

BS
6:

 B
us

 S
to

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 O
ak

la
nd

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

6 
St

op
s

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 S
to

ps

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

0 
St

op
s

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Br

oa
dw

ay
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

\P
E 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l

2.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

3.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

4.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Co
st

: $
33

3,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
, 2

B,
 3

, 6
, 8

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
1,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
8,

 5
1A

, 5
8L

, 7
2,

 7
2M

, 7
2R

Be
ne

fit
:

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

fo
rt 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f r
id

er
s 

(a
m

en
iti

es
)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

3-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ho

lli
s 

St
re

et
, 4

0t
h 

St
re

et
, B

ro
ad

w
ay

 (E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 C
ity

 o
f O

ak
la

nd

2.
 P

E 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

3.
 O

pe
ra

to
r fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
of

 s
to

p 
la

yo
ut

 a
nd

 a
m

en
iti

es

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 s
to

p 
am

en
iti

es

5.
 O

ng
oi

ng
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

to
p 

rid
er

sh
ip

 le
ve

ls
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

m
en

tit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

Co
st

: $
61

1,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
, 2

A,
 6

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
31

, 5
7,

 C
, F

, J

Be
ne

fit
:

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

fo
rt 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f r
id

er
s 

(a
m

en
iti

es
)

En
ha

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 le

gi
bi

lit
y 

(w
ay

fin
di

ng
, b

ra
nd

in
g)

En
ha

nc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
(s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

In
st

al
l/i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

st
op

 
am

en
iti

es
:

• 
AD

A 
La

nd
in

g 
Zo

ne

• 
Sh

el
te

r

• 
Be

nc
h

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n-

sc
al

e 
Li

gh
tin

g

• 
Tr

as
h 

Re
ce

pt
ac

le

• 
Sy

st
em

 M
ap

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Pa

rk
in

g

No
te

:  A
ll 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
in

 2
02

0 
do

lla
rs

.

9A-34



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
30

6.
2 

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) d
es

cr
ib

es
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 u

se
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 tr
an

si
t v

eh
ic

le
 d

el
ay

s 
at

 s
ig

na
liz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
, b

y 
ei

th
er

 h
ol

di
ng

 li
gh

ts
 g

re
en

 
fo

r a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 p
er

io
d 

or
 s

ho
rte

ni
ng

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f r
ed

 li
gh

t p
er

io
ds

. T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
al

on
g 

ar
te

ria
l-r

un
ni

ng
 s

eg
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

ro
ut

es
, T

SP
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
at

 a
ll 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

s 
w

he
re

 it
 is

 it
 n

ot
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
 T

SP
 is

 a
 h

ig
hl

y-
de

si
re

d 
am

en
ity

 fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 

se
rv

ic
e,

 b
ut

 is
 n

ot
 a

 p
re

-r
eq

ui
si

te
 fo

r s
er

vic
e 

op
er

at
io

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
 tr

av
el

 a
lo

ng
 s

tre
et

s 
w

ith
in

 s
ev

en
 d

iff
er

en
t c

iti
es

, a
nd

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y. 

TS
P 

re
qu

ire
s 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 b

ot
h 

at
 th

e 
si

gn
al

 c
on

tro
lle

r o
pe

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 o
r C

al
tra

ns
 a

nd
 o

n-
bo

ar
d 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 B
ot

h 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
ha

ve
 th

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

fo
r T

SP
. A

C 
Tr

an
si

t i
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

up
gr

ad
e 

TS
P 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
or

rid
or

s.
 In

te
r-

ag
en

cy
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

TS
P.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

2 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

st
re

et
 s

eg
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 T

SP
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 F

or
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
lis

t o
f i

nt
er

se
ct

io
ns

 w
he

re
 T

SP
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d,
 re

fe
r t

o 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 D

.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

2 
- 

TS
P 

Si
gn

al
 U

pg
ra

de
s 

by
 S

tr
ee

t S
eg

m
en

t

Pr
oj

ec
t #

Ro
ut

e 
#s

St
re

et
Ex

te
nt

s
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

n
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
TS

P1
6,

 7
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
e/

23
rd

 S
t

Br
oa

dw
ay

 to
 M

ar
ke

t A
ve

Ci
ty

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

2

TS
P1

6,
 7

22
nd

/2
3r

d 
St

Rh
ee

m
 to

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
Ci

ty
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d
11

TS
P1

6,
 7

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
22

nd
 S

t t
o 

44
th

 S
t

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

5

TS
P2

8
Ru

m
ril

l B
lvd

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

e 
to

 S
an

fo
rd

 A
ve

Ci
ty

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

7

TS
P2

8
13

th
 S

t/H
ar

bo
ur

 W
ay

Rh
ee

m
 B

lvd
 to

 H
of

fm
an

 B
lvd

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

13

TS
P3

5
El

 P
or

ta
l D

r
Ro

ad
 2

0 
to

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

d
Ci

ty
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
2

TS
P3

5
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
d

El
 P

or
ta

l D
r t

o 
I-8

0
Un

in
co

rp
. C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
2

TS
P4

1,
 7

6t
h 

St
Gi

lm
an

 S
t t

o 
Un

ive
rs

ity
 A

ve
Ci

ty
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y
3

TS
P4

1,
 7

Sh
at

tu
ck

 A
ve

Un
ive

rs
ity

 A
ve

 to
 D

w
ig

ht
 W

ay
Ci

ty
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y
8

TS
P5

2,
 2

A,
 6

Ho
llis

 S
t

65
th

 S
t t

o 
40

th
 S

t
Ci

ty
 o

f E
m

er
yv

ille
7

TS
P5

2,
 2

A,
 6

40
th

 S
t

Ho
llis

 S
t t

o 
Ad

el
in

e 
St

Ci
ty

 o
f E

m
er

yv
ille

3

TS
P5

2,
 2

A,
 6

40
th

 S
t

M
ar

ke
t t

o 
Br

oa
dw

ay
Ci

ty
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

6

TS
P6

2,
 2

B,
 3

, 8
Gr

an
d 

Av
e

Fr
on

ta
ge

 R
d 

to
 B

ro
ad

w
ay

Ci
ty

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
10

9A-35



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
31

TS
P1

: T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
- 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d

TS
P2

: T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
- 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

8 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Qu

an
tit

y:
 2

0 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

, M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
(S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
, C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

(m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 tr

af
fic

 s
tu

dy
)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
36

0,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 6
, 7

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
72

M
, 7

4

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
du

ce
  

si
gn

al
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
8,

70
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ru

m
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd
, 1

3t
h 

St
re

et
, H

ar
bo

ur
 W

ay
 (S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
, C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

(m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 tr

af
fic

 s
tu

dy
)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
40

0,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 8
 •

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t: 

71
, 7

6 Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
du

ce
  

si
gn

al
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
3,

50
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

9A-36



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
32

TS
P3

: T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
- 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o,
 U

ni
nc

or
p.

 C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty

TS
P4

: T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
- 

Be
rk

el
ey

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
Qu

an
tit

y:
 4

 In
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

Ne
ed

: O
pt

im
al

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

1 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
El

 P
or

ta
l D

riv
e,

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
, U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
, C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

(m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 tr

af
fic

 s
tu

dy
)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
80

,0
00

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 5
 •

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t: 

70
, 7

4,
 L Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
du

ce
  

si
gn

al
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
1,

10
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
6t

h 
St

re
et

, S
ha

ttu
ck

 A
ve

nu
e 

(B
er

ke
le

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

(m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 tr

af
fic

 s
tu

dy
)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
22

0,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 7

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
1,

 1
8,

 4
9,

 F

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
du

ce
  

si
gn

al
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
5,

50
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

9A-37



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
33

TS
P5

: T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
- 

Em
er

vy
ill

e,
 O

ak
la

nd
TS

P6
: T

ra
ns

it 
Si

gn
al

 P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Oa

kl
an

d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

6 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

0 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ho

lli
s 

St
re

et
, 4

0t
h 

St
re

et
, B

ro
ad

w
ay

 (E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 O
ak

la
nd

)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 C
ity

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
 to

 d
es

ig
n 

(m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 tr

af
fic

 s
tu

dy
)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
32

0,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
, 2

A,
 6

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
31

, 5
7,

 C
, F

, J

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 th
at

 w
ill

 re
du

ce
  

si
gn

al
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

es
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
8,

90
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

6-
12

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Gr

an
d 

Av
en

ue
 (O

ak
la

nd
)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

 to
 d

es
ig

n 
(m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 tr
af

fic
 s

tu
dy

)

3.
 Im

pl
em

en
t u

pg
ra

de
s

Co
st

: $
20

0,
00

0

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
B,

 3
, 8

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
NL Be

ne
fit

:
Pr

ov
id

es
 tr

an
si

t p
rio

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 th

at
 w

ill
 re

du
ce

  
si

gn
al

 d
el

ay
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
va

ria
bi

lit
y 

fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
es

. T
ra

ve
l t

im
e 

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 a

t a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

13
,6

00
 A

nn
ua

l R
id

er
 H

ou
rs

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y 

(T
SP

) a
t a

ll 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

9A-38



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
34

6.
3 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 u

se
s 

I-8
0 

fo
r a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 it

s 
al

ig
nm

en
t. 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
I-8

0 
an

d 
th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 s
tre

et
s 

ar
e 

fre
qu

en
tly

 c
on

ge
st

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
o 

tra
ffi

c 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

 c
om

m
ut

e 
pe

rio
ds

. T
he

se
 a

re
as

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

tri
bu

to
rs

 to
 b

us
 d

el
ay

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 

tim
e 

va
ria

bi
lit

y. 
To

 re
du

ce
 d

el
ay

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 b
y 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
s 

at
 th

es
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 re

lia
bi

lit
y, 

se
ve

ra
l f

re
ew

ay
 a

cc
es

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

fo
r t

he
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ou
ld

 a
cc

es
s 

or
 e

gr
es

s 
I-8

0.
 T

he
se

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 

be
ne

fit
 tr

an
si

t t
ra

ve
l t

im
es

, m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

rid
in

g 
bu

s 
m

or
e 

tim
e-

co
m

pe
tit

ive
 w

ith
 d

riv
in

g 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

no
t p

re
-

re
qu

is
ite

s 
fo

r s
er

vic
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

ay
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
ov

er
 ti

m
e 

bo
th

 b
ef

or
e 

an
d 

af
te

r t
he

 s
ta

rt 
of

 s
er

vic
e.

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

es
:

• 
SR

-4
/J

oh
n 

M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

/I-
80

 (F
A1

)

• 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

/I-
80

 (F
A2

)

• 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d/
I-8

0 
(F

A3
)

• 
As

hb
y 

Av
en

ue
/I-

80
 (F

A4
)

Fo
r c

on
ce

pt
ua

l d
es

ig
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
, r

ef
er

 to
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E.

9A-39



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
35

FA
1:

 S
R-

4/
Jo

hn
 M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
 F

re
ew

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 F
re

ew
ay

 A
cc

es
s

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

33
-4

4 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
SR

-4
/J

oh
n 

M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

/I-
80

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

(H
er

cu
le

s)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: 
• 

Co
nc

ep
t o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R 

• 
CE

/C
E 

• 
PS

&E

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
, C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s

3.
 In

st
al

l r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 N

/A

Co
st

: $
3,

60
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

, 2
A,

 2
B 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
: L

yn
x,

 J
X

Be
ne

fit
:

Al
lo

w
s 

bu
se

s 
fro

m
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r t
o 

by
pa

ss
 

qu
eu

es
, i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

pe
rio

ds
. T

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 a

t 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

16
,4

00
 A

nn
ua

l R
id

er
 H

ou
rs

. T
hi

s 
fig

ur
e 

co
ns

id
er

s 
on

ly
 ro

ut
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 T

ot
al

 ti
m

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ac

ro
ss

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r. 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

HO
V-

on
ly

 s
ec

on
d 

rig
ht

-t
ur

n 
la

ne
 o

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 to

 J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay

• 
Ex

te
nd

 H
OV

 la
ne

 o
n 

Jo
hn

 M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

 to
 I-

80
 W

B 
on

-r
am

p

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
HO

V 
la

ne
 o

n 
I-8

0 
W

B 
on

-r
am

p

Fi
gu

re
 6

-3
 - 

SR
-4

/J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
/I-

80
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (F

A1
)

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, l

oc
at

ed
 e

as
t o

f I
-8

0 
an

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 S

R-
4,

 is
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 s
ev

er
al

 W
es

tC
AT

 lo
ca

l r
ou

te
s 

an
d 

ac
ts

 a
s 

th
e 

no
rth

er
n 

te
rm

in
us

 o
f t

he
 J

X 
an

d 
JP

X 
ex

pr
es

s 
ro

ut
es

. T
he

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

r i
s 

al
so

 s
er

ve
d 

by
 W

es
tC

AT
’s

 L
yn

x 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

Sa
le

sf
or

ce
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

. P
ro

po
se

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
tra

ve
lin

g 
so

ut
h 

fro
m

 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 w
ou

ld
 m

er
ge

 o
nt

o 
I-8

0 
W

B 
via

 W
illo

w
 A

ve
nu

e,
 S

yc
am

or
e 

Av
en

ue
, S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e,

 a
nd

 J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
. E

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 (s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
W

es
tC

AT
 L

YN
X 

an
d 

JP
X)

 ru
nn

in
g 

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

au
to

-b
as

ed
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
Jo

hn
 M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
 o

n 
th

ei
r a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

. I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
tra

ns
it 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 I-
80

 fr
om

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

. 

Th
e 

rig
ht

-t
ur

n 
la

ne
 fr

om
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 o

nt
o 

Jo
hn

 M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 b

e 
w

id
en

ed
 w

ith
 a

n 
HO

V 
la

ne
 a

dd
ed

. T
he

 H
OV

 la
ne

 w
ou

ld
 e

xt
en

d 
ea

st
 

on
 J

oh
n 

M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

 to
 th

e 
I-8

0 
on

-r
am

p.
 T

he
 ro

ad
w

ay
 w

id
en

in
g 

on
 J

oh
n 

M
ui

r P
ar

kw
ay

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 w
ith

in
 C

al
tra

ns
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
. T

he
 I-

80
 W

B 
on

-r
am

p 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 w
id

e 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

 o
f a

n 
HO

V 
la

ne
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 jo

in
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
HO

V 
la

ne
 o

n 
I-8

0.

9A-40



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
36

FA
2:

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 F

re
ew

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 F
re

ew
ay

 A
cc

es
s

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

27
-3

6 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

/I-
80

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

(R
ic

hm
on

d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 O

bt
ai

n 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
en

cr
oa

ch
m

en
t p

er
m

it

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
, C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d

3.
 A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 ra

m
p 

m
et

er
in

g 
an

d 
tra

ffi
c 

im
pa

ct
s

4.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 u

til
ity

 a
ge

nc
y 

fo
r u

til
ity

 b
ox

 re
lo

ca
tio

n

5.
 R

es
tri

p 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 N

/A

Co
st

: $
90

0,
00

0Ne
ed

: O
pt

im
al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

, 2
A,

 2
B,

 3
, 4

 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it:

 7
1,

 L
A,

 L
C 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
: J

PX
, J

R

Be
ne

fit
:

Al
lo

w
s 

bu
se

s 
fro

m
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 

to
 b

yp
as

s 
qu

eu
es

, i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
tra

ve
l t

im
e 

du
rin

g 
pe

ak
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
pe

rio
ds

. T
ra

ve
l t

im
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
19

,5
00

 A
nn

ua
l R

id
er

 H
ou

rs
. 

Th
is

 fi
gu

re
 c

on
si

de
rs

 o
nl

y 
ro

ut
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 

To
ta

l t
im

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ac

ro
ss

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r.

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Re
st

rip
e 

I-8
0 

W
B 

of
f-

ra
m

p 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 E
/B

• 
Ex

te
nd

 W
B 

rig
ht

-t
ur

n 
la

ne
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pk
w

y 
to

 B
lu

m
e 

Dr

• 
Ad

d 
HO

V 
rig

ht
-t

ur
n 

la
ne

 to
 I-

80
 W

B 
Di

re
ct

 A
cc

es
s 

Ra
m

p

• 
Ad

d 
HO

V 
la

ne
 o

n 
I-8

0 
EB

 o
n-

ra
m

p

 F
ig

ur
e 

6-
4 

- 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

/I-
80

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (F
A2

) 

Th
e 

I-8
0/

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
is

 u
se

d 
by

 b
us

es
 tr

av
el

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

fre
ew

ay
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
. T

he
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
al

lo
w

s 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 b

ot
h 

I-8
0 

EB
 a

nd
 I-

80
 W

B,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

di
re

ct
 a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

 (D
AR

s)
 to

/fr
om

 th
e 

HO
V 

la
ne

 s
ou

th
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

on
ge

st
io

n 
on

 b
us

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
es

 a
nd

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
al

on
g 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 a

nd
 b

et
w

ee
n 

I-8
0 

an
d 

th
e 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r. 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

st
rip

in
g 

th
e 

la
ne

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
in

g 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

I-8
0 

W
B 

of
f-

ra
m

p 
an

d 
th

e 
la

ne
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

in
g 

Bl
um

e 
Dr

ive
 fr

om
 e

as
tb

ou
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 a

n 
HO

V 
la

ne
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
on

 e
as

tb
ou

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 o
n 

th
e 

I-8
0 

ov
er

pa
ss

, c
on

tin
ui

ng
 o

nt
o 

th
e 

I-8
0 

EB
 o

n-
ra

m
p.

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

DA
Rs

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 I-
80

 to
 th

e 
no

rth
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 (c
os

t o
f t

hi
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 h

er
e)

. T
he

 id
en

tifi
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
w

ou
ld

 le
ve

ra
ge

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
DA

Rs
 b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

HO
V 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

irc
ul

at
io

n,
 b

en
efi

tin
g 

bo
th

 e
xis

tin
g 

an
d 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

es
.

9A-41



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
37

FA
3:

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 F
re

ew
ay

 A
cc

es
s

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

39
-5

4 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d/
I-8

0 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
(S

an
 P

ab
lo

)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: 
• 

Co
nc

ep
t o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R-

 C
E/

CE
 •

 P
S&

E

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
, C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo

3.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

CT
A 

to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

to
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
efi

ni
tio

n

4.
 R

OW
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 o
w

ne
r o

f S
W

 c
or

ne
r p

ar
ce

l

5.
 C

on
du

ct
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 ra

m
p 

m
et

er
in

g 
an

d 
tra

ffi
c 

im
pa

ct
s

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 N
/A

Co
st

: $
4,

60
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 5
 •

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t: 

74

Be
ne

fit
:

Al
lo

w
s 

bu
se

s 
fro

m
 E

l S
ob

ra
nt

e 
to

 b
yp

as
s 

qu
eu

es
,  

im
pr

ov
in

g 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

 c
on

-
ge

st
io

n 
pe

rio
ds

. T
ra

ve
l t

im
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

  
at

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

80
0 

An
nu

al
 R

id
er

 H
ou

rs
. T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
co

ns
id

er
s 

on
ly

 ro
ut

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 T
ot

al
 ti

m
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ac
ro

ss
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
gr

ea
te

r.

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

bu
s-

on
ly

 la
ne

 o
n 

I-8
0 

W
B 

on
-r

am
p

• 
Ad

d 
TS

P 
to

 o
n-

 a
nd

 o
ff-

ra
m

p 
si

gn
al

s

Fi
gu

re
 6

-5
 -

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d/

I-8
0 

Ac
ce

ss
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (F

A3
) 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
tra

ns
it 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 b

et
w

ee
n 

I-8
0 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 D
am

 R
oa

d 
(p

ro
je

ct
 M

H3
), 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
on

 th
e 

I-8
0 

ov
er

pa
ss

 a
nd

 I-
80

 W
B 

on
-r

am
p.

 R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
TS

P 
be

tw
ee

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
th

e 
on

-r
am

p,
 a

nd
 w

id
en

in
g 

th
e 

on
-r

am
p 

to
 p

ro
vid

e 
an

 
HO

V 
by

pa
ss

 la
ne

. T
hi

s 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
is

 s
la

te
d 

fo
r m

aj
or

 re
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 (C

CT
A)

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t f
un

di
ng

, a
lth

ou
gh

 it
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

’s
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 P

la
n.

 If
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
ha

t p
ro

je
ct

 is
 s

ec
ur

ed
, t

he
 id

en
tifi

ed
 tr

an
si

t p
rio

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

. I
f f

un
di

ng
 fo

r t
ha

t p
ro

je
ct

 is
 n

ot
 s

ec
ur

ed
, t

he
n 

th
e 

tra
ns

it-
fo

cu
se

d 
pr

io
rit

y 
ac

ce
ss

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ur

su
ed

 a
s 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
ive

.

9A-42



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
38

FA
4:

 A
sh

by
 A

ve
nu

e 
Fr

ee
w

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 F
re

ew
ay

 A
cc

es
s

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 S

um
m

er
 2

02
5

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
As

hb
y 

Av
en

ue
/I-

80
 In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
(E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 B

er
ke

le
y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 A

CT
C,

 C
al

tra
ns

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
bu

s-
on

ly
 o

r H
OV

 la
ne

 in
to

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 N
/A

Co
st

: $
-

Ne
ed

: O
pt

im
al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
, 2

A,
 6

Be
ne

fit
:

Al
lo

w
s 

bu
se

s 
fro

m
 E

m
er

yv
ill

e 
to

 b
yp

as
s 

qu
eu

es
,  

im
pr

ov
in

g 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

  
co

ng
es

tio
n 

pe
rio

ds
.

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

bu
s-

on
ly

 o
r H

OV
 la

ne
 o

n 
I-8

0 
EB

 o
n-

ra
m

p

Fi
gu

re
 6

-6
 -

 A
sh

by
 A

ve
nu

e/
I-8

0 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
ap

 (F
A4

)

Al
am

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 (A
la

m
ed

a 
CT

C)
 h

as
 

an
 o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
 to

 re
co

nfi
gu

re
 th

e 
As

hb
y 

Av
en

ue
 a

nd
 I-

80
 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e.

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
al

te
rn

at
ive

s 
w

ith
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

sl
at

ed
 to

 b
eg

in
 in

 2
02

2.
 B

ec
au

se
 th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

no
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
As

hb
y 

Av
en

ue
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e,
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
is

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

ac
ce

ss
 p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

. 
Ho

w
ev

er
, w

ith
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n,
 E

m
er

yv
ille

 
ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

e 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

I-8
0.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, i

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 tr

an
si

t p
rio

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 to

 
pr

io
rit

ize
 b

us
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 th

e 
no

rth
 o

n 
I-8

0.
 T

he
 e

xa
ct

 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 A

la
m

ed
a 

CT
C.

 

9A-43



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
39

6.
4 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es
Se

ve
ra

l o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 R
ou

te
 2

 in
 th

e 
ne

ar
-t

er
m

, w
ou

ld
 tr

av
el

 o
n 

I-8
0 

be
tw

ee
n 

SR
-4

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
, a

 c
or

rid
or

 th
at

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

on
ge

st
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pe
ak

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
. S

ev
er

al
 e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
ro

ut
es

 a
lre

ad
y 

tra
ve

l o
n 

th
is

 s
eg

m
en

t o
f I

-8
0,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Ly

nx
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

es
tC

AT
 J

X/
JP

X.
 B

et
w

ee
n 

th
es

e 
tw

o 
po

in
ts

, I
-8

0 
is

 c
on

fig
ur

ed
 w

ith
 th

re
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ur
po

se
 la

ne
s,

 a
n 

HO
V 

3+
 la

ne
 (r

eq
ui

rin
g 

at
 

le
as

t t
hr

ee
 o

cc
up

an
ts

 in
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e)
, a

nd
 a

n 
au

xil
ia

ry
 la

ne
 in

 e
ac

h 
di

re
ct

io
n.

 W
hi

le
 b

us
es

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
us

e 
th

e 
HO

V 
la

ne
, t

he
 la

ne
 is

 q
ui

te
 c

on
ge

st
ed

 
an

d 
of

fe
rs

 li
m

ite
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 b

en
efi

t c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ixe

d 
flo

w
 la

ne
s.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, b

us
es

 m
us

t m
er

ge
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l o
f t

he
 m

ixe
d 

flo
w

 la
ne

s 
to

 
ac

ce
ss

 th
e 

HO
V 

la
ne

. F
or

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 b

ot
h 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 (R

ou
te

s 
1,

 2
, 2

A,
 a

nd
 

2B
), 

th
e 

sh
or

t d
is

ta
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
tw

o 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

 is
 n

ot
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
HO

V 
la

ne
.

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
tra

ve
l s

pe
ed

s 
an

d 
bu

s 
sc

he
du

le
 re

lia
bi

lit
y 

al
on

g 
th

is
 c

or
rid

or
, p

ur
su

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fo
r p

ar
t-

tim
e 

tra
ns

it 
la

ne
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

(a
ls

o 
kn

ow
n 

as
 b

us
-o

n-
sh

ou
ld

er
) w

ith
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 a
ux

ilia
ry

 la
ne

s 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 R

at
he

r t
ha

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 to

 th
e 

HO
V 

la
ne

 o
r t

ra
ve

lin
g 

in
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l-p
ur

po
se

 
la

ne
s,

 b
us

es
 w

ou
ld

 tr
av

el
 in

 th
e 

au
xil

ia
ry

 la
ne

s 
fo

r t
he

 a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
th

re
e-

m
ile

 s
eg

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
SR

-4
 in

 H
er

cu
le

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 
in

 R
ic

hm
on

d.
 In

 s
eg

m
en

ts
 w

he
re

 a
ux

ilia
ry

 la
ne

s 
ar

e 
no

t p
ro

vid
ed

, t
he

 b
us

 w
ou

ld
 o

pe
ra

te
 o

n 
th

e 
sh

ou
ld

er
. T

hi
s 

w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 s
ho

ul
de

r 
pa

ve
m

en
t s

tru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 a
dd

in
g 

si
gn

ag
e 

an
d 

st
rip

in
g.

 C
CT

A 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
pu

rs
ui

ng
 a

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
tra

ns
it 

la
ne

 p
ilo

t p
ro

gr
am

 o
n 

I-6
80

, M
TC

 is
 

pu
rs

ui
ng

 a
 s

im
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
Du

m
ba

rto
n 

Br
id

ge
, a

nd
 S

AN
DA

G 
(th

e 
Sa

n 
Di

eg
o 

Co
un

ty
 m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 p

la
nn

in
g 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n)

 
ha

s 
re

ce
ive

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 fo

r b
us

-o
n-

sh
ou

ld
er

 o
n 

I-8
05

 in
 S

an
 D

ie
go

. B
us

-o
n-

sh
ou

ld
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

uc
ce

ss
 in

 th
e 

st
at

e 
of

 M
in

ne
so

ta
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 o
ve

r 2
50

 m
ile

s 
of

 fr
ee

w
ay

 s
ho

ul
de

r o
n 

w
hi

ch
 b

us
es

 a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
. 

W
he

re
 b

us
es

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 tr
av

el
 o

n 
sh

ou
ld

er
s,

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

do
 s

o 
w

he
n 

sp
ee

ds
 fa

ll 
be

lo
w

 a
 p

re
de

te
rm

in
ed

 le
ve

l a
nd

, f
or

 s
af

et
y 

pu
rp

os
es

, 
w

ou
ld

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

co
ns

ta
nt

 d
iff

er
en

tia
l b

et
w

ee
n 

bu
s 

tra
ve

l s
pe

ed
s 

an
d 

th
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 tr
af

fic
 in

 th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 g
en

er
al

-p
ur

po
se

 la
ne

 (s
pe

ci
fic

 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
ar

am
et

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f f

ut
ur

e 
po

lic
y)

. T
he

 m
ax

im
um

 s
pe

ed
 a

ss
um

ed
 fo

r b
us

-o
n-

sh
ou

ld
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
35

 
m

ile
s 

pe
r h

ou
r. 

W
hi

le
 th

is
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
ou

ld
 g

re
at

ly 
be

ne
fit

 tr
an

si
t t

ra
ve

l t
im

es
 fo

r p
ro

po
se

d 
ro

ut
es

 u
si

ng
 I-

80
 b

et
w

ee
n 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 

an
d 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, i
t i

s 
no

t a
 p

re
-r

eq
ui

si
te

 fo
r s

er
vic

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

.

Fo
r c

on
ce

pt
ua

l d
es

ig
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
, r

ef
er

 to
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E.

Sa
n 

Di
eg

o 
w

ill
 b

e 
op

en
in

g 
a 

Bu
s 

on
 S

ho
ul

de
r D

em
on

st
ra

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

n 
20

20

9A-44



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
40

TL
1:

 I-
80

 P
ar

t-
Ti

m
e 

Tr
an

si
t L

an
es

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 F
re

ew
ay

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

27
-3

6 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
I-8

0 
Be

tw
ee

n 
SR

-4
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
es

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: 
• 

Co
nc

ep
t o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R 

• 
CE

/C
E 

• 
PS

&E

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns

3.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

HP

4.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 W

es
tC

AT

5.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 tr
an

si
t o

pe
ra

to
rs

 u
si

ng
 I-

80

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 N

/A

Co
st

: $
6,

00
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

, 2
A,

 2
B 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
: L

yn
x,

 J
PX

/J
X 

• 
FA

ST
: G

X 
• 

So
ltr

an
s:

 R
, 8

2 
• 

Vi
ne

 T
ra

ns
it:

 2
9

Be
ne

fit
:

Al
lo

w
s 

bu
se

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
m

in
im

um
 s

pe
ed

 o
n 

I-8
0,

  
im

pr
ov

in
g 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
tra

ve
l t

im
e 

du
rin

g 
pe

ak
  

co
ng

es
tio

n 
pe

rio
ds

. T
ra

ve
l t

im
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

es
tim

at
ed

  
at

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

53
,4

00
 A

nn
ua

l R
id

er
 H

ou
rs

. T
hi

s 
fig

ur
e 

co
ns

id
er

s 
on

ly
 ro

ut
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 T

ot
al

 ti
m

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ac

ro
ss

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r.

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Bu
s-

on
ly

 la
ne

 b
et

w
ee

n 
SR

-4
 a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pk
w

y, 
3-

m
ile

 s
eg

m
en

t

• 
Us

e 
au

xi
lia

ry
 la

ne
 b

et
w

ee
n 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

• 
Al

lo
w

 u
se

 o
f s

ho
ul

de
r t

hr
ou

gh
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

es

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
si

gn
ag

e,
 m

ar
ki

ng
s,

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
de

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
sh

ou
ld

er
 u

se
 b

y 
bu

se
s 

du
rin

g 
co

ng
es

te
d 

pe
rio

d

Fi
gu

re
 6

-7
 –

 I-
80

 P
ar

t-
Ti

m
e 

Tr
an

si
t L

an
es

 (T
L1

)

9A-45



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
41

6.
5 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 p
rim

ar
ily

 a
cc

es
se

d 
via

 p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 lo

ts
 a

t t
ra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s.

 T
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t a

t R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 re
gu

la
rly

 fi
lls

 to
 c

ap
ac

ity
 b

y 
7:

00
 A

.M
. W

hi
le

 th
e 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
eg

ul
ar

ly 
fil

l u
p 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
m

or
ni

ng
 c

om
m

ut
e 

pe
rio

d,
 it

 is
 n

ea
rin

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f p

ar
ki

ng
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

is
 m

uc
h 

le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

. A
s 

su
ch

, a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 s
er

vin
g 

th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

ly 
no

t r
ea

ch
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
w

ith
ou

t f
ur

th
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

Fo
r b

ot
h 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 tr

an
si

t a
cc

es
s 

po
in

ts
, m

ul
tim

od
al

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

fe
at

ur
es

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d.
 T

hi
s 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 a
nd

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 w

ou
ld

 fe
at

ur
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
ui

te
 o

f m
ob

ilit
y 

op
tio

ns
 to

 a
llo

w
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 u
se

rs
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

tra
ns

it.
 T

he
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 

an
d 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

by
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

au
to

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

e 
bi

ke
 p

ar
ki

ng
, r

ea
l-t

im
e 

ar
riv

al
 d

is
pl

ay
s,

 
pi

ck
-u

p/
dr

op
-o

ff 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r r

id
es

ha
re

, m
ob

ilit
y 

ne
tw

or
k 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 s
ha

re
d 

m
ic

ro
-m

ob
ilit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

nd
 e

le
ct

ric
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

ha
rg

in
g.

 O
ne

 o
f t

he
 

m
os

t s
pa

ce
-in

te
ns

ive
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

r d
es

ig
n 

is
 a

ut
om

ob
ile

 p
ar

ki
ng

. A
ut

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 tr
an

si
t a

cc
es

s 
in

 th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

 d
ue

 to
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
bi

cy
cl

e 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ne
tw

or
ks

, l
im

ite
d 

lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e,

 a
nd

 lo
w

er
-

de
ns

ity
 h

ou
si

ng
. I

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 m
ul

tim
od

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, i

nfi
ll 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

or
 a

ut
on

om
ou

s 
ve

hi
cl

es
 m

ay
 re

du
ce

 o
r e

ve
nt

ua
lly

 e
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r a

ut
o 

pa
rk

in
g 

at
 s

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, w
hi

le
 a

ut
o 

pa
rk

in
g 

is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

at
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 a
nd

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, i
t 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r o

th
er

 u
se

s 
an

d 
al

l f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly.

Fo
r c

on
ce

pt
ua

l d
es

ig
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
, r

ef
er

 to
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E.

Ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

s
On

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

fa
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
is

 C
ha

pt
er

 is
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
of

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

. C
ur

re
nt

ly 
tw

o 
of

 th
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 fo
r m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 a

re
 p

riv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
(M

H1
, M

H2
), 

tw
o 

ar
e 

ow
ne

d 
by

 C
al

tra
ns

 (M
H3

, M
H5

), 
an

d 
on

e 
is

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

(M
H4

). 
Hi

st
or

ic
al

ly 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
ha

s 
op

er
at

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 ri

de
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

on
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

fre
ew

ay
-a

dj
ac

en
t r

ig
ht

s-
of

-
w

ay
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
re

ce
nt

 ti
m

es
 C

al
tra

ns
 h

as
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 re
se

rv
at

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

ne
w

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 G

ive
n 

th
at

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 a
re

 s
im

ila
rly

 re
lu

ct
an

t t
o 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ne

w
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
/tr

an
si

t c
en

te
rs

, a
n 

ow
ni

ng
 e

nt
ity

 m
us

t b
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

. T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 a
re

 s
ite

d,
 o

r M
TC

, w
hi

ch
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

re
e 

ne
w

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
lo

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

Ba
y 

Br
id

ge
 F

or
w

ar
d 

in
iti

at
ive

. 

In
te

rim
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

Th
e 

la
rg

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ex

ce
ss

 d
em

an
d 

at
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
, w

ill 
lik

el
y 

lim
it 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
id

er
sh

ip
 fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 
ro

ut
es

 s
er

vin
g 

th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 p
rio

r t
o 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t p
ro

je
ct

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,

 d
ue

 to
 it

s 
hi

gh
 c

os
t, 

it 
w

ill 
lik

el
y 

no
t b

e 
th

e 
fir

st
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. T

he
re

fo
re

, s
ev

er
al

 p
ot

en
tia

l s
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 a
cc

es
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

:

• 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b(
s)

 a
t T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e 
(M

H1
, M

H2
) a

nd
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e 

(M
H3

), 
if 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

al
on

g 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

ly 
ab

so
rb

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
.

• 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ap

ac
ity

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 p

riv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

le
as

ed
 n

ea
r t

he
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
r. 

Th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

fo
r p

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

us
e 

is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

kn
ow

n.
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

os
t r

ea
di

ly 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

is
 lo

ca
te

d 
fu

rth
er

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 tr
an

si
t 

ce
nt

er
 o

n 
Bl

um
e 

Dr
ive

. D
ev

ia
tin

g 
bu

se
s 

so
ut

h 
of

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 w
ou

ld
 in

cu
r a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l p

en
al

ty
 fo

r r
id

er
s 

fro
m

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

is
 n

ot
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d.

 If
, i

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

, R
ou

te
s 

1 
or

 2
 a

re
 s

pl
it 

to
 o

nl
y 

se
rv

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, t

hi
s 

de
via

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l. 
It 

is
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
co

st
 to

 p
ro

vid
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

on
 e

xis
tin

g 
ne

ar
by

 lo
ts

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ha

rg
es

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

• 
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

ic
yc

le
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

vic
in

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 w
ou

ld
 a

llo
w

 s
om

e 
us

er
s 

w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
dr

ive
 to

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
it 

via
 o

th
er

 m
od

es

• 
W

hi
le

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
 fo

r R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
el

em
en

ts
, i

t m
ay

 b
e 

fe
as

ib
le

 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 s

ub
se

t o
f t

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

cc
om

pa
ny

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 o
pt

im
iza

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
lim

ite
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
pp

ly,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ca

rp
oo

l p
rio

rit
y, 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ic

k-
up

/d
ro

p-
of

f f
ac

ilit
ie

s,
 a

 p
ar

ki
ng

 re
se

rv
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
, a

nd
 s

ha
re

d 
m

ic
ro

-m
ob

ilit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

.

In
te

rim
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

Th
e 

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 is

 n
ea

rin
g 

its
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

s 
w

el
l. 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
 (T

C1
) w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
 

an
y 

im
pa

ct
 to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

on
 p

ro
pe

rty
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

ow
ne

d 
by

 B
AR

T. 
Ho

w
ev

er
, i

t w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 B
AR

T, 
PG

&E
 (w

hi
ch

 o
w

ns
 a

 u
til

ity
 s

ub
st

at
io

n 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly 
so

ut
h 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
), 

W
es

tC
AT

, a
nd

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s.

 B
AR

T, 
as

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 la

nd
ow

ne
r, 

co
ul

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

le
ad

. F
ur

th
er

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
w

ill 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

PG
&E

 tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 li
ne

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty.

 It
 m

ay
 b

e 
fe

as
ib

le
 to

 b
ui

ld
 in

te
rim

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
if 

a 
ne

w
 a

ut
o 

ra
m

p 
to

 th
e 

va
ca

nt
 p

ro
pe

rty
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y 
m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 th
e 

I-8
0/

SR
-4

 a
cc

es
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
Hi

gh
-C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
st

ud
y 

(re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 2
.1

), 
al

th
ou

gh
 it

 is
 n

ot
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 

pr
ec

lu
de

 th
at

 fu
tu

re
, u

nf
un

de
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

9A-46



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
42

M
H1

: T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 -
 O

pt
io

n 
1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

9-
21

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 a

nd
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e 
(U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

op
er

ty

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
ov

er
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p

3.
 O

bt
ai

n 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t v

ia
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
(re

qu
ire

s 
fin

di
ng

 th
at

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t i

s 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

hu
b)

4.
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

5.
 T

ra
ffi

c 
an

al
ys

is
 fo

r i
nt

er
se

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

6.
 D

ev
el

op
 M

OU
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
ob

ili
ty

 h
ub

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

7.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 lo
t a

nd
 m

ob
ili

ty
 h

ub
 fe

at
ur

es

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 6

0 
St

al
ls

Co
st

: $
3,

60
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: R

eq
ui

re
d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 3
, 4

 •
 W

es
tC

AT
: J

R/
JL Be

ne
fit

:
Pr

ov
id

es
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

fo
r 

Pi
no

le
 a

nd
 U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

un
ty

 re
si

de
nt

s 
no

t l
iv

in
g 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

op
. A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

50
,0

00
 A

nn
ua

l A
dd

iti
on

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
Tr

ip
s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
e 

pa
ve

m
en

t

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ns
it 

st
op

 a
m

en
iti

es

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Fi
gu

re
 6

-8
 -

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b,

 O
pt

io
n 

1 
(M

H1
)

Tw
o 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
oc

at
io

ns
 fo

r a
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
Pi

no
le

 a
nd

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
, b

ot
h 

at
 th

e 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
of

 S
an

 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 a

nd
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e.
 O

pt
io

n 
1 

(p
ro

je
ct

 M
H1

) i
s 

on
 th

e 
w

es
t s

id
e 

of
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly 
so

ut
h 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
Va

le
ro

 g
as

 s
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

 1
.2

-a
cr

e 
pa

rc
el

 is
 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

pa
rti

al
ly 

pa
ve

d.
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

Ge
ne

ra
l P

la
n 

20
40

 u
pd

at
e,

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

is
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

’s
 d

es
ire

d 
fu

tu
re

 u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 s
ite

. C
ur

re
nt

 z
on

in
g 

al
lo

w
s 

fo
r p

ro
vis

io
n 

of
 a

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
hu

b.
 

Th
e 

pa
rc

el
 c

ou
ld

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

60
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lo
t w

hi
le

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

lo
t t

o 
th

e 
Sp

ec
tru

m
 C

en
te

r S
ch

oo
l 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly 

to
 th

e 
so

ut
hw

es
t. 

Ex
is

tin
g 

bu
s 

st
op

s 
ar

e 
al

on
g 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 w
es

t o
f T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 if

 O
pt

io
n 

1 
w

er
e 

se
le

ct
ed

. T
he

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 li
nk

 fo
r c

om
m

ut
er

s 
in

 P
in

ol
e 

an
d 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y;
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r r
eq

ui
re

s 
ou

t-
of

-d
ire

ct
io

n 
no

rth
w

ar
d 

tra
ve

l a
nd

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

re
gu

la
rly

 re
ac

he
s 

pa
rk

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty.

 T
he

 s
ite

 is
 fa

r e
no

ug
h 

fro
m

 I-
80

 th
at

 it
 is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
us

in
g 

I-8
0 

w
ou

ld
 d

ive
rt 

to
 tr

av
el

 to
 th

e 
si

te
. I

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 M

H1
 b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
fir

st
; i

f u
se

 is
 h

ig
h,

 th
e 

ot
he

r s
ite

 (M
H2

) m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 p
ur

su
ed

. 

9A-47



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
43

M
H2

: T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 -
 O

pt
io

n 
2

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

24
-3

3 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 a

nd
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e 
(U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

op
er

ty

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
ov

er
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p

3.
 O

bt
ai

n 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t v

ia
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
(re

qu
ire

s 
fin

di
ng

 th
at

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t i

s 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

hu
b)

4.
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

5.
 T

ra
ffi

c 
an

al
ys

is
 fo

r i
nt

er
se

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

6.
 D

ev
el

op
 M

OU
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
ob

ili
ty

 h
ub

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

7.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 lo
t a

nd
 m

ob
ili

ty
 h

ub
 fe

at
ur

es

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 2

10
 S

ta
lls

Co
st

: $
13

,3
00

,0
00Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 3
, 4

 •
 W

es
tC

AT
: J

R/
JL Be

ne
fit

:
Pr

ov
id

es
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

fo
r 

Pi
no

le
 a

nd
 U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

un
ty

 re
si

de
nt

s 
no

t l
iv

in
g 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

op
. A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

16
0,

00
0 

An
nu

al
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Cl
ea

r, 
gr

ad
e 

an
d 

pa
ve

 s
ite

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t l
ig

ht
in

g

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

an
d 

st
rip

e 
cr

os
sw

al
ks

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ns
it 

st
op

 a
m

en
iti

es

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Fi
gu

re
 6

-9
 -

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b,

 O
pt

io
n 

2 
(M

H2
) 

Ta
ra

 H
ills

 D
riv

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
Op

tio
n 

2 
(p

ro
je

ct
 M

H2
) i

s 
on

 th
e 

no
rth

 s
id

e 
of

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

no
rth

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e,

 o
pp

os
ite

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Of
 th

e 
13

.4
 a

cr
e 

si
te

, 2
.3

 a
cr

es
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r t

he
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
to

 p
ro

vid
e 

am
ax

im
um

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

21
0 

sp
ac

es
. S

to
ps

 s
er

vin
g 

th
e 

lo
t w

ou
ld

 re
m

ai
n 

al
on

g 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
. 

A 
no

rth
bo

un
d 

st
op

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

si
de

w
al

k 
of

 th
e 

so
ut

he
as

t c
or

ne
r o

f t
he

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

as
 a

 p
ar

t o
f a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
an

d 
en

tit
le

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
he

re
. 

Cr
os

si
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
t t

he
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
of

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

an
d 

Go
ld

en
 G

at
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
fro

m
 th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

Li
ke

 M
H1

, t
he

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 li
nk

 fo
r c

om
m

ut
er

s 
in

 P
in

ol
e 

an
d 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y;
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r r
eq

ui
re

s 
ou

t-
of

-
di

re
ct

io
n 

no
rth

w
ar

d 
tra

ve
l a

nd
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
re

gu
la

rly
 re

ac
he

s 
pa

rk
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty.
 T

he
 s

ite
 is

 fa
r e

no
ug

h 
fro

m
 I-

80
 th

at
 it

 is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

th
at

 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
us

in
g 

I-8
0 

w
ou

ld
 d

ive
rt 

to
 tr

av
el

 to
 th

e 
si

te
. M

H2
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
if 

M
H1

 is
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l e
no

ug
h 

to
 re

gu
la

rly
 re

ac
h 

ca
pa

ci
ty.

9A-48



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
44

M
H3

: S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

33
-4

2 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
M

or
ro

w
 D

riv
e 

(S
an

 P
ab

lo
)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: 
• 

Co
nc

ep
t o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R 

• 
CE

/C
E 

• 
PS

&E

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
, C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo

3.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

CT
A 

to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

to
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
efi

ni
tio

n

4.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 lo
t a

nd
 m

ob
ili

ty
 h

ub
 fe

at
ur

es

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 1
50

 S
ta

lls

Co
st

: $
9,

90
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: R

eq
ui

re
d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 5
 •

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t: 

L

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
 

fo
r E

l S
ob

ra
nt

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

no
t l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 
di

st
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

st
op

. A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

11
5,

00
0 

An
nu

al
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
rip

s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Cl
ea

r, 
gr

ad
e,

 p
av

e,
 a

nd
 s

tri
pe

 m
ob

ili
ty

 
hu

b 
si

te

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
si

gn
al

 a
t m

ob
ili

ty
 h

ub
 e

nt
ra

nc
e

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ns
it 

sh
el

te
rs

 w
ith

 a
m

en
iti

es

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
lo

t l
ig

ht
in

g

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
0 

- 
Pr

op
os

ed
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 D
am

 R
oa

d 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
(M

H3
) 

Th
e 

El
 S

ob
ra

nt
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
no

t-
w

el
l s

er
ve

d 
by

 tr
an

si
t t

o 
re

ac
h 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
rs

 in
 th

e 
Ea

st
 B

ay
. T

he
 la

rg
es

t t
ra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s,

 H
er

cu
le

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

, a
re

 n
or

th
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 (a

nd
 re

qu
ire

 o
ut

-o
f-

di
re

ct
io

n 
tra

ve
l),

 li
ke

ly 
a 

fa
ct

or
 in

 m
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 c
ho

ic
e 

to
 d

riv
e.

 A
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

e 
se

rv
in

g 
a 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 D
am

 R
oa

d 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 c
on

ve
rt 

th
os

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
dr

ive
rs

 to
 u

se
 tr

an
si

t w
ith

ou
t r

eq
ui

rin
g 

an
y 

de
to

ur
 o

r o
ut

-o
f-

di
re

ct
io

n 
tra

ve
l. 

Du
e 

to
 th

e 
lo

w
er

-d
en

si
ty

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

is
 p

ar
t o

f W
es

t C
ou

nt
y, 

it 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

be
 b

ui
lt 

to
 c

on
ne

ct
 re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e,

 a
s 

th
e 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a 

is
 u

ns
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r w
al

k-
up

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e.

 

CC
TA

/C
al

tra
ns

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
pu

rs
ui

ng
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 re
co

ns
tru

ct
 th

e 
I-8

0/
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e;
 th

e 
pa

rc
el

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
fo

r t
he

 M
H3

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
st

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
 fo

r t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Th

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
co

ul
d 

be
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f t

he
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
re

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 w
he

n 
th

e 
pa

rc
el

 is
 

va
ca

te
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t c
om

pl
et

io
n.

 D
ue

 to
 th

e 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
ce

l a
dd

iti
on

al
 g

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l s

tu
di

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

a 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b.

9A-49



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
45

M
H4

: B
is

se
ll 

Av
en

ue
 M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

9-
21

 m
on

th
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

nu
e 

& 
39

th
 A

ve
nu

e 
(R

ic
hm

on
d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

t C
ou

nt
y 

fo
r R

OW

2.
 D

ev
el

op
 M

OU
 w

ith
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y

3.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
fo

r r
oa

dw
ay

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

4.
 E

va
lu

at
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 fo

r j
oi

nt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

5.
 R

ep
av

e 
lo

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
ob

ili
ty

 h
ub

 fe
at

ur
es

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 1

20
 S

ta
lls

Co
st

: $
3,

30
0,

00
0Ne

ed
: R

eq
ui

re
d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 6
, 7

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
fo

r 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
no

t l
iv

in
g 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
  

di
st

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

op
. A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 g
en

er
at

e 
90

,0
00

 A
nn

ua
l A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
e 

pa
ve

m
en

t

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ns
it 

sh
el

te
rs

 w
ith

 a
m

en
iti

es

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

• 
St

rip
e 

cr
os

sw
al

k 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ne

w
 c

ur
b 

ra
m

ps

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
1 

- 
Pr

op
os

ed
 B

is
se

ll 
Av

en
ue

 M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(M
H4

) 

A 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
on

 th
e 

su
rfa

ce
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t o
f t

he
 (n

ow
 v

ac
at

ed
) R

ic
hm

on
d 

He
al

th
 C

en
te

r o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
si

de
 o

f B
is

se
ll A

ve
nu

e 
in

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

37
th

 S
tre

et
 a

nd
 4

2n
d 

St
re

et
. A

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

on
 th

is
 p

ar
ce

l w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

12
0 

ve
hi

cl
es

. B
us

 s
to

ps
 s

er
vin

g 
th

e 
lo

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
on

 th
e 

no
rth

 a
nd

 
so

ut
h 

si
de

s 
of

 B
is

se
ll A

ve
nu

e.
 T

he
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
is

 e
nv

is
io

ne
d 

to
 s

er
ve

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, p

rim
ar

ily
 to

 th
e 

no
rth

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
, t

ha
t a

re
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

e 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 o
r t

he
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

BA
RT

 S
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f r
es

id
en

ce
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
no

rth
 o

f t
he

 fa
ci

lit
y 

no
t w

el
l-s

er
ve

d 
by

 e
xis

tin
g 

lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
it 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
ne

ct
 to

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r n
ea

rb
y 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

n 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

at
 th

is
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b.

Th
e 

pa
rc

el
 is

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r s
al

e 
by

 th
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Di
vis

io
n.

 F
ur

th
er

 d
ilig

en
ce

 w
ill 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 a

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

is
 fe

as
ib

le
 a

t t
hi

s 
lo

ca
tio

n 
gi

ve
n 

Co
un

ty
 p

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
 p

ar
ce

l. 

9A-50



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
46

M
H5

: W
rig

ht
 A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ob
ili

ty
 H

ub

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

30
-3

9 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
W

rig
ht

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

17
th

 S
tre

et
 (R

ic
hm

on
d)

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: 
• 

Co
nc

ep
t o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R 

• 
CE

/C
E 

• 
PS

&E

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns

3.
 D

ev
el

op
 M

OU
 w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
 fo

r l
ot

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

4.
 D

et
er

m
in

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r u
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 W
rig

ht
 A

ve
nu

e

5.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
fo

r r
eq

ui
re

d 
ro

ad
w

ay
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

6.
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

7.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 lo
t

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 2
20

 S
ta

lls

Co
st

: $
12

,8
00

,0
00Ne

ed
: R

eq
ui

re
d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 8
 •

 G
ol

de
n 

Ga
te

 T
ra

ns
it:

 4
0,

 4
0X

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
 

bu
s 

fo
r R

ic
hm

on
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
(a

nd
 I-

58
0 

us
er

s)
  

no
t l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

st
op

. 
An

tic
ip

at
ed

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

17
0,

00
0 

An
nu

al
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
rip

s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Cl
ea

r, 
gr

ad
e 

an
d 

pa
ve

 s
ite

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t l
ig

ht
in

g

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

an
d 

st
rip

e 
cr

os
sw

al
ks

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
tra

ns
it 

sh
el

te
r

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
2 

- 
Pr

op
os

ed
 W

rig
ht

 A
ve

nu
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(M
H5

)

A 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
on

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
si

de
 o

f I
-5

80
 b

et
w

ee
n 

M
ar

in
a 

W
ay

 S
 a

nd
 M

ar
in

a 
Ba

y 
Pa

rk
w

ay
. T

he
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ca
ltr

an
s 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

 b
et

w
ee

n 
W

rig
ht

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

I-5
80

. T
he

 lo
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

22
0 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
. R

e-
gr

ad
in

g 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 a
 re

ta
in

in
g 

w
al

l a
re

 
lik

el
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 re

ac
h 

th
at

 c
ap

ac
ity

. A
 s

m
al

le
r p

ar
k 

& 
rid

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 w
ith

 le
ss

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

 a
nd

 th
us

 lo
w

er
 c

os
t. 

Th
e 

hu
b 

w
ou

ld
 

se
rv

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
fro

m
 P

oi
nt

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
an

d 
M

ar
in

a 
Ba

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. A

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

at
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n 
al

so
 h

as
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ca

pt
ur

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
I-5

80
 u

se
rs

, r
ed

uc
in

g 
au

to
 

de
m

an
ds

 o
n 

I-5
80

. I
t c

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 b
e 

ut
iliz

ed
 b

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
Go

ld
en

 G
at

e 
Tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

on
 I-

58
0.

Co
nv

er
sa

tio
ns

 w
ith

 M
TC

 h
av

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

in
te

rs
te

d 
in

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

Ri
ch

m
on

d-
Sa

n 
Ra

fa
el

 B
rid

ge
 F

or
w

ar
d 

in
iti

at
ive

. C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 

M
TC

 w
ill 

be
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly 
im

po
rta

nt
 in

 p
ur

su
in

g 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

9A-51



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
47

TC
1:

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

34
-4

0 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, H
er

cu
le

s

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 B

AR
T 

to
 g

ai
n 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
ar

ce
l

3.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 P

G&
E 

to
 re

lo
ca

te
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

po
w

er
 li

ne

4.
 D

ev
el

op
 M

OU
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
ob

ili
ty

 h
ub

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

5.
 P

re
pa

re
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 a
nd

 p
ha

si
ng

 p
la

n

6.
 E

st
ab

lis
h 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ea
se

m
en

t

7.
 E

va
lu

at
e 

w
he

th
er

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ca
nd

id
at

e 
fo

r d
es

ig
n-

bu
ild

 c
on

tra
ct

8.
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

9.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 3
00

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

St
al

ls

Co
st

: $
19

,5
00

,0
00Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

, 2
A,

 2
B 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
: L

YN
X,

 J
X/

JP
X,

 J
R/

JL
, C

3,
 3

0Z

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r c
on

tin
ue

d 
tra

ns
it 

us
er

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

fo
r 

He
rc

ul
es

 re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
I-8

0 
us

er
s 

no
t l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 
w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

op
. A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 
ge

ne
ra

te
 2

30
,0

00
 A

nn
ua

l A
dd

iti
on

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
Tr

ip
s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Re
lo

ca
te

 P
G&

E 
ov

er
he

ad
 u

til
ity

 li
ne

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ea
st

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

lo
t

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
3 

- 
Pr

op
os

ed
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t (
TC

1)
 

Ow
ne

d 
an

d 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
BA

RT
, t

he
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r c
ur

re
nt

ly 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f 4
22

 a
ut

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

, 1
2 

se
cu

re
 b

ic
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s,
 a

nd
 1

2 
bu

s 
ba

ys
. P

ar
ki

ng
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
pr

ic
ed

 a
t $

3 
pe

r d
ay

. T
he

 lo
t w

as
 fo

rm
er

ly 
lo

ca
te

d 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
on

 th
e 

w
es

t s
id

e 
of

 I-
80

 b
ut

 w
as

 m
ov

ed
 in

 2
00

9,
 a

llo
w

in
g 

it 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

fro
m

 2
50

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ta

lls
 to

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 4

22
. D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 d
em

an
d 

is
 n

ea
rin

g 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

su
pp

ly,
 w

ith
 fe

w
 s

pa
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 a

 ty
pi

ca
l d

ay
.

W
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

is
 P

la
n,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 d
em

an
d 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
. T

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
eh

ic
le

s,
 a

 3
00

-s
ta

ll 
pa

rk
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

on
 th

e 
BA

RT
-o

w
ne

d 
pa

rc
el

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

, b
rin

gi
ng

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 to
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 7

22
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s.
 T

he
 g

ra
de

 o
f t

he
 u

ni
m

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
ce

l t
o 

th
e 

ea
st

 is
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

on
e 

st
or

y 
be

lo
w

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 e

xis
tin

g 
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t, 

al
lo

w
in

g 
di

re
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lo
t a

nd
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 s
to

ry
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 D
riv

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 re

ac
h 

th
e 

fir
st

 fl
oo

r o
f t

he
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

via
 a

 ra
m

p.
 B

AR
T 

ha
s 

a 
cu

rre
nt

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 in

st
al

l s
ol

ar
 p

an
el

s,
 u

pg
ra

de
 li

gh
tin

g,
 w

ay
fin

di
ng

, a
nd

 tr
an

si
t f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

at
 th

e 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
.

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

PG
&E

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 s

ub
st

at
io

n 
lo

ca
te

d 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly 
to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
pa

rc
el

. A
 u

til
ity

 li
ne

 tr
av

el
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

su
bs

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t n
or

th
 o

f S
R-

4,
 p

as
si

ng
 d

ire
ct

ly 
ov

er
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

tru
ct

ur
e.

 In
 it

s 
cu

rre
nt

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
ut

ilit
y 

lin
e 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

a 
tw

o-
st

or
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
du

e 
to

 c
le

ar
an

ce
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
he

re
fo

re
, s

om
e 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ut

ilit
y 

lin
e 

is
 li

ke
ly 

re
qu

ire
d.

 C
om

pl
ex

ity
 o

f t
hi

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 ri
gh

ts
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
BA

RT
 a

nd
 

PG
&E

. F
ur

th
er

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 B

AR
T 

w
ill 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
.

9A-52



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
48

TC
2:

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

40
-4

6 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
, R

ic
hm

on
d

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 P

re
pa

re
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 •

 C
on

ce
pt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 C

os
t e

st
im

at
io

n 
• 

Fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 •

 P
ha

si
ng

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 P

G&
E 

fo
r p

os
si

bl
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

of
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

tra
ns

m
is

si
on

 li
ne

3.
 C

al
tra

ns
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: •
 C

on
ce

pt
 o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 •

 P
SR

-P
R 

• 
CE

/C
E-

 P
S&

E

4.
 C

oo
di

na
te

 w
ith

 C
al

tra
ns

, C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

5.
 D

ev
el

op
 p

ha
si

ng
 p

la
n 

fo
r c

on
tin

ue
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

6.
 D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

7.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e

8.
 In

st
al

l b
us

 s
to

ps
 o

n 
EB

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

Qu
an

tit
y:

 4
04

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

St
al

ls

Co
st

: $
46

,4
76

,0
00Ne

ed
: O

pt
im

al

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

, 2
A,

 2
B,

 3
, 4

 •
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t: 
70

, 7
1,

 L
A,

 L
C 

• 
W

es
tC

AT
: J

PX
, J

R

Be
ne

fit
:

Pr
ov

id
es

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r c
on

tin
ue

d 
tra

ns
it 

us
er

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

fo
r 

Ri
ch

m
on

d,
 U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Co

un
ty

, S
an

 P
ab

lo
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 
an

d 
I-8

0 
us

er
s 

no
t l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
to

p.
 A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 g
en

er
at

e 
29

5,
00

0 
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l T
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
 5

49
 s

ta
lls

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
at

-g
ra

de
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 6

1 
st

al
ls

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
bu

s 
pu

ll-
ou

t a
re

a 
on

 E
B 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay

Fi
gu

re
 6

-1
4 

- 
Pr

op
os

ed
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t (

TC
2)

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
se

cu
re

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng

Th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

, l
oc

at
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly 

w
es

t o
f t

he
 I-

80
/R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e,

 is
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 C
al

tra
ns

 b
ut

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t. 

Th
e 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r c
on

si
st

s 
of

 a
 2

06
-s

ta
ll 

pa
rk

 &
 ri

de
 a

nd
 s

ix 
bu

s 
ba

ys
. T

he
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t i
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

ov
er

su
bs

cr
ib

ed
 a

nd
 is

 re
gu

la
rly

 fi
lle

d 
by

 7
:0

0 
A.

M
. P

ar
ki

ng
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
pr

ic
ed

 a
t $

4 
pe

r d
ay

.

Gi
ve

n 
th

e 
co

ns
tra

in
ed

 fo
ot

pr
in

t o
f t

he
 s

ite
 a

nd
 n

ea
rb

y 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

, a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ut
o 

pa
rk

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
dd

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 s
tru

ct
ur

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
. T

he
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 a

dd
 a

 s
to

p 
w

ith
 th

re
e 

bu
s 

ba
ys

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
si

de
 o

f e
as

tb
ou

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 in
 fr

on
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 le
ve

l w
ith

 th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e’
s 

se
co

nd
 

flo
or

. T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 s

ou
th

bo
un

d 
bu

se
s 

to
 p

ic
k 

up
 ri

de
rs

 w
ith

ou
t n

ee
di

ng
 to

 c
irc

ul
at

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r, 
gr

ea
tly

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
tra

ve
l t

im
es

 fr
om

 e
xis

tin
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 R

el
oc

at
in

g 
th

e 
so

ut
hb

ou
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

bu
se

s 
to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 a

ls
o 

fre
es

 b
us

 b
ay

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r. 

No
rth

bo
un

d 
bu

se
s 

w
ou

ld
 s

til
l b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
nt

er
 th

e 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

nd
 

w
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

e 
re

al
ig

ne
d 

bu
s 

ba
ys

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e.
 A

 p
ic

k-
up

/d
ro

p-
of

f a
re

a 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 a
t-

gr
ad

e 
lo

t a
nd

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e.

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 th
at

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

su
rfa

ce
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
se

nt
 s

ta
gi

ng
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

, g
ive

n 
th

at
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f p
ar

ki
ng

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
av

ai
la

bl
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t n
ea

rb
y 

pa
rk

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ss

 
at

 th
e 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r, 
su

ch
 a

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
su

rfa
ce

 lo
ts

 a
t H

illt
op

 M
al

l o
r a

lo
ng

 B
lu

m
e 

Dr
ive

. T
he

 o
pt

io
n 

ex
is

ts
 to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 in

te
rim

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

bu
s 

pu
llo

ut
s 

on
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 w
ith

ou
t a

dd
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

. T
hi

s 
is

 e
st

im
at

ed
 to

 c
os

t $
3.

8M
 (2

02
0$

).

9A-53



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
49

6.
6 

Bu
s 

Fl
ee

t A
cq

ui
si

tio
n

Fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 b

us
es

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 ro

ut
es

 a
nd

 s
pa

ce
 m

us
t b

e 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

t 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
m

 to
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
st

or
ed

. N
ei

th
er

 o
f t

he
 tw

o 
tra

ns
it 

op
er

at
or

s 
in

vo
lve

d 
in

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

, A
C 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 W

es
tC

AT
, 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

po
ss

es
s 

a 
su

ffi
ci

en
t n

um
be

r o
f u

nu
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 o
pe

ra
te

 a
ny

 n
ew

 ro
ut

es
. T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e,
 n

ew
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f s

er
vic

e.
 T

he
se

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
do

ub
le

 d
ec

ke
r c

oa
ch

es
 s

im
ila

r t
o 

th
os

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
us

ed
 

by
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t a
nd

 W
es

tC
AT

 fo
r t

ra
ns

ba
y 

se
rv

ic
es

. C
on

cu
rre

nc
e 

on
 v

eh
ic

le
 ty

pe
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 o

pe
ra

to
r p

ra
ct

ic
es

 w
ill 

re
du

ce
 c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 d

riv
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. T
he

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
W

i-F
i a

nd
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ea

tin
g 

fo
r a

ll 
rid

er
s.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

3 
su

m
m

ar
ize

s 
th

e 
bu

se
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e 
id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Pl
an

. T
he

 ta
bl

e 
de

no
te

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f m

in
im

um
 n

um
be

r o
f b

us
es

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 o
pe

ra
te

 e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e 

(“
Pe

ak
 B

us
es

”)
, w

hi
ch

 is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

he
 a

lig
nm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fr

eq
ue

nc
ie

s 
(fu

ll 
pr

op
os

ed
 

ro
ut

e 
sc

he
du

le
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
G)

. 

To
 in

su
re

 a
ga

in
st

 b
us

 b
re

ak
do

w
n,

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

w
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
sp

ar
e 

bu
se

s 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e,

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 2
0%

 o
ve

r t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f b
us

es
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 o
pe

ra
te

 th
e 

ro
ut

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
ak

 p
er

io
d.

 T
hi

s 
nu

m
be

r, 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 a

s 
“F

le
et

 B
us

es
” i

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

eh
ic

le
s 

th
at

 m
us

t 
be

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 to

 o
pe

ra
te

 e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e.

 T
he

 u
se

fu
l l

ife
tim

e 
of

 c
oa

ch
 tr

an
si

t b
us

es
 is

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
4 

ye
ar

s.
 A

ny
 re

qu
ire

d 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t b
us

es
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 th

e 
10

-y
ea

r f
un

di
ng

 w
in

do
w

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
H.

 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

3 
- 

Re
qu

ire
d 

Bu
se

s 
by

 R
ou

te
 a

nd
 O

pe
ra

to
r

Ro
ut

e
Te

rm
Pe

ak
 B

us
es

Fl
ee

t B
us

es
Op

er
at

or
1

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
6

8
W

es
tC

AT

2
Ne

ar
8

10
W

es
tC

AT

2A
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

7
9

W
es

tC
AT

2B
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

7
9

W
es

tC
AT

3
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

7
9

W
es

tC
AT

4
Ne

ar
7

9
W

es
tC

AT

5
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

7
9

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

6
Ne

ar
7

9
AC

 T
ra

ns
it

7
Ne

ar
6

8
AC

 T
ra

ns
it

8
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

7
9

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

To
ta

l -
 N

ea
r

15
19

W
es

tC
AT

13
17

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

To
ta

l -
 M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

13
25

W
es

tC
AT

14
18

AC
 T

ra
ns

it

9A-54



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
50

BA
1:

 B
us

es
 fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
n

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

18
-2

4 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
N/

A

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

n 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ty

pe
 a

nd
 c

os
t

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

n 
bu

s 
fe

at
ur

es
 (e

.g
. t

ec
hn

ol
og

y, 
co

nfi
gu

ra
tio

n,
 w

ra
p)

3.
 O

rd
er

 b
us

es
 fr

om
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r

Te
rm

: N
ea

r
Qu

an
tit

y:
 3

6 
Bu

se
s

Co
st

: $
36

,0
00

,0
00

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 2
, 4

, 6
, 7

Be
ne

fit
:

N/
A

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 3
6 

bu
se

s,
 1

7 
fo

r A
C 

Tr
an

si
t-

op
er

at
ed

 ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 1

9 
fo

r W
es

tC
AT

-
op

er
at

ed
 ro

ut
es

BA
2:

 B
us

es
 fo

r M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e:

 B
us

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
n

Ti
m

el
in

e 
to

 Im
pl

em
en

t: 

18
-2

4 
m

on
th

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

 
N/

A

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
St

ep
s:

1.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

n 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ty

pe
 a

nd
 c

os
t

2.
 C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
on

 b
us

 fe
at

ur
es

 (e
.g

. t
ec

hn
ol

og
y, 

co
nfi

gu
ra

tio
n,

 w
ra

p)

3.
 O

rd
er

 b
us

es
 fr

om
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r

Te
rm

: M
ed

iu
m

/
Lo

ng
Qu

an
tit

y:
 4

3 
Bu

se
s

Co
st

: $
43

,0
00

,0
00

Ne
ed

: R
eq

ui
re

d

Ro
ut

es
 B

en
efi

tti
ng

:

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s:

 1
, 2

A,
 2

B,
 3

, 5
, 8 Be

ne
fit

:
N/

A

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t:
• 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 4
3 

bu
se

s,
 1

8 
fo

r A
C 

Tr
an

si
t-

op
er

at
ed

 ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 2

5 
fo

r W
es

tC
AT

-
op

er
at

ed
 ro

ut
es

9A-55



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
51

6.
7 

Op
er

at
or

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
ac

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
m

an
ag

es
 fo

ur
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

di
vis

io
ns

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 th
e 

Ce
nt

ra
l M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

ac
ilit

y. 
Of

 th
es

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 D
ivi

si
on

 2
 (D

2)
 in

 E
m

er
yv

ille
 a

nd
 

Di
vis

io
n 

3 
(D

3)
 in

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
ar

e 
th

e 
cl

os
es

t t
o 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 W

es
tC

AT
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

a 
si

ng
le

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 

Pi
no

le
. A

s 
of

 th
e 

w
rit

in
g 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt,

 b
ot

h 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 la
ck

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

us
 s

to
ra

ge
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

t t
he

se
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 m
ea

ni
ng

 
th

at
 c

ap
ac

ity
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
t t

he
 W

es
tC

AT
 fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
at

 le
as

t o
ne

 o
f t

he
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
w

ill 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 b

ef
or

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
ca

n 
be

gi
n 

op
er

at
io

n.
 T

ab
le

 6
-4

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 u

sa
ge

 o
f e

ac
h 

of
 th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 it

s 
st

or
ag

e 
co

ns
tra

in
ts

, W
es

tC
AT

 p
la

ns
 a

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y. 
Th

e 
pa

rc
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

ya
rd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fro
m

 R
M

3 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 th

e 
ne

w
 fa

ci
lit

y, 
pe

nd
in

g 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

w
su

it 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
RM

3.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
ha

s 
st

at
ed

 th
at

, t
o 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
bu

se
s 

at
 th

e 
D3

 fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 b
us

es
 s

er
vin

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
sh

ift
ed

 a
m

on
g 

its
 o

th
er

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 y
ar

ds
 to

 p
ro

vid
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t s
pa

ce
. T

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

ha
ng

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 w
ou

ld
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t b

us
es

 a
t t

he
 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
la

un
ch

 o
f p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 s
er

vic
e.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

4 
- 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
 F

ac
ili

ty
 C

ap
ac

ity

6.
8 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 C
os

ts
Op

in
io

ns
 o

f p
ro

ba
bl

e 
co

st
 w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 b
us

 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

. C
os

ts
 w

er
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

co
nc

ep
tu

al
 le

ve
l o

f d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

w
ill 

be
 re

fin
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
fu

rth
er

 d
es

ig
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Al
l c

os
ts

 a
re

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 2
01

9 
do

lla
rs

 fo
r c

on
si

st
en

cy
, a

lth
ou

gh
 y

ea
r o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 e
st

im
at

es
 w

er
e 

ut
iliz

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f h
te

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n.
 E

st
im

at
ed

 
co

st
s 

fo
r a

ll 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
be

lo
w.

 T
ab

le
 6

-5
 s

um
m

ar
ize

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

os
t b

y 
ty

pe
 a

nd
 T

ab
le

 6
-6

 p
ro

vid
es

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f e

ac
h 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

. F
or

 d
et

ai
le

d 
co

st
 e

st
im

at
es

, r
ef

er
 to

 A
pp

en
di

x 
E.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

5 
- 

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t C

os
t b

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t T
yp

e

Ta
bl

e 
6-

6 
– 

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t C

os
t b

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Na
m

e
Cu

rr
en

t C
ap

ac
ity

Cu
rr

en
t A

va
ila

bl
e 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
Ca

pa
ci

ty
 N

ee
de

d 
fo

r N
ea

r T
er

m
 

Ro
ut

es

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
Di

vis
io

n 
2

14
7

0 
(2

4 
bu

se
s 

ov
er

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
)

0

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
Di

vis
io

n 
3

90
0 

(1
9 

bu
se

s 
ov

er
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

)
17

W
es

tC
AT

50
0

19

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e

Pr
oj

ec
t C

od
e

 C
os

t
Bu

s 
St

op
s

BS
 $

   
  3

,3
24

,0
00

 

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y

TS
P

 $
   

  1
,5

80
,0

00
 

Bu
s 

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
BA

 $
   

79
,0

00
,0

00
 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

M
H

 $
   

42
,9

00
,0

00
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t
TC

 $
   

65
,9

76
,0

00
 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

FA
 $

   
  9

,1
00

,0
00

 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es
TL

 $
   

  6
,0

00
,0

00
 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t N
am

e
Ph

as
e

Co
st

 
BS

1
Bu

s 
St

op
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 -

 P
in

ol
e,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  4

40
,0

00
 

BS
2

Bu
s 

St
op

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  6

26
,0

00
 

BS
3

Bu
s 

St
op

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

, R
ic

hm
on

d
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

$ 
   

  6
93

,0
00

 

BS
4

Bu
s 

St
op

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
 B

er
ke

le
y

Ne
ar

$ 
   

  6
21

,0
00

 

BS
5

Bu
s 

St
op

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
 E

m
er

yv
ille

, O
ak

la
nd

Ne
ar

$ 
   

  6
11

,0
00

 

BS
6

Bu
s 

St
op

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 -
 O

ak
la

nd
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  3

33
,0

00
 

TS
P1

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  3

60
,0

00
 

TS
P2

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

$ 
   

  4
00

,0
00

 

TS
P3

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o,

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

   
   

 8
0,

00
0 

TS
P4

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Be

rk
el

ey
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  2

20
,0

00
 

TS
P5

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Em

er
yv

ille
, O

ak
la

nd
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  3

20
,0

00
 

TS
P6

Tr
an

si
t S

ig
na

l P
rio

rit
y 

- 
Oa

kl
an

d
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  2

00
,0

00
 

FA
1

SR
-4

/J
oh

n 
M

ui
r P

ar
kw

ay
 F

re
ew

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
Ne

ar
$ 

  3
,6

00
,0

00
 

FA
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 F

re
ew

ay
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
Ne

ar
$ 

   
  9

00
,0

00
 

FA
3

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

  4
,6

00
,0

00
 

FA
4

As
hb

y 
Av

en
ue

 F
re

ew
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

   
   

   
- 

TL
1

I-8
0 

Pa
rt-

Ti
m

e 
Tr

an
si

t L
an

es
Ne

ar
$ 

  6
,0

00
,0

00
 

M
H1

Ta
ra

 H
ills

 D
riv

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
- 

Op
tio

n 
1

Ne
ar

$ 
  3

,6
00

,0
00

 

M
H2

Ta
ra

 H
ills

 D
riv

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
- 

Op
tio

n 
2

Ne
ar

$ 
13

,3
00

,0
00

 

M
H3

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Da

m
 R

oa
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

  9
,9

00
,0

00
 

M
H4

Bi
ss

el
l A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b
Ne

ar
$ 

  3
,3

00
,0

00
 

M
H5

W
rig

ht
 A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

$ 
12

,8
00

,0
00

 

TC
1

He
rc

ul
es

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 C

ap
ac

ity
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

19
,5

00
,0

00
 

TC
2

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 C
ap

ac
ity

 E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t
M

ed
iu

m
/L

on
g

$ 
46

,4
76

,0
00

 

BA
1

Bu
se

s 
fo

r N
ea

r-
Te

rm
 R

ou
te

s
Ne

ar
$ 

36
,0

00
,0

00
 

BA
2

Bu
se

s 
fo

r M
ed

iu
m

-/
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ou

te
s

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g
$ 

43
,0

00
,0

00
 

Su
bt

ot
al

s
Ne

ar
-T

er
m

 P
ro

je
ct

s
$ 

  7
0,

43
1,

00
0

M
ed

iu
m

/L
on

g-
Te

rm
 P

ro
je

ct
s

$ 
13

7,
44

9,
00

0
To

ta
l C

os
t

Al
l P

ro
je

ct
s

$ 
20

7,
88

0,
00

0

No
te

: A
ll 

co
st

s 
in

 2
01

9 
do

lla
rs

No
te

: A
ll 

co
st

s 
in

 2
01

9 
do

lla
rs

9A-56



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
52

6.
9 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Ex

is
tin

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 0
.2

5 
m

ile
s 

of
 a

ll 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

to
ps

 w
er

e 
an

al
yz

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ga

ps
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 p
re

ve
nt

 e
as

y 
an

d 
sa

fe
 a

cc
es

s 
by

 fo
ot

 fo
r b

y 
bi

cy
cl

e.
 C

lo
si

ng
 th

es
e 

ga
ps

 is
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 im
po

rta
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 ro
ut

es
, a

s 
rid

er
s 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 tr

av
el

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
bu

s 
st

op
 a

nd
 th

ei
r p

la
ce

 o
f w

or
k 

on
 fo

ot
 o

r v
ia

 b
ic

yc
le

 (e
ith

er
 o

ne
 b

ro
ug

ht
 fr

om
 h

om
e 

via
 a

n 
on

bo
ar

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
ra

ck
 o

r a
cc

es
se

d 
fro

m
 a

 b
ik

es
ha

re
 s

ta
tio

n)
. 

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 e

xis
tin

g 
ga

ps
, r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
th

at
 e

ith
er

 p
rio

rit
ize

 a
lre

ad
y-

pl
an

ne
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
r s

ug
ge

st
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 n

ot
 a

lre
ad

y 
pl

an
ne

d.
 T

he
se

 g
ap

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
em

 a
re

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

F.
 

It 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 fu
tu

re
 b

ic
yc

le
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ef

fo
rts

. T
he

 
id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

s 
be

in
g 

cr
iti

ca
l f

or
 tr

an
si

t a
cc

es
s 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 id

en
tifi

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r g

ra
nt

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

ei
r p

rio
rit

y 
w

ith
in

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

 T
he

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 c

os
ts

 
id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n 
as

 th
ey

 a
re

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 n

ot
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
r t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9A-57



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
53

7.
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 P
LA

N 
A 

te
n-

ye
ar

 fi
na

nc
ia

l m
od

el
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 c
ap

ita
l 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. T
he

 g
oa

l o
f t

he
 a

na
lys

is
 is

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

nfi
rm

 th
e 

fe
as

ib
le

 s
ub

-s
et

 o
f r

ou
te

s 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
kn

ow
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 th
en

 to
 q

ua
nt

ify
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 fu
nd

in
g 

ga
ps

 to
 h

el
p 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

er
s 

se
ek

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

fu
ll 

Pl
an

. T
he

 c
om

pl
et

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l P

la
n 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

H.
 T

he
 re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ap

te
r i

s 
or

ga
ni

ze
d 

in
to

 tw
o 

se
ct

io
ns

:

• 
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s 
lis

ts
 th

e 
se

t o
f c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
m

on
ie

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
ev

er
al

 s
ou

rc
es

 th
at

 a
re

 w
el

l-d
efi

ne
d 

at
 th

is
 

tim
e 

an
d 

so
m

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
so

ur
ce

s.

• 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

od
el

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 th

e 
in

pu
ts

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 th
at

 s
ha

pe
d 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

, t
he

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 m

od
el

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 fo
r 

tw
o 

di
ffe

re
nt

 id
en

tifi
ed

 s
ce

na
rio

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r n
ex

t s
te

ps
.

7.
1 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
s

Th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 n

ew
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 c
ou

ld
 c

om
e 

pr
im

ar
ily

 fr
om

 tw
o 

so
ur

ce
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 T

he
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

’s
 R

eg
io

na
l M

ea
su

re
 3

 (R
M

3)
 a

nd
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

’s
 n

ew
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 P

la
n 

(T
EP

) b
ot

h 
ha

ve
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fu
nd

in
g 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
re

 a
re

 o
th

er
 m

in
or

 fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
up

pl
em

en
t t

he
se

 
co

re
 re

ve
nu

es
, b

ut
 th

ey
 d

o 
no

t m
at

er
ia

lly
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
na

lys
is

.

M
TC

 R
eg

io
na

l M
ea

su
re

 3
Pa

ss
ed

 b
y 

vo
te

rs
 in

 th
e 

ni
ne

-c
ou

nt
y 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

 in
 J

un
e 

of
 2

01
8,

 R
M

3 
ra

is
ed

 to
lls

 o
n 

se
ve

n 
br

id
ge

s 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

Go
ld

en
 G

at
e 

Br
id

ge
) b

y 
$3

 
to

 fu
nd

 $
4.

5 
bi

llio
n 

of
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. T
he

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 la
w

su
it 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

its
 v

al
id

ity
, a

nd
 w

hi
le

 fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

co
lle

ct
ed

 in
to

 a
n 

es
cr

ow
 a

cc
ou

nt
, n

o 
fu

nd
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

is
bu

rs
ed

. R
M

3 
fu

nd
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 e
ith

er
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 o

r A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

Th
e 

RM
3 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 $

25
 m

illi
on

 s
et

-a
si

de
 fo

r t
hr

ee
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
kn

ow
n 

as
 “I

-8
0 

Tr
an

si
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.” 
Th

e 
W

es
tC

AT
 

Bu
s 

Op
er

at
io

ns
 F

ac
ilit

y 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

an
d 

M
od

er
ni

za
tio

n 
($

5 
M

illi
on

) w
ill 

he
lp

 fu
nd

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 W
es

tC
AT

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 la
un

ch
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
es

. T
he

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 S
er

vic
e 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
in

 I-
80

 C
or

rid
or

 ($
5 

M
illi

on
) w

ill 
pr

ov
id

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 
ac

qu
ire

 n
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
fo

r W
es

tC
AT

 s
er

vic
e.

 T
he

 I-
80

 C
or

rid
or

 T
ra

ns
it 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 ($
15

 M
illi

on
) w

ill 
be

 e
ve

nl
y 

di
vid

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
is

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e 

in
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 a

nd
 B

RT
 s

er
vic

es
 a

lo
ng

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e.
 R

M
3 

al
so

 
in

cl
ud

es
 fu

nd
s 

fo
r A

C 
Tr

an
si

t R
ap

id
 B

us
 C

or
rid

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 s
ev

er
al

 o
f t

he
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 o
pe

ra
te

 o
n 

an
d 

m
ay

 fu
nd

 T
ra

ns
it 

Si
gn

al
 P

rio
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 s

to
p 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

.

Re
gi

on
al

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Fu

nd
s 

RM
3 

al
so

 a
llo

ca
te

s 
$2

0 
m

illi
on

 p
er

 y
ea

r t
ow

ar
ds

 re
gi

on
al

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
es

. T
he

 ro
ut

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

is
 s

tu
dy

 re
lie

ve
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
in

 th
e 

br
id

ge
 c

or
rid

or
s 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 a

lm
os

t c
er

ta
in

ly 
be

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
fu

nd
s.

 T
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

lys
is

 a
ss

um
es

 th
at

 u
p 

to
 2

5 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 

fu
nd

s 
($

5 
m

illi
on

 p
er

 y
ea

r) 
co

ul
d 

flo
w

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
ne

w
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

 in
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y. 
Th

at
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
cr

ea
se

 w
ith

 
in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

llo
w

 fo
r c

ar
ry

-o
ve

r f
ro

m
 y

ea
r-

to
-y

ea
r. 

CC
TA

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 P

la
n

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 (C

CT
A)

 h
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
a 

ne
w

 3
5-

ye
ar

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 P
la

n 
(T

EP
) t

ha
t w

ill 
on

 th
e 

ba
llo

t i
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
0.

 T
he

 T
EP

 in
cl

ud
es

 “I
m

pr
ov

e 
Tr

an
si

t R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

Al
on

g 
th

e 
I-8

0 
Co

rri
do

r”
 ($

90
 M

illi
on

) s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 n

ew
 tr

an
si

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
fo

r 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

re
lie

f i
n 

th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rri

do
r i

n 
W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y. 
Th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 p
la

n 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
ite

s 
ne

w
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e,
 h

ig
hw

ay
 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
tra

ns
it 

la
ne

s 
on

 I-
80

 a
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

, a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

. D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
ith

 C
CT

A 
st

af
f i

nd
ic

at
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 $
90

 m
illi

on
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s 

st
ud

y, 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
fu

nd
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 s
pe

nt
 o

n 
an

y 
pr

oj
ec

t c
om

po
ne

nt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 p
hy

si
ca

lly
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 C
on

tra
 

Co
st

a 
Co

un
ty

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

. S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

TE
P 

pa
ss

 w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 fu

nd
s 

co
ul

d 
be

co
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

as
 s

oo
n 

as
 

FY
20

21
-2

02
2.

Th
re

e 
ot

he
r T

EP
 p

ro
je

ct
 fu

nd
in

g 
ca

te
go

rie
s,

 “R
el

ie
ve

 C
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
e 

Lo
ca

l A
cc

es
s 

Al
on

g 
th

e 
I-8

0 
Co

rri
do

r”
 ($

57
 M

illi
on

), 
“Im

pr
ov

e 
Tr

af
fic

 F
lo

w
 o

n 
M

aj
or

 R
oa

ds
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y”

 ($
38

 M
illi

on
) a

nd
 “I

nc
re

as
e 

Bu
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y”
 ($

25
0 

M
illi

on
) i

nc
lu

de
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e,

 s
uc

h 
as

 tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 fr
ee

w
ay

 a
cc

es
s 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

. A
s 

a 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n,
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

na
lys

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

ny
 fu

nd
s 

fro
m

 th
es

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

os
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s.

 P
ro

je
ct

 s
po

ns
or

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
pp

ly 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

to
 s

up
pl

em
en

t c
on

fir
m

ed
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

 F
un

ds
 

fro
m

 th
e 

CC
TA

 T
EP

 a
re

 re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

sp
en

t i
n 

Al
am

ed
a 

or
 o

th
er

 c
ou

nt
ie

s.
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

Be
yo

nd
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

m
aj

or
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f f
un

di
ng

, o
th

er
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
fu

nd
 s

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
po

ns
or

s.
 C

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

 fu
nd

s 
fro

m
 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l s
ou

rc
es

 a
lm

os
t a

lw
ay

s 
re

qu
ire

 c
om

pe
tit

ive
 g

ra
nt

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 it
 is

 v
irt

ua
lly

 im
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 p
re

di
ct

 h
ow

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 fr
om

 
th

is
 s

tu
dy

 w
ou

ld
 fa

re
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

pp
lic

an
ts

; t
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

od
el

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
or

tra
y 

an
y 

re
ve

nu
es

 fr
om

 th
es

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
 

Th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
la

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
gr

an
t p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

di
sc

us
si

on
 o

n 
th

ei
r a

pp
lic

ab
ilit

y 
to

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s.
 T

he
re

 
ar

e 
a 

fe
w

 fa
ci

lit
y 

an
d 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 w
ill 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
th

at
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 fu
nd

ed
 a

nd
 p

ur
su

ed
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 la
rg

er
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

n.

Se
ve

ra
l e

xis
tin

g 
st

at
e 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l s

ou
rc

es
 fu

nd
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rm
ul

a-
ba

se
d 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
. T

he
 a

dd
iti

on
 o

f n
ew

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

e 
ca

n 
tri

gg
er

 s
om

e 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l r
ev

en
ue

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

an
d 

fa
re

s 
th

ey
 g

en
er

at
e.

 T
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

lys
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
st

im
at

es
 

of
 th

e 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l a
nd

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
m

in
or

 re
ve

nu
es

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fro
m

 th
es

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
 It

 is
 b

en
efi

ci
al

 to
 fu

tu
re

 g
ra

nt
 e

ffo
rts

 h
ow

ev
er

 
th

at
 m

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 a

re
a 

is
 a

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

, w
ith

in
 a

 P
rio

rit
y 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t A

re
a 

an
d 

is
 a

lo
ng

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 re

gi
on

’s
 m

aj
or

, 
co

ng
es

te
d 

co
rri

do
rs

. A
ls

o 
th

e 
ar

ea
 h

as
 a

 n
at

io
na

lly
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
re

ig
ht

 c
or

rid
or

, w
ith

in
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 p

or
t, 

oi
l 

re
fin

er
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nd

us
tri

al
 u

se
s.

A 
fu

ll 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

es
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
ap

ita
l a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

fu
nd

 s
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

H.

7.
2 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
od

el
Th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

od
el

 is
 a

 te
n-

ye
ar

 c
om

po
si

te
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 re

ve
nu

es
, w

ith
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 fo
r c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ne

ed
s.

 R
es

ul
ts

 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 y

ea
r o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 d
ol

la
rs

 (Y
OE

$)
. A

s 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

in
pu

t, 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

od
el

 a
ss

um
es

 th
at

 a
ny

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fu

nd
s,

 a
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 
ab

ov
e,

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

le
as

ed
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f F
Y 

20
21

-2
2.

 A
 b

as
el

in
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

ra
te

 o
f 3

.5
 p

er
ce

nt
 p

er
 y

ea
r w

as
 u

se
d 

to
 re

pr
es

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
in

fla
tio

n 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 tr

en
d 

in
 th

e 
co

ns
um

er
 p

ric
e 

in
de

x 
(C

PI
). 

Th
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

ra
te

 w
as

 u
til

ize
d 

to
 g

ro
w

 fa
re

s,
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

s,
 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l c

os
ts

. T
he

 tr
an

si
t o

pe
ra

to
rs

 p
ro

vid
ed

 a
 c

on
se

rv
at

ive
 e

st
im

at
e 

of
 m

ar
gi

na
l o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

 p
er

 to
ta

l h
ou

r t
o 

us
e 

in
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
. 

Th
is

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

lys
is

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 fu
tu

re
 c

os
ts

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

10
 y

ea
r h

or
izo

n,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
re

ne
w

al
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
nd

 fi
xe

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
rs

 a
nd

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

. 

Ca
pi

ta
l C

os
ts

 
As

 n
ot

ed
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 6
, e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
as

 la
be

le
d 

as
 e

ith
er

 re
qu

ire
d 

or
 o

pt
im

al
 to

 in
iti

at
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ro

ut
e(

s)
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 b
en

efi
t. 

Th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
od

el
 s

el
ec

ts
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

su
bs

et
 o

f r
eq

ui
re

d 
or

 o
pt

im
al

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
se

t o
f r

ou
te

s 
be

in
g 

ev
al

ua
te

d.

An
ot

he
r k

ey
 fa

ct
or

 in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 e
lig

ib
ilit

y. 
Fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 fu

nd
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

TE
P 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
sp

en
t o

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 a
nd

 R
M

3 
fu

nd
s 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 R

ap
id

 B
us

 C
or

rid
or

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
be

 u
se

d 
on

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
Co

rri
do

rs
. T

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f c

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 u
se

s,
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

 li
st

 w
as

 fu
rth

er
 s

eg
m

en
te

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

di
st

in
ct

io
ns

.

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l c

os
ts

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

m
od

el
 a

re
 n

ot
ed

 in
 C

ha
pt

er
 6

.

9A-58



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
54

Op
er

at
in

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 a

nd
 R

ev
en

ue
s

Tw
o 

ro
ut

e 
gr

ou
pi

ng
s 

w
er

e 
an

al
yz

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
od

el
. T

he
 fi

rs
t g

ro
up

in
g 

in
cl

ud
es

 o
nl

y 
th

e 
ne

ar
-t

er
m

 ro
ut

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 g
ro

up
in

g 
in

cl
ud

es
 n

ea
r-

te
rm

 ro
ut

es
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

/lo
ng

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

, w
ith

 th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

/lo
ng

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

 d
ep

lo
ye

d 
at

 le
as

t f
ou

r y
ea

rs
 a

fte
r s

er
vic

e 
be

gi
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ar

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

. F
or

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

na
lys

is
, i

t w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 n
o 

ro
ut

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
s 

m
id

da
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

n-
ye

ar
 h

or
izo

n 
of

 th
e 

Pl
an

; a
ll 

ro
ut

es
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

pe
ak

-o
nl

y 
op

er
a t

io
n.

 T
he

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

st
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ro

ut
e 

is
 n

ot
ed

 in
 C

ha
pt

er
 5

 a
nd

 
fu

rth
er

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pl
an

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

G.

Th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ill 
ge

ne
ra

te
 re

ve
nu

es
 fr

om
 p

as
se

ng
er

 fa
re

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 s
er

vic
e.

 
A 

ra
ng

e 
of

 fa
re

 re
ve

nu
es

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ro
ut

e 
w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 g

ro
w

 a
s 

th
e 

co
st

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

co
m

pe
tit

ive
ne

ss
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r f

ac
to

rs
.

Th
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
t o

f t
ra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
s 

an
d 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d 
fro

m
 u

se
r c

ha
rg

es
. A

ll 
ot

he
r o

pe
ra

tin
g 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

co
st

 ra
te

 p
ro

vid
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

s.

Th
e 

fin
al

 in
pu

t t
o 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
na

lys
is

 w
as

 th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 n
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

no
te

d 
pr

ev
io

us
ly.

M
od

el
 R

es
ul

ts
Tw

o 
se

pa
ra

te
 fu

nd
in

g 
sc

en
ar

io
s 

w
er

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
: o

ne
 in

 w
hi

ch
 o

nl
y 

RM
3 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

(w
ith

ou
t t

he
 C

CT
A 

TE
P)

 a
nd

 a
no

th
er

 w
he

re
 b

ot
h 

RM
3 

an
d 

th
e 

TE
P 

w
er

e 
ut

iliz
ed

.

A 
sc

en
ar

io
 th

at
 re

lie
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 o
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

fro
m

 R
M

3 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

bo
th

 te
ch

ni
ca

lly
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
lly

 v
ia

bl
e.

 B
y 

its
el

f, 
RM

3 
pr

ov
id

es
 o

nl
y 

$1
2.

5M
 in

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
$5

M
 p

er
 y

ea
r i

n 
op

er
at

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g.

 N
ew

 b
us

es
 c

os
t a

bo
ut

 $
1 

m
illi

on
 e

ac
h 

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

ol
la

rs
, a

nd
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ro

ut
es

 in
 th

e 
Pl

an
 re

qu
ire

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
7 

an
d 

10
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, n

o 
ne

w
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
in

 a
n 

RM
3-

on
ly 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ce

na
rio

.

Th
e 

RM
3 

+
 T

EP
 s

ce
na

rio
 is

 fi
na

nc
ia

lly
 v

ia
bl

e 
un

de
r c

er
ta

in
 c

on
di

tio
ns

. T
he

 T
EP

 p
ro

vid
es

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t b
oo

st
 to

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
ou

gh
 to

 fu
nd

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 la

un
ch

 th
e 

ne
ar

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

, t
og

et
he

r w
ith

 th
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
co

st
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fir
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

na
lys

is
 a

ss
um

es
 th

at
 n

ea
rly

 $
14

 m
illi

on
 in

 R
M

3 
m

on
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 $

12
.5

 m
illi

on
 fr

om
 th

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

lin
e 

ite
m

s 
pl

us
 u

p 
to

 $
1.

2 
m

illi
on

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
lin

e 
ite

m
. A

bo
ut

 $
49

 m
illi

on
 in

 c
ap

ita
l c

os
ts

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

de
di

ca
te

d 
TE

P 
lin

e 
ite

m
 fo

r t
he

 re
qu

ire
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 fo
r n

ea
r-

te
rm

 e
xp

re
ss

 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, l

ea
vin

g 
a 

ba
la

nc
e 

$4
1 

m
illi

on
 in

 th
at

 li
ne

 it
em

 fo
r o

th
er

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s.
 T

he
 e

xp
an

si
on

s 
of

 th
e 

tw
o 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

s 
at

 H
er

cu
le

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 s

ite
 a

t t
he

 T
ar

a 
Hi

lls
 D

riv
e 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

ar
e 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

ite
m

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
op

tim
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
no

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

$4
9 

m
illi

on
. I

t i
s 

no
t p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

al
l t

hr
ee

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
en

vis
io

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 $
41

 m
illi

on
. 

Pr
io

rit
iza

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 D

riv
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(p
ro

je
ct

 M
H2

) 
sh

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
ur

su
ed

 if
 th

e 
fir

st
 T

ar
a 

Hi
lls

 D
riv

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
(p

ro
je

ct
 M

H1
) h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

nd
 is

 re
ac

hi
ng

 c
ap

ac
ity

. T
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
fo

r H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

pr
oj

ec
t T

C1
) a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 (T

C2
) s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 B
AR

T, 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it,

 a
nd

 C
al

tra
ns

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
de

te
rm

in
e 

a 
po

ss
ib

le
 ti

m
el

in
e.

 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

 fo
r t

he
 fo

ur
 n

ea
r-

te
rm

 ro
ut

es
 is

 $
5.

4 
m

illi
on

 in
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

ol
la

rs
. T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

to
 $

6.
4 

m
illi

on
 in

 c
ur

re
nt

 
do

lla
rs

 w
he

n 
th

e 
co

nv
er

si
on

 fr
om

 R
ou

te
 2

 to
 R

ou
te

s 
2A

 a
nd

 2
B 

is
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 In

 Y
OE

 d
ol

la
rs

, t
he

 to
ta

l o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 te

n-
ye

ar
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 ju

st
 a

bo
ve

 $
59

 m
illi

on
. A

bo
ut

 $
15

.6
 m

illi
on

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
e 

is
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
fa

re
 re

ve
nu

es
, w

ith
 m

aj
or

ity
 

of
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
co

m
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
RM

3 
op

er
at

in
g 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
a 

m
od

es
t c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 s

ta
te

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l g

ra
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
lik

e 
TD

A-
ST

A 
an

d 
FT

A 
53

07
.

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 in

 Y
ea

r 8
 o

f t
he

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
, t

he
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

 in
cr

ea
se

 to
 th

e 
po

in
t t

ha
t t

he
 re

qu
ire

d 
RM

3 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 h
it 

th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 $
5 

m
illi

on
 c

ap
. T

he
 fu

nd
in

g 
pl

an
 c

on
te

m
pl

at
es

 th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 w
ou

ld
 c

om
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

CC
TA

 T
EP

 to
 fi

ll 
th

e 
ga

p.

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

, i
n 

an
 R

M
3 

+
 T

EP
 s

ce
na

rio
, t

he
 fo

ur
 n

ea
r-

te
rm

 ro
ut

es
 a

re
 fe

as
ib

le
 a

nd
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

as
 s

oo
n 

as
 b

ot
h 

RM
3 

an
d 

th
e 

TE
P 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
co

nfi
rm

ed
 to

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 T

he
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 m
ed

iu
m

/lo
ng

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

 w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nfl

ux
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 to
 b

rin
g 

in
to

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
 T

he
 re

qu
ire

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r t
he

 n
ea

r-
te

rm
 ro

ut
es

 c
an

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly 

w
ith

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fu

nd
s,

 a
nd

 e
ve

n 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
op

tim
al

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
rig

ht
 a

w
ay

 w
hi

le
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 id

en
tifi

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
fu

ll 
fu

nd
in

g 
pa

ck
ag

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
s 

an
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

. A
va

ila
bl

e 
TE

P 
m

on
ey

 b
ey

on
d 

w
ha

t i
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 b
ui

ld
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

te
 th

e 
ne

ar
-t

er
m

 ro
ut

es
 fo

r a
 te

n-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 u

til
ize

d 
as

 s
ee

d 
m

on
ey

 to
 p

ur
su

e 
gr

an
t f

un
ds

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

fu
ll 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 o

pt
im

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ar

-t
er

m
 ro

ut
es

, c
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 a
dv

an
ce

 in
te

rim
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 w

hi
le

 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pu
rs

ue
d,

 o
r c

ou
ld

 b
e 

st
or

ed
 a

w
ay

 to
 c

ov
er

 fu
tu

re
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

s 
th

at
 d

ue
 to

 in
fla

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 e

xc
ee

d 
w

ha
t i

s 
en

vis
io

ne
d 

to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fro
m

 R
M

3.

Ba
se

d 
on

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

am
on

g 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

, i
t w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 th

at
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

fu
nd

s 
w

ill 
be

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly 
to

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

, s
im

ila
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
in

 u
se

 fo
r C

CT
A’

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
M

ea
su

re
 J

. O
pe

ra
to

rs
 c

ou
ld

 c
ho

os
e 

to
 a

llo
ca

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

s 
fro

m
 th

ei
r o

th
er

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 a
ug

m
en

t t
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
es

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

ls
 c

on
te

m
pl

at
ed

 in
 th

is
 

pl
an

, b
ut

 th
at

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
as

su
m

ed
 h

er
e.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 re
al

ize
 th

e 
fu

ll-
sc

al
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 

9A-59



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
55

8.
 M

AR
KE

TI
NG

 A
ND

 B
RA

ND
IN

G
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
pl

an
 d

es
cr

ib
in

g 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 to

 b
e 

de
pl

oy
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

an
d 

du
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
ex

ci
te

m
en

t a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ne
w

 s
er

vic
e.

 T
hi

s 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

ed
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
br

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 
se

rv
ic

e.
 A

 M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Br

an
di

ng
 P

la
n 

w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

or
s.

 It
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
ut

iliz
ed

 a
s 

a 
liv

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t 
an

d 
w

ill 
un

de
rg

o 
fu

rth
er

 re
fin

em
en

t p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f r

ou
te

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
.

8.
1 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Br

an
di

ng
 G

oa
ls

Th
e 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
Br

an
di

ng
 P

la
n 

la
id

 o
ut

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

go
al

s:

• 
Cr

ea
te

 e
xp

an
de

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s.

 T
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 s

er
vic

e 
fo

r b
ot

h 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

. 
W

hi
le

 th
es

e 
tw

o 
tra

ns
it 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ha

ve
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

ra
nd

in
g 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 b

as
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

, a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

w
ill 

be
 c

ul
tiv

at
ed

 fo
r t

he
 e

xp
an

de
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
hi

s 
pl

an
 p

re
se

nt
s 

br
an

di
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

 to
 e

du
ca

te
 th

e 
W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
ab

ou
t t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

in
di

vid
ua

l r
id

er
sh

ip
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 to
 te

ac
h 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
id

er
s 

ho
w

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

• 
En

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
im

ag
e 

of
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vi
ce

. T
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e 

w
ill 

be
 p

ro
vid

ed
 b

y 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 w
ith

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 W
CC

TA
C.

 
Ea

ch
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 h
as

 c
ul

tiv
at

ed
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 re
pu

ta
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
qu

al
ity

, t
im

in
g,

 re
lia

bi
lit

y, 
an

d 
am

en
iti

es
. T

he
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

br
an

di
ng

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n 
in

te
nd

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 v
is

ib
ilit

y 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
nd

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

, c
al

lin
g 

at
te

nt
io

n 
to

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t’s

 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
’s

 p
or

tfo
lio

s 
of

 s
er

vic
es

.

• 
St

ee
r e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
an

si
t u

se
rs

 to
 th

e 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
. T

hi
s 

pl
an

 o
ffe

rs
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

in
te

re
st

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 s
er

vic
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
am

on
g 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
id

er
 s

eg
m

en
ts

 th
at

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
us

e 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

om
m

ut
e.

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

ne
w

 ri
de

rs
hi

p.
 N

ew
 tr

an
si

t u
se

rs
 w

ill 
be

 s
ou

gh
t v

ia
 b

ot
h 

co
m

m
un

ity
-w

id
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 ta
ct

ic
s 

ta
rg

et
ed

 to
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

rid
er

s.
 

Th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill 

re
pr

es
en

t a
n 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vid
ed

 b
y 

bo
th

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 W

es
tC

AT
. T

he
re

fo
re

, i
t 

is
 c

rit
ic

al
 to

 m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 b

ra
nd

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

ra
nd

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill 

re
pr

es
en

t n
ew

 tr
an

si
t c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
op

tio
ns

 
th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 re
si

de
nt

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, w
id

el
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
ive

ly 
di

st
rib

ut
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 n

ew
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ill 
be

 p
ar

am
ou

nt
 

in
 a

ttr
ac

tin
g 

ne
w

 ri
de

rs
. T

he
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

Br
an

di
ng

 P
la

n 
id

en
tifi

es
 ro

le
s 

fo
r b

ot
h 

W
CC

TA
C 

an
d 

th
e 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

or
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l a

nd
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. I
t i

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

ill 
la

rg
el

y 
lie

 w
ith

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

or
s,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
W

CC
TA

C 
w

ill 
se

rv
e 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
ro

le
 in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
a 

co
he

si
ve

 m
es

sa
ge

 fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
re

si
de

nt
s.

8.
2 

M
es

sa
gi

ng
Gi

ve
n 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vic
e,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
e 

co
re

 d
riv

er
s 

of
 m

es
sa

gi
ng

:

• 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
: T

he
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ill 
be

 a
n 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 e
xis

tin
g 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t a
nd

 W
es

tC
AT

 to
 

br
id

ge
 g

ap
s 

in
 th

ei
r e

xis
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. F

or
 W

es
tC

AT
, t

he
 e

xis
tin

g 
ex

pr
es

s 
ro

ut
es

 o
ffe

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ly
nx

 w
ill 

no
w

 b
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 n
or

th
er

n 
Al

am
ed

a 
Co

un
ty.

 F
or

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t, 

ex
is

tin
g 

Tr
an

sb
ay

 ro
ut

es
 w

ill 
be

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 ru
n 

ex
pr

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 fr
om

 C
on

tra
 

Co
st

a 
Co

lle
ge

 to
 B

er
ke

le
y, 

Em
er

yv
ille

, a
nd

 O
ak

la
nd

. 

• 
Re

lia
bl

e 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

: R
id

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 re

ly 
on

 e
ve

ry
da

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
re

gu
la

r t
im

ed
 a

rri
va

l t
o 

th
ei

r d
es

tin
at

io
n.

• 
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

: T
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 w
ill 

be
 p

ric
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 tr

av
el

 m
od

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

riv
in

g 
al

on
e 

an
d/

or
 ta

ki
ng

 B
AR

T. 
It 

w
ill 

al
so

 
cu

rta
il 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rre

d 
fro

m
 e

xp
en

si
ve

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 b
e 

ch
ea

pe
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
to

ta
l f

ar
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r r

id
er

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
tra

ns
fe

rri
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

ul
tip

le
 tr

an
si

t s
ys

te
m

s.

• 
Ef

fic
ie

nt
: E

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ill 
be

 d
ire

ct
 a

nd
 fa

st
, i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
up

on
 c

ur
re

nt
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

es
 fo

r t
he

 s
er

vic
e 

ar
ea

. 

• 
Co

m
fo

rt
ab

le
: T

he
 s

er
vic

e 
w

ill 
al

lo
w

 ri
de

rs
 to

 s
it 

do
w

n 
in

 a
 c

om
fo

rta
bl

e 
se

at
 fo

r t
he

 d
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

rid
e,

 u
nb

ot
he

re
d 

by
 tr

af
fic

. T
he

 b
us

es
 w

ill 
al

so
 o

ffe
r c

on
ve

ni
en

t p
as

se
ng

er
 a

m
en

iti
es

.

• 
Re

la
xa

tio
n:

 R
id

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 re

du
ce

 d
ai

ly 
st

re
ss

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
lo

ng
 d

riv
in

g 
tim

es
, h

un
tin

g 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

, a
gg

re
ss

ive
 d

riv
in

g 
cu

ltu
re

, 
m

ul
tip

le
 tr

an
si

t t
ra

ns
fe

rs
, o

r o
th

er
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

st
re

ss
or

s.
 T

he
y 

w
ill 

ha
ve

 le
is

ur
e 

tim
e 

to
 re

ad
 a

 b
oo

k,
 lo

g 
on

to
 a

 la
pt

op
, c

at
ch

 u
p 

on
 e

m
ai

ls
, 

or
 e

ve
n 

ta
ke

 a
 n

ap
.

• 
Pr

od
uc

tiv
e:

 R
id

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

ul
ti-

ta
sk

 o
n 

th
e 

tri
p 

w
ith

 fr
ee

 o
nb

oa
rd

 W
i-F

i.

• 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e:
 T

he
 u

se
 o

f a
lte

rn
at

ive
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

w
ill 

de
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ca
rb

on
 fo

ot
pr

in
t o

f r
id

er
s 

an
d 

de
cr

ea
se

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

on
 m

aj
or

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ro

ut
es

.

9A-60



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
56

9.
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 M

ON
IT

OR
IN

G
Th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 e

xp
re

ss
 s

er
vic

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

el
em

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

ro
ut

es
 a

re
 

op
er

at
in

g 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly.
 W

hi
le

 th
e 

ke
y 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
 fo

r a
ny

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

e 
is

 ri
de

rs
hi

p,
 o

th
er

 fa
ct

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

na
lyz

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 

re
gu

la
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 re

vie
w.

It 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

, c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ro
ut

in
el

y 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 tr

an
si

t o
pe

ra
to

r f
or

 th
ei

r e
xis

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 (n
o 

le
ss

 th
an

 a
nn

ua
lly

), 
ea

ch
 ro

ut
e 

be
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 fo
r r

id
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. T
he

 re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
 c

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n:

• 
Da

ily
 B

oa
rd

in
gs

 (P
as

se
ng

er
s)

• 
Bo

ar
di

ng
s 

by
 T

rip

• 
Lo

ad
 F

ac
to

r b
y 

Tr
ip

• 
Re

ve
nu

e 
Ho

ur
s 

of
 S

er
vic

e

• 
Bo

ar
di

ng
s 

(P
as

se
ng

er
s)

 p
er

 R
ev

en
ue

 H
ou

r

• 
Gr

os
s 

an
d 

Ne
t C

os
ts

 (a
fte

r f
ar

es
)

• 
Ti

tle
 V

I-b
as

ed
 E

qu
ity

 A
na

lys
is

• 
Fa

re
bo

x 
Re

co
ve

ry
 R

at
io

• 
Ne

t C
os

t p
er

 R
id

er

• 
M

ile
s 

pe
r H

ou
r (

op
er

at
in

g 
sp

ee
d)

• 
On

-T
im

e 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

• 
Pa

ss
en

ge
r C

om
m

en
ts

Th
re

e 
ke

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 b

el
ow

.

Fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

, i
t i

s 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ke
y 

rid
er

sh
ip

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ro

ut
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 is

 B
oa

rd
in

gs
 (i

.e
. p

as
se

ng
er

s)
 

pe
r T

rip
. F

or
 ty

pi
ca

l l
oc

al
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vic
e 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
bo

ar
di

ng
s 

pe
r h

ou
r. 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

he
re

by
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
co

nt
in

ua
lly

 b
oa

rd
 a

nd
 d

eb
oa

rd
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
ro

ut
e.

 E
xp

re
ss

 s
er

vic
es

 h
ow

ev
er

 d
o 

no
t “

tu
rn

 o
ve

r”
 ri

de
rs

hi
p.

 O
nc

e 
th

e 
bo

ar
di

ng
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
in

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

, t
he

 p
as

se
ng

er
 lo

ad
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

lly
 fi

xe
d 

un
til

 th
e 

fin
al

 d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 (e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
rs

, s
ch

oo
ls

, 
et

c.
) a

re
 re

ac
he

d.
 A

 h
ig

h-
pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

ro
ut

e 
w

ill 
ha

ve
 a

 B
oa

rd
in

g 
pe

r T
rip

 c
lo

se
 it

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

’ p
as

se
ng

er
 c

ap
ac

ity
.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
us

es
 a

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 2
5 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 p

er
 tr

ip
 fo

r i
ts

 T
ra

ns
ba

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, w

hi
ch

 th
is

 s
er

vic
e 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y. 

W
es

tC
AT

 a
im

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
or

 im
pr

ov
e 

on
 p

re
vio

us
 y

ea
r’s

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 le
ve

ls
. T

he
 s

er
vic

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 a
t l

ea
st

 m
ee

t t
he

 W
es

tC
AT

 
sy

st
em

’s
 fi

xe
d 

ro
ut

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
ve

ra
ge

. A
s 

a 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

po
in

t, 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

W
es

tC
AT

 L
yn

x 
tra

ns
ba

y 
ro

ut
e 

w
as

 1
7.

5 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

/v
eh

ic
le

-
re

ve
nu

e-
ho

ur
 in

 F
Y1

8/
19

, b
ut

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

W
es

tC
AT

 s
ys

te
m

w
id

e 
fix

ed
 ro

ut
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

av
er

ag
e.

Ho
w

ev
er

, n
ew

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vic

es
 ta

ke
 s

om
e 

tim
e 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 re

ac
h 

th
ei

r f
ul

l r
id

er
sh

ip
 p

ot
en

tia
l. 

Ac
co

rd
in

gl
y, 

ne
w

 
ro

ut
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 g

ive
n 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
to

 re
ac

h 
th

e 
rid

er
sh

ip
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

pr
es

en
te

d 
ab

ov
e.

 A
t t

he
 o

ne
-y

ea
r r

ev
ie

w,
 ro

ut
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
at

 7
5%

 o
f 

th
ei

r s
ta

nd
ar

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 o
n 

th
e 

pa
th

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

su
cc

es
s.

An
ot

he
r k

ey
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r t

o 
m

on
ito

r f
or

 th
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 L

oa
d 

Fa
ct

or
 b

y 
Tr

ip
. T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f p

as
se

ng
er

s 
on

 
bo

ar
d 

th
e 

bu
s 

to
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

ea
ts

. T
yp

ic
al

ly,
 h

ig
h-

qu
al

ity
, h

ig
he

r-
fa

re
 e

xp
re

ss
 s

er
vic

es
 d

on
’t 

ex
ce

ed
 a

 lo
ad

 fa
ct

or
 o

f 1
.0

, w
hi

ch
 m

ea
ns

 e
ve

ry
 

pa
ss

en
ge

r h
as

 a
 s

ea
t. 

Si
nc

e 
th

es
e 

ro
ut

es
 u

se
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 fo
r l

on
g 

di
st

an
ce

s 
at

 h
ig

he
r s

pe
ed

s,
 c

om
fo

rt 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 a
re

 c
rit

ic
al

. I
n 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 s
om

e 
tri

ps
 m

ay
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

bo
ve

 1
.0

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
al

so
 li

ke
ly 

ge
ne

ra
te

 p
as

se
ng

er
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 a

dj
us

t s
er

vic
e.

 A
dj

us
tin

g 
th

e 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f t
he

 
ot

he
r t

rip
s 

to
 s

er
ve

 th
is

 ti
m

e 
fra

m
e 

be
tte

r o
r a

dd
in

g 
an

ot
he

r t
rip

 if
 fe

as
ib

le
 a

re
 p

ot
en

tia
l s

ol
ut

io
ns

.

Fi
na

lly
, e

xp
re

ss
 ri

de
rs

 a
re

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

tim
e 

se
ns

iti
ve

, s
o 

it 
im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 th

e 
ro

ut
es

 o
pe

ra
te

 w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l o
f O

n-
Ti

m
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. A

C 
Tr

an
si

t 
de

fin
es

 o
n 

tim
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 b

y 
on

e 
m

in
ut

e 
ea

rly
 to

 fi
ve

 m
in

ut
es

 la
te

. W
es

tC
AT

 is
 s

im
ila

r a
t 0

 m
in

ut
es

 e
ar

ly 
to

 fi
ve

 m
in

ut
es

 la
te

. F
or

 th
is

 s
er

vic
e 

a 
go

al
 o

f 8
5-

90
%

 o
n 

tim
e 

is
 d

es
ira

bl
e.

 S
in

ce
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
 s

er
vic

es
 is

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
 a

ll 
bo

ar
di

ng
s 

at
 th

e 
or

ig
in

-s
id

e 
st

op
s 

an
d 

th
en

 a
ll 

al
ig

ht
in

gs
 a

t t
he

 d
es

tin
at

io
n-

si
de

 s
to

ps
, t

he
 c

rit
ic

al
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 o
n-

tim
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

re
 s

om
ew

ha
t d

iff
er

en
t t

ha
n 

fo
r a

 ty
pi

ca
l l

oc
al

 b
us

 
se

rv
ic

e.
 F

irs
t, 

at
 th

e 
or

ig
in

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 tr

ip
 (t

yp
ic

al
ly 

ho
m

e 
in

 m
or

ni
ng

 a
nd

 jo
b 

si
te

 in
 e

ve
ni

ng
) o

n-
tim

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

at
 a

 v
er

y 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l, 

si
nc

e 
m

an
y 

ex
pr

es
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ill 
on

ly 
ha

ve
 a

 fe
w

 tr
ip

s 
ea

ch
 p

ea
k 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
m

ig
ht

 b
e 

sc
he

du
le

d 
in

fre
qu

en
tly

, s
uc

h 
as

 e
ve

ry
 h

al
f h

ou
r. 

At
 th

e 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

tri
p 

(th
e 

jo
b 

si
te

 in
 m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 h

om
e 

in
 th

e 
ev

en
in

g)
 o

n-
tim

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

til
l c

ru
ci

al
 a

s 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 m
us

t b
e 

en
su

re
d 

th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill 

re
lia

bl
y 

de
liv

er
 th

em
 to

 th
ei

r d
es

tin
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 m

in
ut

es
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 a

rri
va

l. 
Ho

w
ev

er
 d

ue
 to

 tr
af

fic
, a

cc
id

en
ts

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r d

el
ay

s 
de

st
in

at
io

n-
en

d 
on

-t
im

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 w
ill 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
t l

ow
er

 le
ve

ls
.

Th
e 

ro
ut

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fi
nd

in
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ha
re

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
s 

an
d 

w
ith

 W
CC

TA
C 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
op

tim
al

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fu
nd

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. S

om
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

ro
ut

es
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 h

ig
he

r r
id

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
 b

et
te

r t
ha

n 
ot

he
rs

. A
 re

vie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
am

on
gs

t t
he

 th
re

e 
pa

rti
es

 w
ill 

he
lp

 in
fo

rm
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 lo

w
er

-p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ro
ut

es
 to

 h
ig

he
r-

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
ro

ut
es

 th
at

 re
qu

ire
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s.
 T

he
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 h
as

 id
en

tifi
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 ro

ut
e 

pa
irs

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 
(s

uc
h 

as
 m

id
-d

ay
 s

er
vic

e)
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 s

et
 o

f r
ou

te
s 

an
d 

op
er

at
in

g 
sc

he
du

le
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

bo
ve

 o
r b

el
ow

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

9A-61



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
57

10
. N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S
10

.1
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

im
el

in
e

Th
e 

ex
ac

t t
im

e 
fra

m
e 

fo
r p

ro
je

ct
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 n

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n.
 T

he
re

 is
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 a

ro
un

d 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

pr
oj

ec
t f

un
di

ng
 s

ou
rc

es
. 

Ho
w

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
as

su
m

ed
 th

at
 fu

nd
in

g 
w

ill 
be

co
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ou
te

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

20
21

-2
02

2 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r. 

Bu
s 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

ta
ke

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

18
 to

 2
4 

m
on

th
s 

fro
m

 ti
m

e 
of

 o
rd

er
 to

 re
ce

ip
t o

f b
us

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 fo

r t
he

 b
us

es
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
. T

he
re

fo
re

, i
t i

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 
th

e 
ea

rli
es

t s
ta

rt 
of

 s
er

vic
e 

on
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t p
rio

rit
y 

ro
ut

es
 c

ou
ld

 o
cc

ur
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
20

24
.

Du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f s
er

vic
e,

 c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

va
nc

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 p

ro
ce

ss
. P

ro
je

ct
s 

ha
ve

 o
nl

y 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
t a

 c
on

ce
pt

ua
l l

ev
el

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 P
la

n 
ef

fo
rt.

 T
he

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 v

ar
yin

g 
le

ve
ls

 o
f p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

, a
nd

 fi
na

l d
es

ig
n 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
ex

te
ns

ive
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n.

 In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, r
eq

ui
re

d 
ca

pi
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

an
d 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dv
an

ce
d 

on
ce

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 s

ec
ur

ed
. S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
op

tim
al

 c
ap

ita
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
s,

 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 a

 lo
ng

er
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

pp
ro

va
ls

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

th
us

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dv
an

ce
d 

as
 e

ar
ly 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

as
 fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
w

s.
 P

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

en
vir

on
m

en
ta

l c
le

ar
an

ce
, d

es
ig

n,
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
ls

) c
ou

ld
 ra

ng
e 

fro
m

 s
ix 

m
on

th
s 

up
 to

 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 a

nd
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
.

10
.2

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
dv

an
ce

m
en

t/
Po

lic
y 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Th
e 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pl

an
 id

en
tifi

es
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

et
 o

f r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ot
h 

op
er

at
in

g 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, t

o 
ex

pa
nd

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 s
er

vic
e 

in
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y. 
Th

is
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

f r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 is
 c

om
pr

is
ed

 o
f a

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 s
et

 o
f 

in
di

vid
ua

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 a

 c
oh

es
ive

 m
an

ne
r. 

It 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 W

CC
TA

C 
as

su
m

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

ad
va

nc
in

g 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
w

el
l-c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 m

ar
rie

s 
ca

pi
ta

l a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ne

ed
s.

 
As

 W
CC

TA
C 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
la

nd
 u

se
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
no

r d
oe

s 
it 

ow
n 

or
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

ny
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 it

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 c
lo

se
 c

oo
pe

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 

th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
, C

al
tra

ns
, t

he
 lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

, a
nd

 C
CT

A 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

.

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

xe
cu

te
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
, i

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

n 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 b
e 

fo
rm

ed
 in

vo
lvi

ng
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t, 
W

es
tC

AT
, C

CT
A,

 C
al

tra
ns

, 
M

TC
, a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

. T
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 m

ee
t a

t l
ea

st
 q

ua
rte

rly
. I

ts
 p

rim
ar

y 
fu

nc
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ad

va
nc

em
en

t a
ct

ivi
tie

s 
am

on
gs

t t
he

 d
iff

er
en

t i
nd

ivi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 m
an

y 
of

 w
hi

ch
 in

vo
lve

 m
ul

tip
le

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 T

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

co
or

di
na

te
 g

ra
nt

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 d

iff
er

en
t e

nt
iti

es
 to

 ta
ke

 th
e 

le
ad

 a
nd

 m
ul

tip
le

 le
tte

rs
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f e
ac

h 
gr

an
t. 

A 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
ef

fo
rt 

w
ill 

al
so

 a
id

 in
 th

e 
pu

rs
ui

t o
f f

un
di

ng
 b

y 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

re
gi

on
al

 c
oo

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, o

fte
n 

a 
ke

y 
fa

ct
or

 in
 g

ra
nt

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

W
CC

TA
C 

sh
ou

ld
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 A
la

m
ed

a 
Co

un
ty

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty.
 T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
is

su
in

g 
fo

rm
al

 le
tte

rs
 a

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

t t
he

 s
ta

ff,
 e

xe
cu

tiv
e,

 a
nd

 e
le

ct
ed

 le
ve

ls
, a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.

Se
ve

ra
l a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 re
gi

on
al

 o
r s

ta
te

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

or
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 it

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 
el

ec
te

d 
of

fic
ia

ls
 in

 th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

 (a
nd

 o
th

er
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 b

en
efi

tti
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

) a
dv

oc
at

e 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 b
y 

em
ph

as
izi

ng
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t n
ee

d 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s.
 A

re
as

 o
f a

dv
oc

ac
y 

in
cl

ud
e:

• 
At

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 le
ve

l f
or

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 R
M

3 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
op

er
at

io
ns

 fu
nd

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
am

 n
ee

ds

• 
At

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 s
ta

te
 le

ve
l f

or
 p

rio
rit

iza
tio

n 
of

 C
al

tra
ns

-in
vo

lve
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

• 
At

 th
e 

st
at

e 
le

ve
l f

or
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
pa

rt-
tim

e 
tra

ns
it 

la
ne

s 
op

er
at

io
n

• 
At

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 s
ta

te
 le

ve
l f

or
 g

ra
nt

 fu
nd

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 S

B1
 C

on
ge

st
ed

 C
or

rid
or

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ro
gr

am
s

A 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ol

lo
w

-o
n 

st
ep

 to
 th

is
 P

la
n 

is
 fo

r l
oc

al
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 e

nt
iti

es
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
to

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fo

rts
. 

Th
is

 w
ill 

un
lo

ck
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r v
ar

io
us

 g
ra

nt
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

• 
Ge

ne
ra

l P
la

n 
Up

da
te

s 
(lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

)

• 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
Pl

an
s 

(lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
)

• 
Tr

af
fic

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
 P

ro
gr

am
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
bo

th
 th

e 
Su

br
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (S
TM

P)
 Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l C
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
(W

CC
TA

C 
an

d 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

)

• 
Co

un
ty

w
id

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (C
CT

A)

• 
Sh

or
t-

Ra
ng

e 
(a

nd
 L

on
g-

Ra
ng

e)
 T

ra
ns

it 
Pl

an
 (t

ra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
)

• 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (W
CC

TA
C/

CC
TA

)

• 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
an

d 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Pl
an

s 
(C

CT
AC

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
)

• 
Co

rri
do

r P
la

ns
 (M

TC
/C

CT
A)

10
.3

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

As
 o

f t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
is

 P
la

n’
s 

w
rit

in
g,

 R
eg

io
na

l M
ea

su
re

 3
 is

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f l
eg

al
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

an
d,

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

br
id

ge
 to

lls
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

be
in

g 
co

lle
ct

ed
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 in

 e
sc

ro
w

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
. A

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 7
, R

M
3 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
cr

iti
ca

l t
o 

on
go

in
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
 fu

nd
in

g 
of

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
ro

ut
es

. U
nt

il 
th

e 
le

ga
l c

ha
lle

ng
es

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

ttl
ed

 in
 fa

vo
r o

f M
TC

, t
he

 e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 

th
is

 p
la

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 R
M

3 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
al

lo
tm

en
t o

f f
un

ds
 fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
 T

he
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
th

at
 w

ill 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

fu
nd

s 
is

 n
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n.

 W
CC

TA
C 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 M
TC

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 ro

ut
es

 a
re

 b
es

t q
ua

lifi
ed

 fo
r t

he
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 fu

nd
s.

An
ot

he
r k

ey
 p

ar
t o

f fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 7
 w

ill 
be

 c
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
CC

TA
 2

02
0 

TE
P. 

Th
at

 p
la

n 
w

ill 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 v

ot
er

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0.

 If
 th

e 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

m
ea

su
re

 p
as

se
s,

 th
en

 C
CT

A 
w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 a

 tr
an

si
t p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

fu
rth

er
 d

et
ai

l h
ow

 th
e 

fu
nd

s 
w

ill 
be

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d.

 T
he

 T
EP

 re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 C
CT

A 
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pl
an

 (I
TP

) t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
vis

io
n 

of
 re

gi
on

al
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

of
 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
. I

t i
s 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 g

en
er

at
ed

 in
 th

is
 P

la
n 

w
ill 

be
 b

en
efi

ci
al

 in
 fo

rm
ul

at
in

g 
th

e 
IT

P. 
W

CC
TA

C 
an

d 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
IT

P 
is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s 

Pl
an

. W
CC

TA
C 

an
d 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

s 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 
to

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 C
CT

A 
on

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
an

d 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r f

un
d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

he
n 

ne
ed

ed
 fo

r e
xp

re
ss

 b
us

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s.

Fu
nd

in
g 

id
en

tifi
ed

 fr
om

 R
M

3 
an

d 
th

e 
TE

P 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 o

nl
y 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 p

rio
rit

y 
ro

ut
es

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 s

ta
te

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
rs

ue
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ro
ut

es
 id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n.

10
.4

 A
dv

an
ce

m
en

t o
f C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s

M
ob

ili
ty

 H
ub

 O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

Op
er

at
io

n
An

 u
nr

es
ol

ve
d 

qu
es

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 th
is

 p
la

n’
s 

w
rit

in
g 

is
 w

ha
t e

nt
ity

 w
ill 

ow
n 

an
d/

or
 o

pe
ra

te
 th

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 C

ha
pt

er
 6

.5
. 

Hi
st

or
ic

al
ly 

Ca
ltr

an
s 

ha
s 

op
er

at
ed

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

ei
r r

ig
ht

s-
of

-w
ay

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

fre
ew

ay
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

es
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 

Ca
ltr

an
s 

ha
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
re

lu
ct

an
ce

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

an
d 

op
er

at
e 

ne
w

 s
uc

h 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 O
th

er
 e

nt
iti

es
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 o
pe

ra
te

 s
uc

h 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d,
 th

e 
tra

ns
it 

op
er

at
or

s,
 W

CC
TA

C,
 C

CT
A,

 o
r M

TC
. C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ill 

th
es

e 
en

tit
ie

s 
w

ill 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t a
nd

 o
pe

ra
te

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

. 

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 M
TC

 p
ro

je
ct

 B
ay

 B
rid

ge
 F

or
w

ar
d,

 s
ev

er
al

 n
ew

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill 

op
en

 in
 2

02
0:

 tw
o 

in
 O

ak
la

nd
 u

nd
er

 I-
58

0 
an

d 
an

ot
he

r 
in

 A
lb

an
y 

un
de

r I
-8

0.
 A

 s
im

ila
r o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
 fo

r t
he

 R
ic

hm
on

d-
Sa

n 
Ra

fa
el

 B
rid

ge
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
or

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 I-
58

0 
to

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

n 
HO

V 
la

ne
 a

lo
ng

 I-
58

0.
 T

he
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
pr

op
os

ed
 o

n 
W

rig
ht

 
Av

en
ue

 (M
H5

) m
ay

 b
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

. W
CC

TA
C 

an
d 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 M

TC
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f t
he

 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

at
 W

rig
ht

 A
ve

nu
e.

9A-62



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
58

Re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f t
he

 e
nt

ity
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
se

le
ct

ed
 to

 o
w

n 
an

d/
or

 o
pe

ra
te

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
bs

, t
he

 m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 tr

an
si

t 
ce

nt
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
 w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

en
tit

ie
s:

• 
Ta

ra
 H

ills
 A

ve
nu

e 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
(M

H1
, M

H2
)

• 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
(ju

ris
di

ct
io

n)

• 
CC

TA

• 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Da
m

 R
oa

d 
M

ob
ilit

y 
Hu

b 
(M

H3
)

• 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
(la

nd
ow

ne
r)

• 
Ci

ty
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
 (j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n)

• 
CC

TA

• 
Bi

ss
el

l A
ve

nu
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(M
H4

)

• 
Ci

ty
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
(ju

ris
di

ct
io

n)

• 
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
(la

nd
ow

ne
r)

• 
CC

TA

• 
W

rig
ht

 A
ve

nu
e 

M
ob

ilit
y 

Hu
b 

(M
H5

)

• 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
(la

nd
ow

ne
r)

• 
Ci

ty
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
(ju

ris
di

ct
io

n)

• 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ns

it 
Ce

nt
er

 (T
C1

)

• 
BA

RT
 (l

an
do

w
ne

r)

• 
Ci

ty
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s 
(ju

ris
di

ct
io

n,
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
)

• 
W

es
tC

AT
 (M

OU
 p

ar
tn

er
)

• 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 (T

C2
)

• 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

(o
pe

ra
to

r)

• 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
(la

nd
ow

ne
r)

• 
Ci

ty
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
(ju

ris
di

ct
io

n)

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t t
ea

m
 m

et
 w

ith
 m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
en

tit
ie

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

bo
ve

 to
 re

vie
w

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. A

dd
iti

on
al

 e
ffo

rt 
is

 s
til

l n
ee

de
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
id

en
tifi

ed
 p

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 a

dv
an

ce
 m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
pl

an
ni

ng
. W

CC
TA

C 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

vid
e 

a 
fo

rm
al

 le
tte

r o
f i

nt
er

es
t 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

r a
nd

/o
r j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 th

e 
di

al
og

ue
. I

f a
ny

 o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 e

m
ba

rk
 o

n 
a 

Ge
ne

ra
l P

la
n 

or
 S

pe
ci

fic
 P

la
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 
th

en
 W

CC
TA

C 
sh

ou
ld

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

bs
 a

re
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

nd
 u

se
 

an
d/

or
 c

irc
ul

at
io

n 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
os

e 
ef

fo
rts

.

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, W

CC
TA

C 
sh

ou
ld

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ot
en

tia
l o

w
ne

rs
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 id
en

tif
y 

M
OU

 p
ar

tie
s 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 re
fin

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

. O
nc

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

ns
 ro

le
s 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
, W

CC
TA

C 
an

d/
or

 th
e 

ow
ne

r a
nd

 o
pe

ra
to

r 
sh

ou
ld

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
en

tit
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
am

 th
e 

m
ob

ilit
y 

hu
b 

fe
at

ur
es

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 e
ac

h 
si

te
.

Bu
s 

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

us
es

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

qu
ire

d 
fo

r o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xp

re
ss

 ro
ut

es
. T

he
se

 b
us

es
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
fro

m
 b

us
 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
 b

y 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

. I
t i

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ty

pi
ca

l b
us

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
us

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 tr

an
si

t a
ge

nc
y. 

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 b
us

es
 w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r t
he

 n
ew

 b
us

es
 

in
 e

xis
tin

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 y

ar
ds

 a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

ne
w

 b
us

es
 in

to
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

la
ns

. W
es

tC
AT

’s
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 

be
 m

et
 w

ith
 th

e 
ob

lig
at

io
n 

id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 R

M
3,

 b
ut

 th
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t’s

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 y

et
 k

no
w

n.
 A

C 
Tr

an
si

t w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 fu

rth
er

 d
efi

ne
 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 th

ei
r fl

ee
t a

ss
ig

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 fu
rth

er
 e

xp
lo

re
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

ap
ac

ity
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

pa
ce

 fo
r t

he
 b

us
es

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 s

er
vic

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n.

Fr
ee

w
ay

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 P
ar

t-
Ti

m
e 

Tr
an

si
t L

an
es

Th
is

 P
la

n 
re

co
m

m
en

ds
 s

ev
er

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 to
 re

du
ce

 tr
an

si
t t

ra
ve

l t
im

e 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

on
 th

e 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 o
r o

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

us
ed

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

. T
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
pa

rt-
tim

e 
tra

ns
it 

la
ne

s 
(b

us
 o

n 
sh

ou
ld

er
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

), 
tra

ns
it 

si
gn

al
 

pr
io

rit
y, 

re
st

rip
in

g,
 a

nd
 n

ew
 H

OV
 la

ne
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

ra
ffi

c 
st

ud
ie

s,
 

ac
qu

ire
 a

dj
ac

en
t r

ig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

 (i
f n

ec
es

sa
ry

), 
pu

rs
ue

 fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s,

 a
nd

 ta
ke

 o
th

er
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 s
te

ps
.

Pa
rt-

tim
e 

tra
ns

it 
la

ne
s 

ru
nn

in
g 

on
 a

 fr
ee

w
ay

 s
ho

ul
de

r i
s 

st
ill 

a 
ne

w
 tr

ea
tm

en
t i

n 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a.

 H
ow

ev
er

, C
CT

A 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly 
pu

rs
ui

ng
 a

 p
ilo

t p
ro

je
ct

 
on

 I-
68

0 
to

 a
llo

w
 e

xp
re

ss
 b

us
es

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 o

n 
th

e 
sh

ou
ld

er
. W

CC
TA

C 
an

d 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 C
CT

A 
an

d 
M

TC
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ilo
t p

ro
gr

am
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ar

t-
tim

e 
tra

ns
it 

la
ne

s 
on

 I-
80

. T
hi

s 
w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 fu
rth

er
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 C
al

tra
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 P

at
ro

l. 
Th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l H
ig

hw
ay

 A
dm

in
st

ra
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 

th
e 

pa
rt-

tim
e 

tra
ns

it 
la

ne
 C

on
ce

pt
 o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

s 
w

el
l s

in
ce

 I-
80

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fe
de

ra
l h

ig
hw

ay
 s

ys
te

m
. P

ar
t-

tim
e 

tra
ns

it 
la

ne
s 

on
 I-

80
 m

ay
 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 le

ve
ra

ge
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

CC
TA

’s
 I-

68
0 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

Ho
w

ev
er

, d
iff

er
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
m

uc
h 

sh
or

te
r l

en
gt

h 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
us

 o
n 

sh
ou

ld
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
on

 I-
80

, t
he

 m
uc

h 
gr

ea
te

r b
us

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y, 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ul

tim
at

e 
de

si
re

 fo
r a

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

(n
on

-p
ilo

t) 
ap

pr
ov

al
. T

he
re

fo
re

, i
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 W
CC

TA
C 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 C

CT
A 

to
 s

ta
y 

ap
pr

is
ed

 
of

 th
e 

I-6
80

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

I-8
0 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n.

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
se

ve
ra

l p
at

hw
ay

s 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rri
do

r. 
M

TC
 m

ay
 a

dv
an

ce
 a

n 
I-8

0 
co

rri
do

r s
tu

dy
 

in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
co

m
pe

tit
ive

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g,
 s

uc
h 

as
 S

B1
 C

on
ge

st
ed

 c
or

rid
or

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 c

on
so

lid
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 C

al
tra

ns
. I

f t
ha

t w
er

e 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

, W
CC

TA
C 

an
d 

CC
TA

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
or

di
na

te
 w

ith
 M

TC
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

co
rri

do
r s

tu
dy

 c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

is
 P

la
n.

On
ce

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

dv
an

ce
m

en
t i

s 
se

cu
re

d,
 W

CC
TA

C 
sh

ou
ld

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 C
CT

A 
an

d 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
on

 a
n 

M
OU

 fo
r t

he
 C

al
tra

ns
-

re
la

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. T
ha

t d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ill 

in
fo

rm
 w

he
th

er
 m

ul
tip

le
 o

f t
he

 C
al

tra
ns

 fa
ci

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

ed
 in

 o
ne

 p
ro

je
ct

 
or

 s
ep

ar
at

ed
 in

to
 m

ul
tip

le
. P

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 C

al
tra

ns
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
 u

nd
er

 $
3 

M
illi

on
 in

 c
ap

ita
l c

os
t (

su
ch

 a
s 

pr
oj

ec
t F

A2
) c

an
 p

ro
ce

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
st

re
am

lin
ed

 P
EE

R 
pr

oc
es

s,
 w

hi
ch

 c
om

m
on

ly 
ac

hi
ev

es
 a

pp
ro

va
l i

n 
ro

ug
hl

y 
si

x 
m

on
th

s 
to

 1
 y

ea
r. 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 th

at
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
gr

ea
te

r o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 (P

SR
/P

DS
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
or

t),
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 ta
ke

 u
p 

to
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 W

CC
TA

C,
 C

CT
A,

 C
al

tra
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

or
di

na
te

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
op

tim
al

 p
ac

ka
gi

ng
 o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 S
ev

er
al

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
(s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 P

A2
) a

re
 s

m
al

l e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 e
nc

ro
ac

hm
en

t p
er

m
it 

le
d 

by
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n.

 It
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 W

CC
TA

C 
fu

rth
er

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
, C

al
tra

ns
, a

nd
 C

CT
A 

on
ce

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 s

ec
ur

ed
 to

 
ad

va
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Ca

ltr
an

s 
ap

pr
ov

al
, e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

, a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 F
ur

th
er

 s
tu

di
es

 w
ill 

be
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 
th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 tr

af
fic

 a
na

lys
es

, e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
na

lys
es

, a
nd

 C
on

ce
pt

 o
f O

pe
ra

tio
ns

. T
he

 C
al

tra
ns

 p
ro

ce
ss

 c
an

 b
e 

fu
rth

er
 d

efi
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
M

OU
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

s 
it 

co
ul

d 
ra

ng
e 

fro
m

 a
n 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t p
er

m
it 

fo
r s

ta
nd

al
on

e 
ar

te
ria

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 a
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

tu
dy

 
Re

po
rt/

Pr
oj

ec
t R

ep
or

t f
or

 m
or

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. T
he

 ty
pe

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ill 
di

ct
at

e 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

na
lys

es
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s.

If 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 a

rte
ria

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 id

en
tifi

ed
 e

m
ba

rk
 o

n 
an

y 
ci

rc
ul

a t
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

r t
ra

ffi
c 

im
pa

ct
 fe

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 th

en
 

W
CC

TA
C 

sh
ou

ld
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 th

os
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
. T

ho
se

 e
ffo

rts
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 

le
ve

ra
ge

d 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
en

vir
on

m
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.

Th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 n
ea

r S
an

 P
ab

lo
 D

am
 R

oa
d 

(b
ot

h 
th

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
hu

b 
an

d 
th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 a
cc

es
s 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

) s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 w

ith
 

CC
TA

 a
nd

 C
al

tra
ns

’ i
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
. W

CC
TA

C 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

al
ly 

re
qu

es
t i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
ro

je
ct

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 H
er

cu
le

s 
at

 th
e 

SR
-4

/I-
80

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

re
fle

ct
 m

in
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
He

rc
ul

es
 T

ra
ffi

c 
Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

 P
ro

gr
am

. W
CC

TA
C 

sh
ou

ld
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s 
to

 re
fin

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
fe

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fu
nd

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
s 

so
on

 a
s 

fe
as

ib
le

, a
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

be
ne

fit
 ro

ut
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s 

Pl
an

 
bu

t a
ls

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
ro

ut
es

. T
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t A

sh
by

 A
ve

nu
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 A

la
m

ed
a 

Co
un

ty
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

, C
al

tra
ns

, 

9A-63



®

®

W
ES

T 
CO

NT
RA

 C
OS

TA
 C

OU
NT

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 B
U

S
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

W
CC

TA
C 

Dr
af

t F
in

al
 P

la
n 

| J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0
59

an
d 

th
e 

Ci
tie

s 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
an

d 
Em

er
yv

ille
, w

ho
 a

re
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

in
g 

on
 a

n 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 th
at

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly 

in
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l D

oc
um

en
t P

ha
se

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 a

 p
re

fe
rre

d 
al

te
rn

at
ive

. A
 fo

rm
al

 re
qu

es
t f

or
 in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
n 

ad
va

nc
in

g 
th

at
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n.

10
.5

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

fo
r R

ou
te

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
In

 o
rd

er
 to

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

t t
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

ce
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l n
ee

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
, s

ev
er

al
 s

te
ps

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d.

 A
C 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 W

es
tC

AT
 

sh
ou

ld
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

to
 b

as
el

in
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s.
 S

pe
ci

fic
 ro

ut
e 

sc
he

du
le

s 
w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 c

os
te

d 
ou

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
qu

es
t 

fo
r R

M
3 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

s,
 W

CC
TA

C,
 a

nd
 M

TC
. F

ar
es

 a
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 w

hi
le

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

er
e 

as
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
fin

al
ize

d.
 A

 T
itl

e 
VI

 s
er

vic
e 

an
d 

fa
re

 e
qu

ity
 a

na
lys

is
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

ea
ch

 th
e 

op
er

at
or

s,
 

to
 v

er
ify

 th
at

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
er

vic
e 

m
ee

ts
 C

ivi
l R

ig
ht

s 
Ac

t s
ta

tu
te

s.
 B

us
 s

to
ps

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 s
om

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. I

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 s

in
ce

 
th

is
 is

 n
ew

 s
er

vic
e,

 th
at

 e
ac

h 
op

er
at

or
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 th

ei
r B

oa
rd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 s

er
vic

e 
pl

an
, s

ch
ed

ul
e,

 fa
re

s 
an

d 
Ti

tle
 V

I a
na

lys
is

. M
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
br

an
di

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
w

ar
en

es
s.

 W
CC

TA
C,

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 la

rg
e 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
ro

ut
es

’ i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

co
or

di
na

te
 tr

av
el

 d
em

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

en
efi

t r
id

er
sh

ip
. 

9A-64



  

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 

 

 

January 24, 2020 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Richmond Ferry Update and Weekend Service in 2020  

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
The WCCTAC Board is being asked to: 1) Receive an update on the status of regular Richmond 
ferry service and 2) Develop a recommendation to CCTA regarding the use of Measure J 22b 
funds for weekend service in 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Regular Service 
The Water Emergency Transit Authority (WETA) began operating weekday Richmond-San 
Francisco ferry service on January 10, 2019.  Measure J Program 22b funds cover the operating 
subsidy.  To date, Richmond ferry service has generally performed well and met ridership 
expectations, according to WETA.  Staff from WETA will provide the Board with a general 
update on Richmond ferry service.   
 
Weekend Service Background 
From August through October 2019, WETA also operated weekend pilot service on the 
Richmond ferry route. The amount of funding provided for operations, via Measure J 22b funds, 
was just under $250,000.  The schedule for the Richmond weekend pilot was as follows:  
 

WEEKENDS TO SAN FRANCISCO 

DEPART RICHMOND ARRIVE SF FERRY BUILDING 

9:00 A.M. 10:05 A.M. 

11:00 A.M. 11:35 A.M. 

12:30 P.M. 1:05 P.M. 

4:50 P.M. 5:25 P.M. 

6:45 P.M. 7:20 P.M. 

 
WEEKENDS FROM SAN FRANCISCO 

DEPART SF FERRY BUILDING  ARRIVE RICHMOND  

10:15 A.M. 10:50 A.M. 

11:45 A.M. 12:20 P.M. 

4:00 P.M. 4:35 P.M. 

6:00 P.M. 6:35 P.M. 

8:00 P.M. 8:55 P.M. 

10-1



 

Average daily weekend ridership is show in the table below. While the Richmond service had 
lower weekend ridership than more established routes, it still performed well relative to its 
weekday ridership.  
  

Service Weekend Avg.  
Daily Boardings 

Weekday Avg.  
Daily Boardings 

Richmond 536 849 

Alameda/Oakland 1,838 4,793 

Vallejo 932 4,063 

 
Weekend service options 
According to WETA, the earliest that weekend service could be re-started in 2020 is the first 
weekend of April.  Service could run strictly during the summer months of June, July and 
August, which are likely to be the most productive period for ridership. Alternatively, it could  
run for a longer period of time from the beginning of April through October.   
 
The attached chart shows total ridership on the Richmond ferry in 2019.  A second chart shows 
weekend ridership across 2019 on the Alameda/Oakland and Vallejo ferries.  The TAC suggested 
providing this information to better understand seasonal ridership fluctuations and to see how 
summer ridership compared to spring and fall.  Weekend service on WETA ferries tends to have 
notably fewer riders in the winter, given that many weekend trips are recreational.  It’s partly 
for this reason that WETA staff has yet not proposed a year-round weekend service for 
Richmond.     
 
Weekend service costs and funding 
An abbreviated three-month service during the summer is estimated to cost $261,000.  A 
longer period of service, from April through October, is estimated to cost $552,000.  
 
Both WCCTAC and CCTA staff believe that it would be most desirable to use Regional Measure 3 
(RM3) funds for this purpose. However, those funds are still unavailable due to ongoing legal 
challenges.  WCCAC and CCTA staff have considered the pursuit of other, outside grant funds to 
use in lieu of Measure J. However, the prospects for obtaining other operating funds are very 
uncertain and WETA needs a guaranteed source of funding to initiate service. In this upcoming 
year, that guaranteed source would again need to be Measure J 22b funds.  
 
Currently there is a $16,709,064 balance in the Measure J 22b account.  In FY19-20, Measure J 
revenues are projected to add $2,110,480. At the same time, the annual Richmond Ferry 
subsidy (for weekday service) provided to WETA is expected to be $3,308,400.  Given that the 
operating subsidy is higher than annual revenues, the Measure J 22b balance will decrease each 
year going forward.  With the current projected costs and revenues, Measure J 22b funds are 
expected to be available until late 2034.  The use of these funds for weekend service in 2020 
would shrink the duration of available funds in this category by a few months. 
 
 
 

10-2



 

Staff Recommendation 
WCCTAC staff brought the question of Richmond weekend service to the WCCTAC TAC for its 
consideration.  The TAC concluded that it did not have enough information to make a 
consensus recommendation to the WCCTAC Board. It’s feedback, however, helped to shape this 
staff report.  
 
Given the promising performance of weekend service on the Richmond Ferry and the benefit it 
provides to West County, WCCTAC staff recommends that it continue again in 2020.  Staff also 
favors the option of running service for the longer April-Oct period.  Since this Measure J 
funding commitment would only be for one year (2020) the overall impact on Measure J funds 
would be small.   
 
Both WCCTAC and CCTA staff, however, recognize that there ultimately need to be other 
sources of operating funding made available to the Richmond ferry.  RM3 is the most promising 
near-term source.  If it’s legal obstacles are overcome, it will provide significant new operating 
funding to WETA each year.  New funding could help to continue weekend service, potentially 
expand weekday service, and ensure that Richmond ferry operations can be sustained well into 
the future. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A:  Total ridership in 2019 on the Richmond ferry 
B:  Weekend ridership in 2019 on the Vallejo and Alameda/Oakland ferries 

10-3





 

 

   

0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0

1
5

,0
0

0

2
0

,0
0

0

2
5

,0
0

0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

ec

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 2

0
1

9
To

ta
l R

id
er

sh
ip

W
ee

kd
ay

s
W

ee
ke

n
d

s

10A-1





  

0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0

1
5

,0
0

0

2
0

,0
0

0

2
5

,0
0

0

3
0

,0
0

0

3
5

,0
0

0

4
0

,0
0

0

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Monthly Ridership

2
0

1
9

A
la

m
ed

a/
O

ak
la

n
d

W
ee

ke
n

d
s

0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0

1
5

,0
0

0

2
0

,0
0

0

2
5

,0
0

0

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

e
m

b
er

Monthly Ridership

2
0

1
9

V
al

le
jo

W
ee

ke
n

d
s

10B-1





  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: January 24, 2020 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: STMP and Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Consider modifying the May 5, 2019 STMP Administrative Guidelines to exempt Accessory 
Dwelling Units (ADUs) from the STMP fee. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
California’s Senate Bill 13 (SB 13) took effect on January 1, 2020.  It divides ADUs into two 
categories: those greater than, and less than, 750 SF.  For ADUs less than 750 SF, no impact 
fee may be assessed.  For ADUs greater than 750 SF, the fee must be proportional to the 
square footage of the primary dwelling unit.   
 
In the 2019 STMP, WCCTAC established that fees could be collected for ADUs if they were 
not within the habitable living area footprint and were not considered an intensification of 
use.  However, WCCTAC anticipated that there could be state-wide changes in ADU fee 
regulations.   
 
With SB13, ADUs under 750 feet are now exempt.  This likely applies to the majority of ADUs 
in West County.  Given the new legislation, and the staffing limitations in most of the West 
County cities, calculating proportional fees solely ADU’s larger than 750 SF could be 
burdensome to local jurisdictions.  
 
The Administrative Guidelines can be changed at a staff level if they do not conflict with the 
STMP Master Cooperative Agreement or state law.  WCCTAC staff brought this issue to the 
TAC and recommended that the Administrative Guidelines be changed to exempt all ADUs 
from STMP fees for the sake of clarity and simplicity.  The TAC concurred.   
 
WCCTAC’s consultant for the 2019 STMP Nexus Study, Fehr and Peers, confirmed that 
exempting ADUs from STMP fees will have only a minor impact on the potential STMP fee 
revenue generated and the study would still be valid.  WCCTAC staff also consulted with its 
legal counsel which advised that neither the Master Cooperative Agreement nor the STMP 
ordinances adopted by local jurisdictions would need to be modified as a result of the 
proposed changes. 
 

11-1



 

However, subsequent to the meeting, the Hercules City Manager recommend that the 
Administrative Guidelines only be changed to accommodate the new state law rather than to 
provide a blanket exemption. He also recommended that the WCCTAC Board take up the 
issue. 
 
Given the current lack of consensus, WCCTAC staff is requesting that the Board direct it to 
modify the Administrative Guidelines in either one of two ways: 1) solely to accommodate the 
new law; OR 2) more broadly to exempt ADU’s altogether.   
 
It should be noted that this direction will affect all jurisdictions in the program as the 
Guidelines will apply uniformly across the subregion.   
 

 
 

11-2



 

 
 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contra Costa 

County 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 
 

 
 
December 13, 2019 
 
 
Mr. Randell Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

 
RE:  December WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  

 
Dear Randy: 

 
The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on December 13, 2019, took the following actions that 
may be of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Approved CCTA’s Vision Zero Task Force Appointments: Patrick Phelan-City of 
Richmond, Yvetteh Ortiz, City of El Cerrito (Alternate) and Jimmy Zhou, City of San 
Pablo, (Second Alternate). 

2. Approved the 2020 TAC and Board Meeting Calendar. 
3. Approved FY 20 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation for 

Seniors and People with Disabilities. 
4. Approved Measure J Program 21b, Low Income Student Bus Pass Program (SBPP). 

 
Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

       
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 

cc:  Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN; Lisa  
       Bobadilla, SWAT; Matt Todd, CCTA 

14a-1





  

 
 

 
 
 
 
ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.  
 
ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission  
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP:  Active Transportation Program 
AV:  Autonomous Vehicle 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CIL: Center for Independent Living 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System  
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 

14b-1



                       

           

NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PASS: Program for Arterial System Synchronization 
PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities  
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PCC: Paratransit Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
STMP: Subregional Transportation Mitigation Plan 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
WETA: Water Emergency Transportation Agency 
 

14b-2


	wa 1-24-20
	2020 Election
	Minutes 12-13-19 draft
	ED Report 01-24-20
	P5-20 WCCTAC Budget Report Monthly
	Minutes 12-13-19 draft
	WCCTAC Final Report_Draft_2020.01.17_Body only_small



